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GROUP OVERVIEW
EB/E{N

Shoucheng Holdings Limited (the “Company“/”"Shoucheng Holdings") relies
on two core capabilities of FIME, which refers to fundraising, investment,
management and exit and asset operation accumulated by the Company over
the years, actively layout grid assets with long-term value, and aims to become
the infrastructure assets service provider who continuously enhances the
operating efficiency.

BRERBRAR (TFAF) / BRER)) MEARSFRERNEERMEA
EEEZEZ BHHREEARMEBENEREEE BAONARAERKHEE

FENCEE RS ©
Our Value Customer first Team cooperation Teaching and learning mutualism
S — BERE— BB E HEBR
E{EH i o |
Quality first Outcome - orientation Full of passion
mEELE R RE A Rl
Open-r:ollr;(:aeggeess 2nd Embracing change Loyal dedication
P i o
BB 7313k a2 Rk

Our Mission To promote the cross-border integration of infrastructure
d Visi assets, to enhance the operating efficiency, to build new
an Ision infrastructure and to provide the leading infrastructure

{EEyEES  asset management service

Become the infrastructure assets service provider who
continuously enhances the operating efficiency

RUBEE  RANMAE  FIEMER  RHEATNERREE
EBERE

BERR S ERFECCEENRS B
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MILESTONES
EpE

4

'1992

1991
The Company is listed on the main board of the Hong —® Shougang Group and Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited
Kong Stock Exchange (now known as CK Hutchison Holdings Limited) successfully
AAB S B AR L T @ acquired the Company in 1992
BREEHSRIEXE B GRAR CGRBRIM
BEARAE) R19R2FEMINKEARAF]
2016 @
Commenced asset restructuring, and sold 2017
Qinhuangdao business, including steel manufacturing, o Completed business transformation
mineral mining and processing 52 R S RS A
MREBEEEE HERESET  OFEMEE - 1BY
FAER B N 2675
2019
Completed business restructuring, enhanced capital
r reserves, spread out business in China, and formed a solid
2018 —@ foundation for business development

Insisted firmly on the transformation strategy,
developed new main business, reduced the side of
old business, divested relevant assets, and introduced
strategic shareholders for coordinated development
REEIEE BRI EET BREREHRIE
HIEEERI B E > 5| ABBS IR R - SRR E B

TEHEBGERE RAEEHA HREEES B
O | EBURBTRENER

2021

In line with national policy opportunities, the Company
made every effort to deploy public offering REITs in
Mainland China, seize the first-mover advantage, and

Vv
2020

The Company has officially changed its name to Shoucheng
Holdings Limited, the new name reflects the Group's current
strategic and business development direction

ABRERNELABEEERARAT  MBBRRASE
EMREEENEBERS D

cover all categories of public offering REITs; iterated

the product matrix and improved the management
efficiency, and strengthen the leading position in the field
of parking business; divested partial equity interest in
Shougang Fushan Resources Group Limited (“Shougang
Resources”) to optimise the asset structure

|BFEE RBURIEE > 2 NMERPEAMBERR AR
REITs » IB M EESS MBI B IR R A SREMTs 2 R4 E
=, ERBEFEER  BEMETEIRA  FEETE
HAEEMAEEEZEE; ABERELEREESRA
B (MEMER) BoKRE EREEELLEE

4

2022

Deeply cultivating the field of infrastructure assets
represented by carparks, with stable income and good
interoperability, with the opportunity of the era of public
offering REITs in Mainland China, to realise the integration
of industry and finance in infrastructure operation and
asset securitisation

BIBEEPRERRERAEAE S 2EERERR
TMABRETSRERBE R BRERRHEEZEENS
ERFENERES

2023

Our main business, asset operation and FIME continues
to develop, with a larger scale and higher efficiency

of infrastructure asset management, cementing the
foundation for our stable growth

HESEBRNEEREMNATEESRHELEESER
BB EEERRERMEERN BIBRRER
F5 s A
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GROUP STRUCTURE
EBERE

Shoucheng Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) BREZERERAGRKEWBARE (IEEHE)) ;
focuse on China’s core infrastructure assets, and are committed W EFEERREZOLEE  RAONBRE
to become the infrastructure assets service provider in China E¥T&mTEBILNERRME EFEICE
who continuously enhance the operating efficiency. EMRFEE -

As at 31 December 2023
72023 F12 831 H

Shoucheng Holdings Limited
BEZERARAE
(697.HK)

Infrastructure asset
management business

BERRMEEEEER

Vv Vv Vv Vv

Beijing Shoucheng Jishi Beijing West Fund E Park Investment Shoucheng Rongshi
Investment Limited* Management Co., Ltd.* Management Co., Ltd.* (Beijing) Fund
TRERERREERAR bR Al 2= () Management |

BEESERARAT REERERAT Company Limited
BiZRAa JtR)
ESEEFRAT
*  For identification purpose only * (EEER
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
M52

For the year ended 31 December

BE12A3MBLEE
2023 2022
HKS$ Million HKS$ Million
BEHET B EE T
Revenue WA 883 1,600
Operating profit KE R 635 1,346
For the year ended 31 December
BE12A31BLEE
2023 2022
HK cents HK cents
A B
Basic and diluted earnings per share SREAMFBERN 5.57 12.97
As at 31 December
®12831H
2023 2022
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEHETT B EE T
Total assets BEEME 13,523 13,656
Net assets attributable to EN/NSIEZ =N
owners of the Company FEIFEE 9,923 9,928
Bank balances and cash RITEGRAIRE 2,263 3,574
Time deposits with maturity over ZR=EAREAZ
three months, wealth management EHER B ER
products and other securities K EAEE 1,982 903
Asset — Liability ratio* BEARLL=R 25.7% 26.6%
Debt — Equity ratio® BEEARLLES 8.0% 10.5%
# The calculation of Asset — Liability ratio is set out in page 36 of this EHEEEGEENHEHRIINARESHI6H

report.

The definition of Debt — Equity ratio is set out in page 37 of this

report.

ERMBREREENERHIINAREE37
Ho

HERZRAMRAT 2023FFR
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFRHREE

Dear shareholders, investors, clients and colleagues,

As this is my seventh report as the Chairman of the board
("Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of Shoucheng Holdings
Limited (the “Company”),l present it in a highly concise
manner. The main reason is that the macroeconomic context
is complex and arcane, our corporate strategy formulated
several years ago at the mesoscopic level has been subject to
continuous refinement and steadfast implementation, therefore
it is dispensed with repeating the elaboration. In terms of
operations, | am delighted to share with you that the corporate
operations remain in an optimal phase, marked by soaring
business growth. Since the fourth quarter of the previous year,
my team and | have been working around the clock, aiming to
avail ourselves of all effective time slots to create greater value
for all of you.

Although there are certain regrets in the overall operations
performance, the core business profit remains sound. The
Group recorded revenue of HK$883 million and the profit
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$404 million in
2023. There has been a significant decline in the Company’s
profit compared to 2022, The decline in recorded profits is
primarily ascribed to significant downturn in the trading prices
of several domestic strategic investments in C-REITs. On 8
February, 2024, by the China Securities Regulatory Commission
released the Application of Regulatory Rules — Accounting
No. 4* (B BERAIBERAIESI—S5tEE45) . If adjusted
in accordance with the Application of Regulatory Rules —
Accounting No. 4, the profit attributable to the owners of the
Company should be HK$732 million in 2023, remain constant
as compared to 2022 under the same calibre. If excluding the
market fluctuations of the public offering REITs in PRC and the
dividend income contributed by Shougang Fushan Resources
Group Limited, the core business profit recorded a 20%
increment as compared to 2022 under the same calibre. In light
of this, following deliberation by the Board, it has been decided
to distribute all profits of 2023 to shareholders, continuing to
return investors who have shown trust and long-term support
by holding the Company’s shares. Moreover, with endorsement
from the Company's management, all senior executives will
not receive annual bonuses this year and the Company’s entire
bonus amount will be distributed to middle and junior level
employees.

8 Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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Furthermore, the robust asset structure of the Company serves
as a testament to years of perseverance and efforts. By the
end of 2023, the Company’s bank balances and cash and time
deposits at banks stood at HK$4.01 billion, accounting for
approximately 30% of the total assets. We settled offshore
liabilities of HK$448 million in 2023, curtailing the outstanding
debts offshore to HK$106 million at a notably low interest
rate of 2.21%. These remarkably inexpensive liabilities are
scheduled to be cleared on its due date. The parking asset
quasi-REITs successfully launched domestically facilitated the
inflow of capital, and through relentless endeavor, the total
borrowings and bond payable of the Company was decreased
from HK$1.05 billion to HK$793 million, amounting to a
decrease of 24%. The current ratio of interest-bearing debt
significantly lowered to a mere 5.9% stands in contrast to
7.7% in 2022, representing a cutdown by 1.8%. Within the
past year, the Company was rewarded with the AAA ratings
from the leading rating agencies, namely, China Chengxin
International Credit Rating Co., Ltd. (CCXI) and China Lianhe
Credit Rating Co., Ltd. Thanks to the support of our strategic
shareholders, the Company has set up two funds each of
RMB10 billion this year: the first is an urban development
fund, focusing on revitalizing existing infrastructure assets
and integrating sectoral resources, thereby perfecting the
Company’s REITs-based ecosystem featuring “fund-raising,
investment, management and exit”; the other RMB10 billion
fund, primarily financed by the government, which means
stemming from taxpayers, targeting at frontier technology
sectors. We will manage the fund with the utmost diligence
to invest in key players along with the industrial chain as if
we were safeguarding our very lives, to realize both social and
economic benefits.

We remain unwaveringly positive in China assets,and our strong
asset structure and ample funds empower us to leverage capital
strengths in the long run in response to market adjustments,
and to forge ahead with investments. In 2024, we plan to
acquire more parking and charging/swapping infrastructure,
indemnificatory housing, and community commercial assets,
as well as to expand our investments in sectors such as
technological innovation, robotics, new materials, and electric
vehicles.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREHRSE

EX R EEARBEERITRERENKE
BEEERBIVNEBINER- 2023@“&1
MEERI0I4EBT WHREELNA
30% c EARFKFIEE T4.48BE B THIBINME
75 MERV1 .06 BT AFIEEE2.21% >
BRET RPstZ2RHETEEZE - RMAAE
BARARNET TFEHARETs R TESE
ZoBBAEHE I AT LAEEEABHR
10.4718%8 75> FER7.938 75 FE1E24% ;
NEBEEEBBREARASI%  B2022HE27.7%
TRE1ISEE D -ERN ABERT HHE
HEMBMEEEmMRABTRIEBHLTHE
BAAATT R - T ABEHEKRENLIF T &
NABERLTMEARES . —ZXWmE
BRET BREHBEGCGEERIKEERE
ﬁU?%ié:iﬁiAfE% ANF LREITSAE AR
BB B RIEEZAAMREENTESES ; B
—iﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%m%m,ﬁﬂﬁéﬁ ZEE
FERBBNER BN EEHNE HME
UTEECEmEEREE fﬁ%?%ﬂ

BICEX BRMEGNEAKBERDNE
U o
HAPABREEFTEEE BERNEEGHEN

EMMNESZERMERGEDIZAEIREE
EHEANEDR  KE FFMER20245F >
KM MAEFELETHRERIE  RIEEH
@ EEEEEIWE IMAEREAIF
HRAME TR AEEBEHNEE-
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFRHREE

Last but not least, we delivered an ongoing evolution of
the organizational structure,while our team is brimming
with vitality. The most notable change of this year refers to
the establishment of a management and service system for
strategic customers, which has strengthened our business
development model at the regional level. In the transition from
a Hunting Mode to a mixture of Hunting and Farming Mode,
a company-wide, grid-based business development model
that joins the Regional and Strategic Customer Managers with
Product Managers in rapidly accessing logistic support from
the platform of functional department has been structured,
thanks to which “soldiers” (employees) no longer work in
silos, instead, the whole Group would be mobilized to make
concerted efforts. The combination of endeavors from various
units has delivered significantly enhanced upshots, embodied as
elevated business metrics and accelerated growth rates.

We are committed to providing employees with opportunities
for growth and achievement within the Company. This year,
we have reformed our job grading system to promote those
who have demonstrated excellence, loyalty and responsibility,
thereby charting the course for junior colleagues to advance
their careers. The optimized performance management
and allocation models allowed competent colleagues with
concrete contributions to receive higher rewards over a longer
period of time. Further input in the growth and cultivation
of talents highlighted by the targeted training programs for
middle management and senior leadership, the nurturing
of management trainees, and the normalization of routine
business training, fostered a culture of continuous learning
within the organization. On the heel of a special project
initiated to manage and support outsourced personnel will
follow more policies in support of their selection, appointment,
and development. Efforts in optimizing our organizational
management aim to share the dividends of the Company's
growth with our diligent employees, further increasing the
income of junior staff and ensuring that every member of the
Shoucheng family is fully motivated with a commitment to
making strides together with the Company.

Looking into the future, we remain unswervingly optimistic
about the resilience and prospects of the Chinese economy.
Continuous iterative innovation will keep the Company in its
prime condition. Looking forward to 2024, we are fully aware
that only by investing our courage and creativity in innovative
endeavors to create “ten times better” can we unleash our
potential, sustain rapid development, and create greater value.

10 Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhao Tianyang, aged 43, was appointed an Executive
Director and the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the
Company on 6 January 2018 and is also a member and the
chairman of the Nomination Committee of the Company. He
holds a Bachelor degree in science and a Master degree in
economics from Peking University and an Executive Master of
Business Administration degree from Cheung Kong Graduate
School of Business. Mr. Zhao joined Shougang Group Co., Ltd.
(BEREBRAR
2011. He is a deputy general manager of Shougang Group,

“Shougang Group”) in December

a director of Shougang Holding (Hong Kong) Limited
(“Shougang Holding”), and the vice chairman and general
manager of Beijing Shougang Fund Co., Ltd. Gt EMEZE
BBRAB > “Shougang Fund”). Both Shougang Holding and
Shougang Fund are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Shougang
Group. Each of Shougang Group, Shougang Holding and
Shougang Fund is a substantial shareholder of the Company
within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance. Mr. Zhao worked in the China Securities Regulatory
Commission, Beijing Municipal Commission of Development
and Reform and Peking University. He has extensive experience
in company operation and management, investment and capital
operation.

Mr. Xu Liang, aged 58, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company on 21 May 2018. He graduated from Fudan
University with a Bachelor degree in Statistics and obtained
a Master degree in Business Administration from Tsinghua
University and is a senior accountant. Mr. Xu joined the group
of Shougang Group in 1988 and held various senior positions.
He is the managing director of Shougang Holding. Mr. Xu is
also an executive director and the chairman of Global Digital
Creations Holdings Limited, a company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
He was an executive director and the chairman (resigned on
5 August 2022), and the managing director (resigned on 29
March 2021) of Capital Industrial Financial Services Group
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Xu has
extensive experience in management.

DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES
EE@EN

HITES
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DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES
EEBEN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu Lishun, aged 49, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 5 December 2023. Mr. Wu
graduated from the International Business Administration
School of University of International Business and Economics
and obtained a Bachelor degree in Economics in 1997, and
obtained a Master of business administration degree from
University of Maryland — Robert H. Smith Business School
in 2013. Mr. Wu is the party secretary (2Z&Z52) and the
chairman of Beijing State-owned Capital Operation and
Management Company Limited QtREIEEXRELEESR
‘AB]> "Beijing State-owned Capital”). He is also a non-
independent director of BOE Technology Group Co., Ltd. (R
RAREERRMDAERAST) and the chairman of First Capital
Securities Co., Ltd. (F—BIZEEZHRMEBERAR), both of
which are being listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Before
joining Beijing State-owned Capital, Mr. Wu was a standing
member of the party committee (&% Z) and a deputy
general manager of Beijing Capital Entrepreneurship Group
Co., Ltd. UEREHBIEEBEAFIRAT), and a member of the
party committee (2Z& % 8) and a deputy chief of the State-
owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of
the Beijing Municipal People’s Government (3E =™ A R BT E
EEEREEEEZES).

12 Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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Mr. Li Hao, aged 42, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 27 September 2018 and became
the Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors on 15 February
2022. He holds a Bachelor degree from Dalian University of
Technology and a Master of Business Administration degree in
Finance from Waseda University, Japan. Mr. Li has been with
ORIX Corporation (“ORIX",
Company) since October 2007. He is currently the executive

a substantial shareholder of the

officer (responsible for Greater China Group) and general
manager of Greater China Group at ORIX, a diversified financial
services company and whose shares are listed on both Tokyo
Stock Exchange and New York Stock Exchange. Mr. Li also
serves as the director and president of each of ORIX (China)
Investment Company Limited and ORIX Asia Capital Limited,
both of which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of ORIX, and the
director and the chief executive officer of ORIX China Industrial
Holdings Limited, which is an affiliate of ORIX. He is also a non-
executive director of Beijing Energy International Holding Co.,
Ltd., a company listed on the Stock Exchange. He was a non-
executive director (resigned on 3 July 2023) of Haichang Ocean
Park Holdings Ltd., a company listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Peng Jihai, aged 54, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 25 May 2023 and is also a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. He
obtained a Bachelor degree in Agricultural Finance and Credit
Specialization from Central Institute of Finance and Banking
(now known as Central University of Finance and Economics)
in 1993 and obtained a postgraduate diploma in Monetary
Banking from Graduate School of Chinese Academy of Social
Sciences and an EMBA from Tsinghua University in 1998 and
2017 respectively. Mr. Peng is a CPA of The Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Peng is an executive director,
co-chief executive officer and deputy general manager, chief
financial officer, head of investment and chief investment
officer of Sunshine Insurance Group Company Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange. He also serves as the
chairman of Sunshine Surety Insurance Company Limited (B3¢
EARBMREBIRMARZAE) and the director and the general
manager of Sunshine Asset Management Corporation Limited

BHEEEERMARAR).

DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES
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DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES
EEBEN

Mr. Ho Gilbert Chi Hang, aged 47, was appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company on 21 May 2018 and is
also a member of the Audit Committee of the Company. He
holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree and a Bachelor of Laws
degree from University of Sydney, Australia and was admitted
as a solicitor in New South Wales, Australia and England and
Wales and as a solicitor and barrister in the High Court of
Australia. Mr. Ho is also a fellow member of CPA Australia.
He is a member of the Hong Kong Logistics Development
Council, a member of the General Committee of the Chamber
of Hong Kong Listed Companies, Deputy Chairperson of
CPA Australia Greater Bay Area Committee, a member of
the China Committee of Hong Kong General Chamber of
Commerce, a member of the Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology Business School Career Development Advisory
Council, a standing committee member of the Youth Federation
of Inner Mongolia and a vice chairman of Inner Mongolia &
Hong Kong Youth Exchange Association. He was a committee
member of the Industry Advisory Committee of Insurance
Authority from June 2020 to May 2022 and a committee
member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of Shenyang from 2007 to 2021. Mr. Ho is the
executive director and co-chief executive officer of NWS
Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company,
a non-executive director of Wai Kee Holdings Limited and
an independent non-executive director of each of Kam Hing
International Holdings Limited and Asia Allied Infrastructure
Holdings Limited, all being listed on the Stock Exchange. He
was the senior investment director of New World Development
Company Limited, an associate of a substantial shareholder of
the Company and a company listed on the Stock Exchange,
and an executive director of New World Strategic Investment
Limited. Mr. Ho was also a partner of an international law
firm Fried, Frank, Harris, Shriver & Jacobson LLP. Mr. Ho has
extensive experience in the area of corporate management,
investments, corporate finance, merger and acquisition
transactions and international brand and retail management.
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Mr. Liu Jingwei, aged 56, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 6 January 2018 and is also
a member of the Audit Committee of the Company. He
graduated from the School of Economics of Beijing Forestry
University in 1989 and from Shanghai Advanced Institute of
Finance with a Master degree in 2016. Mr. Liu is a PRC Certified
Public Accountant. He currently serves as a senior partner of
Shinewing Certified Public Accountants and is an external
director of Shougang Group. Mr. Liu is also an independent
non-executive director of Sino-Ocean Group Holding Limited,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange, an independent
director of each of Beiling StarNeto Technology Co., Ltd. and
Beijing Yanjing Brewery Co., Ltd., both are listed on Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, and an independent director of Hubei
Huagiang High-tech Co., Ltd.,
Stock Exchange. He was an independent director of Guiyang
Ltd. (retired on 10
March 2023), a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange,

a company listed on Shanghai

Longmaster Information & Technology Co.,

an independent non-executive director of each of AVIC Joy
K) Limited (resigned on 31 January 2022) and
China Nonferrous Mining Corporation Limited (resigned on 27
December 2023), both are listed on the Stock Exchange and
an independent director of Shanghai Yaohua Pilkington Glass

Holdings (H

Group Co., Ltd. (retired on 23 July 2021), a company listed on
Shanghai Stock Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Wang Xin, aged 46, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 18 May 2018 and,
is also a member and the chairman of the Audit Committee
of the Company and a member of each of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
He received his Ph.D. degree in Accounting from Duke
University in 2006 and obtained a Bachelor degree and a
Master degree in Accounting from Tsinghua University in 1999
and 2001 respectively. Dr. Wang is a CPA of CPA Australia.
He is a professor of accounting at the Faculty of Business and
Economics, The University of Hong Kong ("“HKU"). Dr. Wang
joined HKU in 2011 and was awarded a tenured position by
HKU for his excellent academic performance in 2014. Before
he joined HKU, Dr. Wang worked at The Chinese University of
Hong Kong from 2006 to 2011. He has research interests in the
fields of executive compensation, financial disclosure quality,
corporate governance and insider trading. Dr. Wang's papers
were published on various world leading academic journals,
such as Journal of Accounting and Economics, The Accounting
Review, Contemporary Accounting Research and Review of
Accounting Studies. Dr. Wang has teaching experience in
several accounting courses, including Introductory Financial
Accounting, Intermediate Financial Accounting | and II, and
Management Accounting. He also teaches (as one of co-
instructors) the Ph.D. course of Research Methods for Business
Studies. Dr. Wang is also an independent director of Kweichow
Moutai Co., Ltd. (stock code: 600519), a company listed on
Shanghai Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Choi Fan Keung Vic, aged 59, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on
18 May 2018 and is also a member of each of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
He obtained a Bachelor degree, Postgraduate Certificate and
a Master degree in Laws from HKU in 1997, 1998 and 2001
respectively. Mr. Choi is a solicitor of the High Court of Hong
Kong. He also serves as a consultant at Howse Williams. Mr.
Choi served as deputy head of compliance, area compliance
officer in China and head of compliance with HSBC Bank
(China) Co. Ltd., where he managed over 160 compliance
officers and was responsible for regulatory compliance and
prevention and control of financial crime in over 60 cities in
China. He worked at Clifford Chance and Herbert Smith and
was specialized in compliance, anti-money laundering, anti-
fraud and corporate finance and other advisory work. Mr.
Choi served in the Hong Kong Police Force and was a senior
inspector. He has over 30 years of experience in compliance
management, prevention and control of commercial crime and
investigation, and has extensive experience in legal practice
and, crime investigation and prosecution.
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Mr. Deng Yougao, aged 57, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 18 May 2018 and
is also a member of each of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. He obtained a Master
degree in Business Economics from Institute of Finance and
Economics of Jiangxi CIFARF &2 2> now known as Jiangxi
University of Finance and Economics)in 1994 and a Bachelor
degree in Shipbuilding Engineering from Harbin Shipbuilding
Engineering Institute (FATEMMITE LT now known as
Harbin Engineering University)in 1988. Mr. Deng is a director
of Shenzhen Henggu Nano Technology Co. Ltd. GEIIEE
kR ABRAR), the executive director and the general
manager of Guangdong Henggu Jiaye Nano Technology Co.
Ltd. (BEREEBEZZEHMAKBFZARAQE) (formerly known as
Shengshi Henggu Holdings (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. (BXtH[E[E
ZRg GRYI) BIR/AT)), the executive partner of Shengshi
Henggu (Shenzhen) Administrative Center (Limited Partnership)
(BRtEE CRID EEFPL (BEREGE)) and a supervisor
of Shanghai Tianyun Nano Technology Co., Ltd. (E/&EXKZEH
KB BRAST). He is also an independent non-executive
director of Success Dragon International Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Deng has numerous
experiences in different roles in various companies in different
industries.
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Ms. Zhang Quanling, aged 50, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 6
January 2018 and is also a member and the chairlady of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company and a member of
each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee
of the Company. She holds a Bachelor degree in Arts. Ms.
Zhang joined China Central Television in 1997 and has hosted
the famous programmes such as “Oriental Horizon” and
“Focus Interview"”. She participated in numerous news live
coverage and was awarded the “Golden Microphone Awards”,
the “Golden Eagle Awards”, the “Fan Changjiang Journalism
Award”, the most prestigious journalism award in China, and
the 19th “Top Ten Outstanding Chinese Youths”. Ms. Zhang
is the founding partner of Ziniu Fund (534 &%) and the
chairlady of Cool Youth (Tianjin) Culture Communication Co.,
Ltd. (B&1E L F (R8) XIEEREBRLQE]) . She has extensive
experience in news media, brand building and strategic
planning.

Ms. Zhuge Wenjing, aged 46, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 28
May 2021 and is also a member of the Audit Committee of
the Company. She obtained a Bachelor degree from Renmin
University of China and a Master of Business Administration
degree from each of the Kellogg School of Business at
Northwestern University in the United States and the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology School respectively.
She is currently a director of GLP China Holdings Limited
("GLP") which is a public limited company incorporated in
Hong Kong, an executive vice chairman of GLP China and the
president of China at GLP Capital Partners, who is responsible
for strategic planning, investment and financing, legal affairs,
internal audit and human resources management in China. She
has served as the co-president and chief financial officer of GLP
China responsible for fund management, capital allocation,
mergers and acquisitions and strategic cooperation in China,
as well as financial and human resources management. Prior
to joining GLP, Ms. Zhuge worked in Morgan Stanley Asset
Management Company and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAADN

COMPANY OVERVIEW

The year 2023 was the third year of the development of
Infrastructure Real Estate Investment Trusts (“REITs”) in PRC.
It was also a year full of challenges and opportunities that
deserves in-depth consideration. In 2023, the market prices of
public offering REITs were affected by fundamental pressures,
weak liquidity and deviations of expectation in the operation
of some assets, thus, resulting in a significant decline in market
prices. At the same time, favorable long-term policies were
frequently introduced in the market.

In terms of public offering REITs market issuance: there were
5 new listings in 2023, and the market issuance is progressing
steadily; the first batch of public offering REITs has been
expanded successfully, which helped the public offering REITs
to form a benign cycle of capital expansion and asset injection
during their existence; the pilot asset types of public offering
REITs have been extended to include consumer infrastructure
and other assets, and the first four consumer infrastructure
public offering REITs have all been approved. In terms of
participants: in 2023, a total of 29 fund companies announced
that public offering REITs will be officially included in the
investment scope of fund of funds (“FOF"), involving a fund
size of more than RMB100 billion.

On 6 December 2023, the Ministry of Finance and the Ministry
of Human Resources and Social Security of the People’s
Republic of China jointly issued the “Draft Measures for
the Administration of Domestic Investment of the National
Social Security Fund (for soliciting opinions)*” (2@t &
REETIHEAKREEEME BKERM)), proposing to
include public offering REITs in the investment scope of the
National Social Security Fund; on 8 February 2024, the China
Securities Regulatory Commission issued the “Guidelines for
the Application of Regulatory Rules — Accounting No. 4"* (8
EHRAERIES — B 5885457, which stipulates that, under
certain conditions, REITs held by holders other than the original
equity holders of the REITs may be listed as equity instruments;
for non-trading long-term investors in the public offering
REITs market, it can avoid the impact of secondary market
price fluctuations on the investor's income statement, which is
conducive to encouraging and strengthening the logic of long-
term holding investment, and enhancing asset allocation value.

The abovementioned favorable policies will greatly promote
the stable operation and healthy development of the public
offering REITs market in PRC. The Group firmly adheres to
a long-term investment strategy and remains confident in
investing in public offering REITs in PRC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group recorded revenue of HK$883 million in 2023,
representing a decrease of 45% compared to the year of 2022,
which was HK$1,600 million. Revenue from asset operation in
2023 was HK$658 million, representing an increase of 13%
compared to the year of 2022. Revenue from FIME in 2023 was
HK$225 million which decreased by 78% compared to the year
of 2022. The profit attributable to owners of the Company in
2023 was HK$404 million, as compared to HK$922 million for
last year.

As a result of the significant price fluctuations in the secondary
market of REITs, unrealized loss was recorded from the decline
in REITs measured at fair value through profit or loss under
the Group's FIME (FIME is defined as fundraising, investment,
management and exit) business. The unrealized loss is not cash
in nature and did not have any impact on the cash flows nor
the normal business operation of the Group.

Excluding the decline in REITs measured at fair value through
profit or loss under the Group's FIME business, the Group's
revenue was HK$1,320 million in 2023, which is roughly the
same as the revenue recorded in same period last year of
HK$1,370 million.

The Group continues to leverage its advantages in asset
operations and FIME. In terms of asset operation, the scale
of the Group’s asset operation and the efficiency of the
management have both been enhanced in 2023; in terms of
FIME, at least two important funds have also been established,
further details of the two important funds are set out in P.33
of this report, laying a solid foundation for the long-term
healthy development of the Company's business. During the
transformation of high-quality development of China’s economy
and the slowdown of the overall economic growth, the Group
has gradually built up a relatively solid business moat through
the continuous accumulation of its scale of main business,
operational capabilities, capital and resources, which has
enabled the Group to maintain a high level of performance
despite the heavy pressure.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAADN

Guojun - Shoucheng Holdings Smart Parking
Asset-backed Special Plan

The Group's first parking asset quasi-REITs product, “Guojun
— Shoucheng Holdings Smart Parking Asset-backed Special
Plan*" (BIZE - BREEZEREZEFEEEXIFERE) which
used four of the Group's self-owned parking lot projects as
underlying assets was successfully issued on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange in June 2023. The successful issuance of
this product reflects the full recognition of the Group’s asset
operation capability in the capital market, and has opened up a
commercial loop from "asset acquisition — operation efficiency
improvement — asset securitization — cash flow reinvestment”. It
is another major breakthrough made by the Group in building a
commercial loop of asset operation + FIME.

In 2024, the Group will continue to issue the second phase
of parking asset quasi-REITs products, which will, on the one
hand, help the Group to achieve light asset operations and
expand its asset scale to supplement working capital, while on
the other hand, further expand the recognition of the Group’s
operating parking assets in the capital market.

Obtain AAA market rating from leading rating
agencies

The Group has been assigned a principal rating of AAA with a
stable outlook by China Chengxin International Credit Rating
Co., Ltd. and China Lianhe Credit Rating Co., Ltd. This is the
second time that the Group has been recognised by leading
domestic rating agencies in PRC after obtaining a AAA debt
rating and successfully establishing PRC's first parking asset
quasi-REIT. This marks the opening of channels for the Group
in the bond market, which is conducive to further leveraging
the dual driving effect of FIME and asset operation business,
and thoroughly opening up the ecological loop of infrastructure
asset management.

* for identification purpose only
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS REVIEW

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEERAAD

FRM B RHE

For the year ended
31 December

HENAMMBLEE
2023 2022
HKS$ million HK$ million
EBEEGET B EETT
Revenue N 883 1,600
Including: Revenue from asset operation Hrf . BEEZEEWA 658 583
Revenue from FIME" BERMBUIAAN 225 1,017
Adjusted EBITDA* R HEEEBITDA* 671 1,466
Operating profit S =pingl 635 1,346
Profit attributable to the owners of KNBHEE NESLEF
the Company 404 922
For the year ended
31 December
HE12B31HILLEE
2023 2022
HK cents HK cents
A Pyl
Basic and diluted earnings per share BRELANFEERR 5.57 12.97
As at 31 December
128318
2023 2022
HKS$ million HK$ million
HEFGET B EET
Total assets BEBE 13,523 13,656
Net assets BEEFE 10,041 10,024
Asset — Liability ratio* BEEABLE 25.7% 26.6%
Debt — Equity ratio® BEEARLERS 8.0% 10.5%

” FIME is defined as fundraising, investment, management and exit. "

* The calculation of Adjusted EBITDA is set out in page 27 of this *
report.

L The calculation of Asset — Liability ratio is set out in page 36 of this
report.

>

report.

The calculation of Debt — Equity ratio is set out in page 37 of this
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAADN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The year ended 31 December 2023 compared to the year
ended 31 December 2022:

Revenue and Cost of Sales

The Group's revenue mainly consists of revenue from asset
operation and revenue from FIME. Revenue from asset
operation includes the industry-based operation services, as
well as the service income of various technologies, consulting,
research, innovation and value-adding and other services
generated surround the core infrastructure asset services.
Revenue from FIME includes comprehensive income generated
from the consultancy of public offering REITs, the management
and investment of public offering REITs development funds, and
the management and investment of strategic placement funds.

The Group recorded revenue of HK$883 million in 2023 which
decreased 45% as compared with the revenue of HK$1,600
million last year. Revenue from asset operation in 2023 was
HK$658 million, representing an increase of 13% as compared
to the same period last year. Revenue from FIME in 2023 was
HK$225 million, representing a decrease of 78% as compared
to the same period last year. The overall gross profit margin
in 2023 was 40.7%, representing a decrease of 25.8% in
absolute value as compared to the same period last year at
66.5%. The decline in revenue and overall profit margin from
FIME was mainly attributable to the unrealized loss recorded by
public offering REITs in China measured at fair value through
profit or loss in 2023 due to the aforementioned decrease in
market price of public offering REITs in China.

Although the decrease in the market price of public offering
REITs in China imposes certain adverse effects on the Group's
FIME, the funds under the Group’s management continue
to generate stable management fee income, and the exit
of mature investment projects and some of the funds also
continue to contribute excess return to the Group, which
contributed HK$378 million revenue to the Group in 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Finance costs

The finance costs are mainly attributable to the interest on
lease liabilities arising from the adoption of HKFRS 16 — Leases,
interest on borrowings and the interest generated by the Quasi-
REITs Structured Asset Securitization Products of parking asset
issued by the Group during the year. Further details of finance
costs are set out in P.200 of this report.

During the year, finance costs of the Group amounted to
HK$106 million, representing an increase of 3.3% compared to
last year. The increase in finance costs was primarily attributed
to the interest generated by the Quasi-REITs Structured Asset
Securitization Products of parking asset issued by the Group
during the year.

Taxation

Income tax expenses mainly include the enterprise income tax
calculated at a tax rate mainly of 25% for the Group’s major
subsidiaries incorporated in China.

Provision for income tax expense amounting to approximately
HK$7 million was made for the year ended 31 December
2023, while provision for income tax expense of approximately
HK$269 million was made for the last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAADN

Non-HKFRSs Measures

Profit before income tax plus non-controlling interest,
finance costs, gain on disposal of assets classified as held
for sale, depreciation, and amortisation is defined as the
adjusted EBITDA (the “Adjusted EBITDA") of the Group. The
calculation of Adjusted EBITDA is set out in page 27 of this
report.

The total liabilities divided by total assets is defined as the Asset
— Liability ratio (the "Asset — Liability ratio”) of the Group.
The calculation of Asset — Liability ratio is set out in page 36 of
this report.

The total borrowings divided by capital and reserves
attributable to owners of the Company is defined as the Debt
— Equity ratio (the "Debt - Equity ratio”) of the Group. The
calculation of Debt — Equity ratio is set out in page 37 of this
report.

The Adjusted EBITDA, Asset — Liability ratio and Debt — Equity
ratio are used as additional financial measures to supplement
the Group’s consolidated financial statements which are
presented in accordance with HKFRSs.

The Group believes that the Adjusted EBITDA, Asset — Liability
ratio and Debt — Equity ratio provide meaningful supplemental
information regarding the Group’s performance and the core
operating results, enhance the overall understanding of the
Group's past performance and future prospects and allow
for greater visibility with respect to key metrics used by the
Group’s management in its financial and operational decision-
making. It would help the investors of the Company and other
stakeholders understand and evaluate the Group's consolidated
results of operations in the same manner as management
and in comparing financial results across different accounting
periods.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Adjusted EBITDA

The Adjusted EBITDA is presented because they are used by
management to evaluate operating performance. The Adjusted
EBITDA attempts to represent cash profit generated by the core
operations by stripping out the 1) non-cash items, including
depreciation, amortisation and gain on disposal of assets
classified as held for sale; 2) income tax expenses depending
on different tax rates in different countries; 3) finance costs
depending on the Group’s capital structure and not directly
attributable to the Group’s core operating results; and 4) non-
controlling interest, which is not directly attributable to owners
of the Company.

During the year, the Adjusted EBITDA of the Group amounted
to HK$671 million, representing a decrease of 54.2% as
compared to HK$1,466 million last year.

The following table reconciles the Group’s profit before income
tax to adjusted EBITDA for the years presented:

EEERAAD

4Z:BEEBITDA

K EEBITDANZF AR EEEERZE
FBIE R AR RIT o LFEEBITDAE B
) ERERZ - CRITE - HHENEE
FERFENBEEZWE ; 2) BUARAEER
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For the year ended
31 December

HBE12831BLEE

2023 2022
HKS$ million HK$ million
EBEEET B EET
Profit before income tax FRFTISM AR A 466 1,183
1. Non-controlling interests 1. JEER S (72) (8)
2. Finance costs 2. AR 106 102

3. Gain on disposal of assets classified as 3EERERENBEEZNR
held for sale m - (17)

4. Depreciation of property, plant and AME-BEREZEBINE

equipment 17 12
5. Depreciation of right-of-use assets S.EREEEITE 132 163
6. Amortisation of other non-current assets 6. EfthIEm&E E# 22 31
Adjusted EBITDA 4T BEBITDA 671 1,466
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAADN

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The development of the REITs market will effectively connect
the real economy with the capital market, helping to form
a benign cycle of existing assets and new investment. The
Group adheres to the core philosophy of “precise investment
+ lean operation” and focuses on the investment and
operation of various types of infrastructure assets with long-
term value. Based on the two characteristics of revitalizing
assets and building new investment and financing models,
as well as helping to enhance asset operation performance
of public offering REITs, the Group leverages its strong FIME
capability and rich experience in asset operation to fully
utilize public offering REITs and provide in-depth service to
our customers. The Group is committed to the layout of the
entire REITs industry chain and realizing the strategic goal of
“the infrastructure assets provider in China who continuously
enhances the operating efficiency”, to create a closed-loop
operation model for the entire chain.

Asset Operation

By iterating towards the 3.0 business model of “asset
circulation + operation technology”, the Group adheres to
invest in core areas, core regions, and core cities, to fully utilize
the integration of asset operation and FIME, and to realize the
commercial cycle of assets under management through asset
securitization. In 2023, the Group further expanded its layout
in major transportation hubs such as airports and railways in
first tier cities such as Beijing and Guangzhou. At the same
time, the Group continued to acquire various infrastructure
assets with excellent performance and long-term operational
value through precise investment capabilities, and reserved
high-quality assets for future asset securitization exits.

In 2023, the Group successfully won the bid for the project of
parking operating rights of Guangzhou Baiyun International
Airport* in the Greater Bay Area (“Guangzhou Baiyun
Airport parking operating rights”, BN A Z#&iFEE
¥%) with a total of over 10,000 operating parking spaces.
The successful bidding of the project with Guangzhou
Baiyun Airport which was first ranked in terms of annual
transportation volume for three consecutive years since 2020
in China enables the Group to operate regional heavyweight
transportation hubs in the Greater Bay Area, Beijing-Tianjin-
Hebei Region and Southeast Region.

* for identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In addition, the Group has successfully won the bid and signed
the contract for the largest railway hub in Asia, the Beijing
Fengtai Railway Station carpark* (JERE & IL{2E ) project in
the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region in 2023, which has taken the
Group to a new level in railway travel services. The successful
bidding of the two abovementioned projects fully demonstrates

the Group’s leading position and strength in the industry.
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Guangzhou Baiyun International Airport parking
operating rights*
BEMNAERIGEEIGEEE

In 2023, the Group continued to acquire ownership of multiple
parking spaces in core regions, like Chongging of the Chengdu-
Chongging Region and Beijing of the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei
Region, including the FFC and CDE blocks of the Chongging
Wealth Center* (BEMR & P OFFCRCDEEE), the Longhu
New City project in Chongging* (EEMEEHHSMER),
and the Tianchuang Technology Building project in Haidian
District of Beijing* (tRMmEREXRAFIEAEEE). While
significantly increasing the density of parking spaces in core
regions, the Group will adopt a model of “Asset acquisition-
Operation efficiency improvement-Asset securitization-
Reinvestment of cash backflow” to further develop towards a
light asset operation model.

The Beijing Fengtai Railway Station carpark*
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAADN

In terms of park asset management, the Chang’an Mills* (7xT
&) project in Beijing of Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region, which is
a model of industrial park reconstruction in Beijing and even in
China covering 200,000 square meters with 23 single buildings
has become a new consumption landmark in the western
region of Beijing and has been awarded the title of “Low
Carbon Innovation” characteristic industrial park. The project
has achieved over 95% of office investment rate.

The Rongshi Square* (F4EE¥5) and the Shoucheng Times
Center* (BI2BEFfCH D), which are still under construction,
will be developed into a gathering platform for international
high-end talents to live and work, as well as a large-scale
business park for urban new life experience centers. In 2023,
the funds managed by the Group obtained the operating right
of over 88,000 square meters of the Beijing Winter Olympics
Square, further increasing the density and operating scale of
our projects in the Shougang Park, and enhancing the synergy
among different projects.

The Group will continue to increase the operating income and
valuation level of its managed projects through lean operations,
cross-border restructuring, investment cultivation, and other
methods. In the future, the Group will actively explore asset
securitization methods such as issuing infrastructure public
offering REITs to bridge the exit path and achieve a deep
integration of the operating value and financing value of
underlying assets.
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The Chang’an Mills*
A~TLEE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group continues to invest in operational technology to
create upgraded digital products that empower the Group’s
business and parking users. The Group entered a new stage of
digital market output in 2023. The successful bidding of the
Xi'an Airport Parking Management System* (FAZI&IZEEE
B Z47) in early 2023 realised the Group's first cooperation in
the external delivery of Software as a Service (SaaS) software
systems and gained market recognition for system design and
development capabilities.

The Group is always insisted on putting user experience as the
first priority. The Group continues to optimize and upgrade
customer-end interactive applications, enhance user operation
experience and create competitive digital products. Through
the launch of the parking agency business platform, innovative
business platform, and cloud customer service open platform,
the Group has formed a comprehensive user operation system
platform with parking services as its core, which has greatly
enhanced the Group’s professional, digital, and standardized
asset operation capabilities, and brought comfortable and
convenient parking experiences to travelers.

The Group actively explores the extension of the parking
industry chain and charging pile business in accordance with
the national policy guidance on the development of the
new energy vehicle industry. In 2023, the Group obtained
investment, construction, and operation of new energy
vehicle charging piles through self construction or strategic
acquisition. Through close cooperation with leading technology
and operation teams in the industry, the Group has laid out
a number of high standard and intelligent charging piles in
the core areas of cities such as Beijing in Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei
and Shanghai in the Southeast Region. On the one hand, the
development of this business has enhanced the density of asset
operations and helped to achieve scale effects; on the other
hand, it also enriches business categories and expands revenue
sources. At the same time, it also marks the official entry of the
Group into the field of new energy vehicle services, which helps
to enhance the Group's core competitiveness.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAADN

FIME

FIME involves acquiring long-term “potential assets” and
leveraging the Group’'s strong asset operation capabilities
to introduce long-term funds to customers. The Group
also provides exploration and cultivation of high potential
projects through the establishment of front-end funds, while
platform operation management helps improve asset quality
and efficiency in the middle end. The funds are then exit
through market-oriented or public offering REITs, and finally
reinvested through REITs, the Group comprehensively realizes
the integration of industry and finance in the entire ecosystem
of infrastructure assets through the four-step process, thereby
achieving dual growth in asset scale, quality, and return on

investment for the Group's customers.

In 2023, the Group successfully assisted its client in issuing
its first photovoltaic public offering REITs in PRC, and assisted
its client in entering the review stage of the China Securities
Regulatory Commission for its public offering REITs in China.
The Group continued to provide consulting services for the
issuance of public offering REITs to over 30 clients, with an
expected asset trading volume exceeding RMB100 billion.
This once again demonstrates the professional capabilities
and industry-leading position of the Group in the preparation
of REITs issuance and asset securitization consulting, and has
established or deepened strategic cooperation with more
and more important enterprises in the infrastructure industry
through the aforementioned consulting services, in order to
obtain a wide range of business resources.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Sunshine Shoucheng Urban Development infrastructure
assets investment Fund (“Sunshine Shoucheng Urban
Development Fund”* BB ERBETEEESL)) with a
target scale of RMB10 billion.

In 2023, the Group collaborated with strategic shareholder
Sunshine Insurance Group Company Limited to establish the
Sunshine Shoucheng Urban Development Fund* (F ¢ & 21
mEEE$)with a target scale of RMB10 billion. This fund
is the second urban development fund of the Company to
acquire infrastructure assets with the potential to issue REITs.
This also demonstrates the Group's precise industrial investment
ability, lean operation and management ability, and mature and
comprehensive exit ability.

Beijing Robot Industry Development Investment Fund
(Limited Partnership)* (IREBAEEZREREESE (BIR
&%) (hereinafter referred to as the “Beijing Robot Fund”
(b= 25 AE£)) with a target scale of RMB10 billion.

The Group has also jointly initiated the establishment of
the Beijing Robot Fund (JE#88 AEE)) with strategic
shareholders Beijing State-owned Capital Operation and
Management Company Limited* (ItREBEERNEZSEIEFIR
/A 7))) and Beijing Municipal Government Investment Guidance
Fund (Limited Partnership), with a target scale of RMB10 billion.
The establishment of this fund is an important manifestation of
the Group’s active participation in promoting the construction
of the International Science and Technology Innovation Center
and the global digital economy benchmark city in Beijing. It
is also the investment concept that the Group would actively
practices to deepen industrial investment and promote
industrial upgrading.

The successful establishments of the Sunshine Shoucheng
Urban Development Fund* (BB EREMMERES) and
the Beijing Robot Fund* (b= #2838 AE ) are results of the
strong support from strategic shareholders for the Group’s
resource docking and business collaboration, as well as a high
recognition of the Group’s investment and exit capabilities in
asset operation and FIME. It will also form a highly synergistic
effect for the Group’s strategic investment.

*  for identification purpose only

EEERAAD

BEREAARKI100ERER L EREET
HERERIMREES ((BAEERTHERE
HE

2023 F A EFAHERRGHARRERRD
BERADGFRILTERRESARE100
EREG CERATERET REEZESR
AF B LA EEBRETSETEINER
RMEENHTERES ORIPRRT X
EEBENEXRERN BaNEENE
HES AN EERHAES

BIEHEARBI100EMIt RS AEE
HERREES (FREE) (Tdb=mB A
HE])o

FEETHEBRBRRRIEREAEESELE
EARATAUKRIIRTHARESIEEE (B
[REB) HEFERIZBR[EAREI00E
NIEREBAES  ZXEBEENRURAEE
B 78515 2 B35 = h HE B R A B AU R RO A
ERBFEERTHTERNEZRR 75
ERMTAEEBRBETRAEEZRE VH#
FEXABRNKERES-

BHEENTERESNIIREBAESH
IR RBBERIYAEEE RN EZ X
BHEANENZF t2HBERREAEER
HEEEENEEMBRNKERBHAE
NWEERS TRAXEREBRETLAS
E BRI o

* EHEE

HERZRAMRAT 2023FFR 33



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAADN

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance. The Company
manages its financial risks in accordance with guidelines
laid down by its Board of Directors. The Operating Finance
Department identifies and evaluates financial risks in close
co-operation within the Group to cope with overall risk
management, as well as specific areas, such as market risk
(including currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit

risk and liquidity risk.

Currency risk

The Group conducts its businesses mainly in Hong Kong and
China,
of HK dollars, US dollars and Renminbi. To minimise currency

it is subject to the foreign exchange fluctuation risks

exposure, foreign currency assets are usually financed in
the same currency as the asset or cash flow from it through
borrowings.

Details of currency risk for the financial year ended 31
December 2023 are set out in note 3.1(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group holds interest bearing assets and liabilities
including cash at banks, financial assets at amortised costs
and borrowings. The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances and
borrowings.

Details of interest rate risk for the financial year ended 31

December 2023 are set out in note 3.1(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCING RESOURCES

The Group aims to diversify its funding sources through
utilisation of both banking and capital markets. To the extent
possible, financing is arranged to match business characteristics
and cash flows.

The assets with high liquidity and financing resources of the
Group as at 31 December 2023 as compared to 31 December

2022 are summarised below:

1. Assets with high liquidity

EEERAAD
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1. SRINEE

As at As at

31 December 31 December
2023 2022
7202345 5220224
12831H 12H31H
HKS$ million HKS$ million

EEEET BIEHBT

Bank balances and cash RTERKRIRE 2,263 3,574
Time deposits with maturity over ZR=ZEA NP EHRT

three months, wealth management OB E R KREME

products and other securities 1,982 903
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAADN

36

Asset - Liability ratio

The Asset — Liability ratio is presented because it is used
by management to evaluate the Group’s debt level.

As at 31 December 2023, the Asset — Liability ratio of
the Group is 25.7%, representing a decrease of absolute
value of 0.9% as compared to 31 December 2022.

The following table shows the Group’s total liabilities
and total assets for the years presented:

BEARMRILE
INEEAELERRAEEEER
ZLE R A EE 2 A FEKFo

R2023F12B31H x"EBREEGRE
EEERA25.7% BHERK20225F128
31TH FE0.9% o

TRHFINREVNEAEENEBRER
BEEMEE

As at 31 December

®12H8318
2023 2022
HKS$ million HK$ million

EEHET EEHET

Total liabilities BEEE
Total assets BEEHEE
Asset — Liability ratio BESGBILX
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3,482 3,632
13,523 13,656
25.7% 26.6%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEERAAD

Debt - Equity ratio 3. BEEARLXE
The Debt — Equity ratio is presented because it is used RBEEALERRAEEREEH
by management to evaluate how the Group utilised its ZLEERRFAHREB N AT BEBR
borrowings for financing the business and operations for REBNEEMEUBRER
growth.
As at 31 December 2023, the Debt — Equity ratio of R2023F12A31H AEEBEBER
the Group is 8.0%, representing a decrease of absolute EEE2R8.0%  BEHER2022F T
value of 2.5% as compared to 31 December 2022 2.5%¢°
The following table shows the Group’s total borrowings TRENNBINAFEREBNMGER
and capital and reserves attributable to owners of the MEKRSAEIEE ABERAN RS
Company for the years presented:
As at 31 December
®12831H
2023 2022
HKS$ million HK$ million
BEEET BEEET
Total borrowings and bond payable EREEREMES 793 1,047
Including: Borrowings - non-current (Note (a)) B/ : B3 —IERE (H:2) 452 465
Borrowings — current (Note (a)) BR—RE (152(a) 157 582
Bond payable - non-current N ES—IERE
(Note (b)) izt b)) 184
Capital and reserves attributable to ERAEBA
owners of the Company FEfL R A R k1 9,923 9,928
Debt - Equity ratio BREXREE 8.0% 10.5%

Note (a) As at 31 December 2023, the balance of the Group's term
loan financing from banks was HK$609 million, which was
mainly for the investment in the operation rights of the
Beijing Daxing International Airport Parking Building* (it
RAEFRHIS(SER) . Further details of borrowings
are set out in P.254 of this report.

Note (b) Besides E Park Investment Management Co., Ltd.* (B&{%
B (bR HEEEARAFE), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, issued the parking asset quasi-REITs
structured asset securitization product (“Quasi-REITs
Structured Asset Securitisation Product”) with the
balance of HK$184 million. Further details of bond
payable is set out in P. 255 of this report

For identification purpose only

*

Kist(a) B ZE2023F 128318 ZEEIRTE
HETMEREABK6 0BT =
EREAKREIRAEAABRH B EEE
EEREMETHIRITER BRNE
— S BN ABRENF2548

KiaEb) Boh > RATEREFATERFE (UER)
CEBEARABBITNEEEEE
REITs#E B E EHF S CEM (TEEREITs&
BIEEESSFER) REBK1.84E
TN ESHNE—THBHNER
EHIE2558 o

EraEs)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAADN

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings
disclosed in Note 26 and bond payables disclosed in Note 27 to
the consolidated financial statements. and equity attributable
to owner s of the Company, comprising issued share capital and
reserves.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The directors review the capital structure on a semi-annual
basis. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues and share buy — backs as well as
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debts.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD

Save as disclosed below, there were no other significant

investment held the Group during the year.

Investment
Name of entity cost
AFRHE RERS
Financial assets at FVOCI
BARBESAHMZEN G, 2RHEE
Shougang Fushan Resources Group Limited (*Shougang HKS B
Resources") (Note (3)) 1,834,347,000

ERRLEREEERAR (HHER) (o)

Financial assets at FVPL
BRARBESIABGZEHEE
CICC GLP Warehousing and Logistics Closed Infrastructure RMB AR
Securities Investment Fund* (the “REIT") (Note (b)) 626,500,000
FEERIMRHANERRMESREES
(TRETE&E)) (W)

Financial assets at FVOCI

BRARBESARMEZANG 2 SHEE

Shougang Fushan Resources Group Limited HKS &
("Shougang Resources") (Note (a)) 2,045,590,000

EARLERERERAT (HAER) Wit

Financial assets at FVPL
BRARBEIABGZEHEE
CICC GLP Warehousing and Logistics Closed Infrastructure RMB AR
Securities Investment Fund* (the "REIT") (Note (b)) 583,500,000
FEERFNRHAAERRRESFREES
(TRETE&E)) (W)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEERAAD

e
FRBREEARE
BRIATIRERSN EAFE > AEE W EAME
BERKE-
Proportion of
Proportion and unit of issued shares fair value to Unrealised
subscription fund units the total assets fair value Dividends
held by the Group Fair value to the Group gains/(losses) received
AREE RERN R
FEARACETRNYER HEEE BEED
thl/ BEESHERLLA AnfEE BEELH #H/ (58 BEE
As at For the year ended
31 December 2023 31 December 2023
1#2023512A318 HE2023F12831ALEE
HKS &5 HKS % HKS %5
774,743,000 1572%  2,231,261,000 16.50% 302,150,000 319,384,000
RMB AR RMB AR RMB AR
160,170,000 8.26% 546,181,000 4.43% (306,639,000) 21,503,000
As at For the year ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2022
1#202212A31A HE02F12831ALEE
HKS &% HKS % HKS %5
863,962,000 17.10% 2,151,267,000 15.75% 105,677,000 406,143,000
RMB AR RMB AR RMB AR
150,000,000 10.00% 809,550,000 6.69% 125,775,000 13,382,000
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAADN

In the long term, based on the stable performance of Shougang
Resources and the stable and diversified underlying assets
portfolio of the REITs and the rental income generated by its
leases, the earnings of the REITs are expected to remain at a
relatively consistent pace over time, Therefore, looking forward,
the Board believes that the strategic investments will strive to
generate stable returns to the Group.

Note (a) Holding other business assets

Shougang Resources is a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability and the issued shares of which are listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
with stock code 639 and is a major hard coking coal producer in
Mainland China.

Note (b) The Group's Strategic Investment in REITs Fund

The REIT fund is an infrastructure fund established in the PRC
which mainly invests in projects of which warehousing and
logistics infrastructure projects are the final investment targets. Its
fund manager is CICC Fund Management Co., Ltd.* (F&E&E
EAPRAB) and its fund units are listed on the Shanghai Stock

Exchange.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS & DISPOSALS

There were no other material acquisitions or disposals by the
Group during the year.

EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

There were no material events occurring after the reporting
period required to be disclosed during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

USE OF PROCEEDS

1.

On 10 August 2020, the Company completed
the subscription agreement (“Poly Platinum
Subscription”) with Poly Platinum Enterprises Limited
("Poly Platinum”), pursuant to which the Company
has conditionally agreed to issue, and Poly Platinum
conditionally agreed to subscribe for the 1% convertible
bonds, in the aggregate principal amount of HK$300
million, with net proceeds of approximately HK$295
million.

As at 31 December 2023, the Company has utilised
HK$146 million of the net proceeds from the Poly
Platinum Subscription. The Company decided to
reallocate the amount of unutilised net proceeds as
at 31 December 2023 of HK$149 million, such that
HK$89 million and HK$60 million will be used for the
purpose of investing in the Group's infrastructure asset
management business and general working capital,
respectively (the “Reallocation”). The Reallocation
will give the Group a greater flexibility in cash flow
management, enrich its financial resources, and at the
same time reserve the right to use the unutilised net
proceeds for its original business development plan
when suitable opportunities arise. This also enables
the Group to satisfy its operational needs while seizing
market opportunities and optimizing the Group’s
business model.

EEERAAD

FRrSEZFEREBENR

1.

12020 8H10H » AR B 5ERLEPoly
Platinum Enterprises Limited (T Poly

PlatinumzB BB EIE)) > EIb A AT E
B & #h[E E B TmPoly PlatinumBAE
1R E BB FEF 1% A FHE
HFOHASRBEABEIRT FIEM
BRI A B2 95 o

HZE2023F12831H A TEH
FPoly Platinum=R =18 FR18 8
BT 46RTT A RBIAEEHEE
2023F 12831 H KRB AP RIEZF
EAEBIABTRRDE  HP B
0.89f BT B M0.6BTHAENKE
AEBEZERIMEEETERER XA
N—REEEE (ENREBAMEM
H)) c BT RIEFEARDIIE
HEEEmAERARARABSEMRINIE
FHZ2ENOREERERAEFZER
NHEECEEBERATIEEES
MREREEEE TN E2HER
NEHBEER BIRNREEMNNSER
SHRFESERBAMERIEZEAR
HEETEXEBEREASH LA ELAER
HEEMSBERE - BLAERFHER
ANEREMREEEEREK.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEERAADN

As at 31

December 2023, the Group applied the

F22023%128318  AEE B Poly

proceeds of the Poly Platinum Subscription in the Platinums2 B B IRFT IS RIRIZ U T A
following manner: NEA
Amount of Amount of Amount of  Expected
utilised unutilised unutilised  timeline for
Amount of net proceeds net proceeds net proceeds  the use of
unutilised net during the as at asat the unutilised
Amount of the  proceeds as at year ended 31 December 31 December  net proceeds
net proceeds 1 January 31 December 2023 before the 2023 after the  after the
Intended use of net proceeds raised 2023 2023 Reallocation Reallocation  Reallocation*
#ZE2023%F
20235 128318 BEW0BE BEAXPEZ
1B18# 120235 R REERIN 12A310  EE&MERE
RRGHEFE BEFG R BBAME RXYREMT REEERNRBA FENES
HNEERE REFH HEBH REFH REFE  MRENERE  BER
HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million
BEEET BT BaEr BEEET BEEET
Financing the expansion of the Group's 295 182 33 149 - Not applicable
business in management and operation
of car parking assets in Guangdong-
Hong
Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area and
technology innovation of
the Group
FEARERRNEER TER
FEHTERERR
FEERIEN
Invest in the Group’s infrastructure asset - - - - 89 By theend
management business of 2025
REFEEZERRMEEEEEH 20255
FEA
General working capital - - - - 60 By the end
of 2025
-REEES 20255
FEH
Total 295 182 33 149 149
5t
# The Company intends to apply the remaining net proceeds RAB AR ERFTS RIS RER Lt

raised in accordance with the indicative timetable set forth

above.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 27 January 2021, the Company entered into the
placing agreement with Huatai Financial Holdings (Hong
Kong) Limited and BOCI Asia Limited (as placing agents)
to procure placees to purchase the total number of the
placing shares, being 210,000,000 shares, at a placing
price of HK$2.03 per placing share. On 3 February
2021, the Company completed the placing and the
subscription of 210,000,000 placing shares to not less
than six placees (“2021 Placing and Subscription”)
with net proceeds of approximately HK$419 million.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group applied the
proceeds of the 2021 Placing and Subscription in the
following manner:

EEERAAD

R2021FE1B27H » A AR B ER SR
PR (B ) B IR B K F 3k B R Z M
ERAE (BBERE STUREWHS
REAREANZRESHRERMHEZ
o E 3 AL & R H £ 51210,000,000
BRERMD REEASREERMDER
2.0375°R2021E283H » XA F 5%
| AR e e E R RS & & ET
210,000,000 R ERD > I 2 B H
FLEREDE (12021 ERBES
H)) FIERIBEFEANABELINE
FT o

20235 12831H REEE20218
ERDBBEEFAEFERZUTARH
A

Amount of
utilised net
Amount of proceeds Amount of  Expected
Amount  unutilised net during the  unutilised net  timeline for
of the net proceeds as at year ended proceeds as at  the use of the
proceeds 1January 31 December 31 December unutilised net
Intended use of net proceeds raised 2023 2023 2023  proceeds*
#20235 #HE2023%E BAKRHA
1B18 8 120235/ 1283180 FRRE
BEMRE ABAME BEBAMRE RBFEME FENED
FIeRERENEERSE MIERH MIERH MIERH MERE BRE
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
HEEET FEEET HEEET HEEET
Invest in the Group's parking 168 70 70 - Not applicable
business, used for the Group's existing
capital injection commitment, rental
deposit and the development of new car
parking assets
FEHTERZARHE HERER B
A UREESEENTRE
Invest in the Group's infrastructure 168 4 4 - Not applicable
asset management business
REAEEZARIMEEERER BA
General working capital 83 17 17 - Not applicable
—hREEES B
Total 419 91 91 -
Bt
# The full amount of the net proceeds of the 2021 Placing J KRB BAERKEFFE20218 & KR8

and Subscription have been applied in accordance with
(i) the indicative timetable set forth above, and (ii) in the
manner disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 3
February 2021.

fE BT 157 B F BB (i) F 35 85 B9
FFRIZR ; R(i)ZK R a1 20214283 H
BY 2\ & BT 35 BB 59 75 TH FEfE ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAADN

On 13 January 2023, the Company entered into the
placing agreement with Huatai Financial Holdings
(Hong Kong) Limited (as placing agent) to procure
placee to purchase the total number of the placing
shares, being 252,802,246 shares, at a placing price of
HK$1.80 per placing share. On 31 January 2023, the
Company completed the placing and the subscription
of 252,802,246 placing shares to Yt A RERNE
FfR/A3 (Sunshine Life Insurance Corporation Limited*),
all of which were subscribed with net proceeds of
approximately HK$448 million (“2023 Placing and
Subscription”).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group applied the
proceeds of the 2023 Placing and Subscription in the
following manner:

R2023FE 1813 AR HERZS
TR (A BRAE EEMRE) 5]
UREHZ RERKLEAZREE R
EBRBRTECEEEBRBERERSH
51252,802, 246D L EBAER
FLE R B 1.807T  7112023F 1 8
31H ARBRAEEHASZSHRER
MBERABB % K$17252,802,246
RBERM  T2HHEEREIE
(M2023F E KRB EIE)) » FREIE
BRER A ABMEA48E T

20235 12831H AEEE2023E
ERDBEEFAEFERZUTARH
A

Amount of
utilised net
proceeds Amount of  Expected
Amount of during the  unutilised net  timeline for
the net year ended  proceeds as at the use of the
proceeds 31 December 31 December unutilised net
Intended use of net proceeds raised 2023 2023  proceeds’
HE2023E HERHA
12023% A 12A3188 FERE
BEME EEERTE RBRAME BENES
FIRMERENEERE MIERHE MIERE MEFE BER
HKS$ million HK$ million HK$ million
HEEET HEEET HEEET
The Company's principal activities' potential 269 269 - Not applicable
capital injection, development, construction and
acquisition of assets and leasing expenditure
AERTEEBNETLE B ER ENELE
WEEEMNRAEZS
General working capital 179 179 - Not applicable
—pEEES el
Total 448 448 -
fast
& The full amount of the net proceeds of the 2023 Placing & KAFELHI EATE202300 & K58

and Subscription have been applied in accordance with
(i) the indicative timetable set forth above,; and (ii) in the
manner disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
31 January 2023.

FEFE I {370 EF BB 1% (i) 2 15 BF BY
PFRjZ ; R(i)AR R EFE20235F1531H
BY 2 &5 BT 1 BB B 57 T I ©

*  For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EMPLOYEES RELATIONSHIP

The Group had a total of 414 employees as at 31 December
2023. All subsidiaries of the Company promote equal
employment opportunities. The Group strictly complies with
regulations of state and local governments and adopts a
fair, just, and open recruitment process in order to provide
employees with an equal, diverse and discrimination-free
working environment. In the process of recruitment, training
and promotion, the Group provides equal treatment to all
candidates to safeguard employees’ rights and interests.

The Group's remuneration policy is to ensure that employees
receive a fair and competitive overall remuneration package.
Based on the principle of “competitive externally, fair
internally”, the Group has established a remuneration incentive
mechanism with “fixed salary as basis and performance linked
remuneration as main component” that is based on factors
such as position value, ability, and contribution to performance
etc, in order to motivate and retain existing employees. By
making full use of a variety of long and short term incentives,
the Group seeks to attract and retain talented employees to
achieve the Group’s strategic goals together.

Remuneration package is designed based on the practices of
the locations of the Group's various businesses.

Remuneration package for Hong Kong employees includes
salary, discretionary bonus, medical allowance, hospital
insurance and share incentive plan to subscribe for the
Company’s ordinary shares. All Hong Kong subsidiaries of the
Company provide retirement fund scheme for Hong Kong
employees as part of employee welfare.

EEERAAD

EER%

AEBNR2023F12831HEHERES14% -
KABIFTENBABYREFEEER S
BTHETEE—MEEZE - ZEEFTERN
TEIRIE  AEBBRETER KM 5 B
FEFHR O RIRAF -AE~ABHNIBER
R ARR - EHIIRSANBEY AEEH
FrBEBEEAE—EEC URERENER
R F g o

FEENMEBRREERRESNERNE
NERAEFRBN UTHINEAGFE -HRA
BRI RER BUTERBAUEE
EN - XEERMIAZNTUBEHESE
B ERUE R F Eh R A RS BOFR BN BN RS
ZOREMEBRRBREEE - FEERDE
BZREEANB TR WIIMEREES &
NWEITHEBRAEENBKER

4 & RIRIE A S B S 3 F A A M0 18
BIE 3t o

BEEEEZNEECEEHFE IS
RN ERFREABRDBBEAT G EA
ZRENBEE  AEBZRAET BB
AR EBERERHMEBRKRESE FRE
BA—EB1n e

Hbmm
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAADN

Remuneration package for Mainland China employees includes
salary, discretionary bonus, project bonus, medical allowance
and share incentive plan to subscribe for the Company’s
ordinary shares as part of employee welfare. In order to fully
cover the needs of employees, the Group also provides social
insurance welfare (i.e. pension insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, work injury insurance, maternity
insurance and housing provident fund) as well as annual
medical check for all employees according to state regulations.

The
scope of the participants include Executive Directors and core

The Company adopted a share incentive plan in 2021.

management of the Company, technical and business backbone
personnel of the Group. The purposes of the share incentive
plan are to align the interests of employees, Company and
the shareholders for the Group’s long-term development, to
attract, motivate and retain talent, to establish and complete
the long-term incentive mechanism of the Group, with a view
to achieving the objectives of further enhancing shareholders’
value. For further details, please refer to (i) the announcements
of the Company dated 29 July 2021, 12 October 2021, 5
November 2021, and 2 November 2022; and (ii) the circular of
the Company dated 15 October 2021.

In addition, to strengthen employees’ sense of belonging,
the Group arranges a variety of recreational activities for all
employees, including a sports meeting organised by the Group
to strengthen team cohesion, and a town hall meeting to
commend excellent individual and team performances.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROSPECTS

The infrastructure industry in China is rich and large in scale,
providing abundant basic assets for public offering REITs. With
the continuous improvement of the public offering REITs market
in China, the Group firmly believes that public offering REITs
have the potential of a RMB trillion dollar market, and remains
committed in its long-term investment strategy for REITs.
While achieving investment returns, the Group establishes its
strategic partnership ecosystem to achieve multi-dimensional
revenue innovation and to create value for the shareholders on
a continuous basis.

The Group’s capability in the field of REITs accumulated from
its years of operation allows it to seize the key window period
in 2024 by fully leveraging the Group's resource and territorial
advantages. The Group will fully layout key asset categories
such as parking assets, long-term rental apartment (guarantee
housing) and commercial assets with stable cash returns over
the long term and high potential in China, to make a gain
through long-term transformation and enhancement of asset
value. At the same time, the Group will further collaborate with
insurance funds, issuer funds, and government guided funds of
long maturity in the market that are optimistic about the public
offering REITs market and to establish long-term funds focusing
on investing in public offering REITs, investing in high-quality
infrastructure assets, and aiming in obtaining long-term stable
returns.

At the same time, with the rapid growth of the new energy
vehicle market, the Group will continue to increase investment
in the charging pile business, optimize the charging network
layout, improve service quality, and meet the growing market
demand. The new energy vehicle charging pile business will
become a new growing area for the Group and is expected
to create long-term stable and growing returns for the
shareholders.

EEERAAD

BE
TEERNERISHEEREE HAERX A
ABREITSIRETEEMEREE-EEPEH
REITsM B RN B ST > NEBRE AHEREITs
BEEARBEEATHENE TRABRE
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EEE.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAADN

The Group will continue to focus on improving the quality and
efficiency of its operations under the core business concept
of “precise investment + lean operation”. The Group will fully
explore and unleash the value attributes of its assets, and
provide one-stop solutions to asset holders throughout the
entire lifecycle. Meanwhile, the Group will further increase
its efforts in core capacity building, strategic acquisition and
integration of quality assets through self-construction, mergers
and acquisitions, and strategic investments, so as to identify
core potential assets with long-term value, expand the types of
assets, and enlarge the scale of assets. The Group will continue
to focus on improving its industry research capability, industrial
investment capability and precise exit capability to realize
stable returns, thereby creating create long-term returns for all
shareholders.
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The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate
governance standards and procedures to safeguard the interests
of all shareholders and to enhance shareholders value. The
Company has adopted and applied corporate governance
principles and practices that emphasise an effective Board, sound
risk management and internal control systems, transparency
and accountability as well as on-going communication and
engagement with shareholders and investors.

CORPORATE CULTURE

With the mission of promoting the cross-border integration
of infrastructure assets, enhancing the operation efficiency,
building new infrastructure and providing the leading
infrastructure asset management service, the Company has
integrated its culture so as to achieve the goal of becoming “the
infrastructure assets service provider in China who continuously
enhances the operating efficiency”, and has built a dedicated
and committed team by establishing common and positive
corporate values. The Company has also developed a flat
organizational structure, efficient operating rules, a professional
talented team, a market-oriented incentive mechanism and
collective values. These have promoted the efficiency, vitality
and pioneering spirits of the organization, guaranteed
strategic implementations and attained the operational targets.
During the year, the organizational structure of the Company
has continued to evolve, further empowering the business
through the establishment of a management system for
strategic customers, and forming a company-wide and grid-
based business development model of “regional and strategic
customer managers + product managers + rapid support from
powerful functional departments”. The Board and management
of the Company lead and shape the Company’s corporate
culture, which is based on the legal, ethical and responsible
approach of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) at
all levels, and have been acting in accordance with the values
of “customer first, team cooperation, teaching and learning
mutualism, quality first, outcome-orientation, full of passion,
open-mindedness and tolerance, embracing changes and loyal
dedication”. The Board leads the management to determine the
Group's purpose, values and strategic guidelines, as well as to
foster a culture of long-term sustainable business development,
so that every customer, partner, investor, supplier and employee
can benefit from the Group’s co-created values. The corporate
culture is developed and revised to reflect and align with its
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operational practices, workplace policies and practices, and
relationships with shareholders and other stakeholders (through
annual staff learning from the Chairman’s Statement on the
main strategies and directions of the Group’s business, self-
assessment, evaluation and appraisal during the year, and
reporting to superiors and/or management, including key
performance indicators). At the same time, the Board and
the management have created a culture of maintaining high
standards of corporate governance, as well as developed sound
and good corporate governance practices to safeguard the
interests of shareholders and other stakeholders.

CORPORATE STRATEGIES

With the vision of becoming “the infrastructure assets service
provider in China who continuously enhances the operating
efficiency”, the Group adheres to the core business concept of
“precision investment + lean operation” by taking advantage
of the vigorous development of Public Offering REITs market
in Mainland China. On the basis of focusing on investment
and operation of various infrastructure assets with long-term
value, the Group comprehensively uses Public Offering REITs
to serve customers in depth by integrating two characteristics
of Public Offering REITs including activating assets in building
new investing and financing model and improving efficiency of
asset operation. Relying on leading operation and management
experience and efficient resource integration capabilities, the
Group has gradually formed full-chain service capabilities of
FIME, which refers to fundraising, investment, management
and exit, and asset operation management in the infrastructure
assets field. To achieve this goal, the Group focuses on
disciplined management of revenue, profit, cost, capital,
investment returns and financing activities, achieving recurring
and sustainable earnings, cash flow and dividend payment
without affecting the Group’s financial strength and stability.
A discussion and analysis of the Group's performance and a
picture of the future are set out in the “Chairman’s Statement”
and “Management Discussion and Analysis” published in this
annual report. The Group has increasingly beefed up sustainable
development and has focused on five key areas of its sustainable
development objectives according to its own characteristics and
needs that align with the Group’s mission, including sustainable
development management, environmental protection, caring for
employees, business ethics and quality services and community
contribution during the year to keep in line with the Group's
strategic plan for sustainable development and corporate
responsibility, details of which are set out in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report separately published by the
Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with all the code provisions, and
where applicable, met the recommended best practices in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix C1 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) during the financial year
ended 31 December 2023.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

The Board currently comprises a total of twelve Directors, being
two Executive Directors, five Non-executive Directors and five
Independent Non-executive Directors. The list of Directors is
set out in the section headed “Report of the Directors” of this
annual report. In addition, an updated list of the Directors
and their roles and functions is published on the websites of
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Company
respectively.

The Board is characterised by wide diversity and has a balance
of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of
the business of the Company. The Directors’ biographical
information is set out in the section headed “Directors’

Biographies” of this annual report.

The Directors give sufficient time and attention to the affairs
of the Group. All Directors are required to disclose to the
Company at the time of their appointments and annually the
number and the nature of offices held in public companies
or organizations and other significant commitments with an
indication of the time involved.

Save for those as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’
Biographies” as set out on pages 11 to 19 of this annual
report, there are no other financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships among the Board members,
or other offices held in public companies or organizations and
other significant commitments.
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The Board includes a balanced composition of Executive and
Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) so that there is sufficient independent element on the
Board, which can effectively exercise independent judgement.

The Non-executive Directors are of sufficient number and
calibre for their views to carry weight. The functions of Non-
executive Directors include:

o participating in board meetings to bring an independent
judgement at Board meetings to bear on issues of
strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources,
key appointments and standards of conduct;

o taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests
arise;

o serving on Board committees if invited; and

o scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving

agreed corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring
performance reporting.

The Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-
executive Directors) have made a positive contribution to the
development of the Company’'s strategy and policies through
They
benefit the Board and the committees on which they serve with

independent, constructive and informed comments.

their skills, expertise, varied backgrounds and qualifications
through regular attendance and active participation in the
Board and committees meetings.

Composition of the Board is disclosed, and the Independent
Non-executive Directors are identified, in all corporate

communications to shareholders.
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Board diversity

The Company adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) on 28 August 2013 and revised on 25
August 2022, which sets out its approach to achieve diversity
on the Board with a view to achieving a sustainable and
balanced development of the Company. The Nomination
Committee reviews annually on the Board’s composition
under diversified perspectives, including but not limited to
progress on achieving any measurable objectives that are set
for implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and monitor the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy and will make
recommendations on any proposed changes thereof, if any, to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. The Company will also take into account factors
based on its own business model and specific needs from
time to time. The Board will take opportunities to increase
the proportion of female directors over time with the ultimate
goal of bringing the Board to gender parity through selecting
and making recommendation on suitable candidates for Board
appointments as its measurable objectives. The ultimate
decision will be based on the merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

During the year, the Board Diversity Policy has been reviewed
and the Board was of the view that it was still appropriate
and effective having considered the Board’'s composition
under diversified perspectives to progress on achieving any
measurable objectives that are set for implementing and
monitoring the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy.

The Group is committed to maintaining diversity (including
gender diversity) across all levels of the Group, ensuring
fair employment practices and offering equal employment
opportunities to recruit, promote and deploy employees based
on their skillset, abilities, compatibility with job requirements
and future development of the Group's businesses. The Board
currently has two female Directors (approximately 17%) out
of twelve Directors. As at 31 December 2023, approximately
41% of the total workforce (including senior management) are
female and approximately 59% are male. The overall gender
diversity of the Group is balanced.
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The Board Diversity Policy is posted on the website of the
Company.

Role and function of the Board and the management

The Board is responsible for overall strategic formulation and
performance monitoring of the Group. It delegates the general
powers to manage and oversee the operations of the Group
to the Executive Management Committee which comprises the
Chairman of the Board and core management of the Company.
In addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities
to the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. Further details of these committees are
set out in this report.

Board meetings

The Board meets regularly and endeavors to hold at least four
Board meetings a year at approximately quarterly intervals.
Additional meetings will be arranged, if and when required.
The Directors can attend meetings in person or through
electronic means of communication in accordance with the

articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”).

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in drawing up
the agenda of each Board meeting. A draft agenda of each
regular Board meeting will be sent to all Directors for review
before the agenda is issued and all Directors may request for
inclusion of other matters in the agenda. The Chairman will
take into account the matters proposed by the Directors and
where appropriate, approve the inclusion of such matters in
the agenda of the Board meeting. Generally, at least 14 days’
notice of a regular Board meeting is given and the Company
aims at giving reasonable notice for all other Board meetings.
The Company also aims at sending the agenda and the
accompanying board papers, which are prepared in a form
and quality sufficient to enable the Board to make informed
decisions on matters placed before it to all Directors 5 days for
regular Board meetings, or not less than 3 days for other Board
meetings as possible, before the intended date of a Board
meeting. Where queries are raised by Directors, prompt and full
responses will be given as possible.
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The Board has procedures in place to enable Directors to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expenses. The Board shall resolve to, upon
reasonable request, provide separate independent professional
advice to Directors to assist them in performing their duties to
the Company.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of
Board meetings and Board committees meetings, draft and final
versions of which would be sent to Directors for comments
and records respectively, within a reasonable time after each
meeting. Minutes are recorded in sufficient detail the matters
considered and decisions reached, including any concerns
raised by Directors or dissenting views (if any) expressed.
Minutes of Board meetings and Board committees meetings are
kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection by
any Director/committee member.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of
interest in a matter (including material transaction with
connected persons) which the Board has determined to be
material, the matter will be dealt in a physical Board meeting,
rather than a written resolution. Independent Non-executive
Directors who, and whose close associates, have no material
interest in the transaction should be present at that Board
meeting.

Except for those circumstances permitted by the Articles and all
applicable laws, rules and regulations, a Director shall not vote
on any Board resolution approving any contract or arrangement
or any other proposal in which he/she or any of his/her close
associates (or associates where the transaction or arrangement
is a connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules) has a material interest nor shall he/she be counted in the
quorum present at the relevant Board meeting.
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Attendance records

During the financial year ended 31 December 2023, the

Directors have made active contribution to the affairs of the

Group and 9 physical Board meetings were held to consider,

amongst other things, various projects contemplated by the

Group and to review and approve the quarterly, interim and

annual results of the Company.

The attendance records of Directors at Board meetings and

other committees meetings as well as general meeting during

the financial year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in the

i FEsC ik

REE2023F 1283 1HEBEER &S
BH2EAEENER TERTIRESE
g2 UETREEPORE AERBRETHNEE
BHE UKRBZMIERABNETEEE &
HEEREFEE-

HE2023F12A31HLEMBEER  EER
B HMZEGRBREARTZHFELHE
HAWE -

table below:
Number of meetings attended/held
HE/ BTEERY
Annual
Audit Nomination Remuneration General
Board Committee Committee Committee  Meeting Notes

Director BF Exg ERZEE® R4%ZE8Y% FHEEe RRBAEAY  MH
Executive Directors HITER
Zhao Tianyang (Chairman of the [EENACES ¥4

Board and Nomination Committee) — 184 ZEEL/E) 9/9 - 212 - 11
Xu Liang ®we 99 - - - 11
Li Wei £ 212 - 17 - 01
Zhang Meng RiE 22 - - - 0/1 2
Non-executive Directors EHTES
Wu Lishun S2IE 1" - - - - 3
Li Hao (Vice Chairman of the Board) — =% (EFE45/2/E) 8/9 - - - 0/1
Peng Jihai 55 777 - - 212 - 4
Ho Gilbert Chi Hang g E 9/9 6/6 = = 171
Liu Jingwei =R 9/9 6/6 - = 0/1
Independent Non-executive BiUEHTESR

Directors
Wang Xin (Chairman of Audit Iz

Committee) (BERERELRE) 99 6/6 212 4/4 17
Choi Fan Keung Vic RER 9/9 6/6 - 4/4 1
Deng Yougao HEE 9/9 6/6 212 = 11
Zhang Quanling (Chairlady of RRE

Remuneration Committee) FHWELEEE) 9/9 6/6 212 4/4 11
Zhuge Wenjing HENE 9/9 6/6 - - 11
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Notes:

1. Mr. Li Wei retired as an Executive Director and ceased to be a
member of the Nomination Committee with effect from the
conclusion of the annual general meeting held on 25 May 2023 (the
“2023 AGM").

2. Ms. Zhang Meng retired as an Executive Director with effect from
the conclusion of the 2023 AGM.

3. Mr. Wu Lishun was appointed as a Non-executive Director with
effect from 5 December 2023.

4. Mr. Peng Jihai was appointed as a Non-executive Director and a

member of the Remuneration Committee with effect from the
conclusion of the 2023 AGM.

Access to information

The Board and the committees are supplied with sufficient
explanation and information by the management to enable the
Board and the committees to make an informed assessment
of financial and other information put before it for approval.
The management provides and/or reports to all Board
members with monthly updates which give a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company's performance,
position and prospects in sufficient details to enable the Board
as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties. Where
any Director requires more information than is volunteered by
the management, each Director has the right to separately and
independently access to the Company’s senior management to
make further enquiries if necessary.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

Appointment of new Directors is a matter for consideration
by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee
will give adequate consideration to the Board Diversity
Policy and review the profiles of the candidates and make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and nomination of Directors.
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According to the Articles, any Director so appointed by the
Board shall hold office, in the case of filling a casual vacancy,
only until the next following general meeting of the Company
or, in the case of an addition to their number, until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company who shall
then be eligible for re-election at such general meeting. Every
Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. The Directors who are subject to retirement and
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company are set out on page 91 of this annual report.

Each of Mr. Wu Lishun and Mr. Peng Jihai confirms that he
(i) has obtained the legal advice in relation to the duties,
responsibilities and obligations as a director of a company
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange, and (ii)
understands his obligations as a Director.

The current Executive Directors have entered into new service
agreements with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
for a term commencing from 1 January 2020 and continuing
until terminated by either party by prior written notice. Such
service agreements set out the key terms and conditions of
their service.

All Non-executive Directors have entered into new engagement
letters with the Company for an initial term commencing on 1
January 2020 (except Ms. Zhuge Wenjing, Mr. Peng Jihai and
Mr. Wu Lishun whose term of engagement commenced from
their respective appointments as Independent Non-executive
Director and Non-executive Directors) and ending on 31
December 2020; with such appointment being automatically
renewed for successive 12-month periods. Such engagement
letters set out the key terms and conditions of their service.

On 15 February 2022, Mr. Li Hao, a Non-executive Director,

entered into a supplemental letter with the Company with
regards to his appointment as the Vice Chairman of the Board.

58 Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

RESEMR EOREHEFEZRMESE
EFEEAENESF HERELXRI T —RK
RAERIE, ERBNESENEHEME
ZENEF HEMELARD TERRBEF
RERIE THEEBRNZRRAG LBEE
- BREFAEVEIFHRERE—R-A
RERBNRBETZRRERAFAELRER
BEZEEHIINEAFREINR

REIBEEERTTBRAESBCEREN
R LT ARESNRSE BERS
AREBEREER ; R(NVABEMEAZEENE
Fo

RERNTEFHEEARTNET—HE2EMN
BABRTMBRF W% HERB202051
AR —ERFEERMN—HEELEEEE
MR- ZERBHZHI T RERFTHE

SRR MR o

FIEERITESHEARABRBEITNEE
Z RERBE202061818 (REEXB Y
T EEBLRERREIBLEIN  RETHE
ZEETFEANTESRBIUIFNTESES
H) E2020F 12831 HER  ZETHEE S
BES - BRI2ER ZEZEZHI THRSE
RIS = BRI R o

12202228158  FFRITEEFIEREMK
EZEIREFGREIRF —BELTATRITH
REEZE-



The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) effective on 1 January 2019 which sets
out the nomination procedures and criteria for the Nomination
Committee to select and recommend candidates to the
Board for consideration of appointment as Directors or for
recommendations to shareholders for election as Directors at
general meetings.

Pursuant to the Nomination Policy, prior to a meeting of the
Nomination Committee called for considering candidates for
directorship, the Nomination Committee will invite nominations
of candidates from the Board members or put forward
candidates. The Nomination Committee will consider the
nominated candidates at such committee meeting according
to the criteria of: reputation for integrity; accomplishment and
experience; compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;
and board diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. A selected candidate will then be recommended by
the Nomination Committee to the Board for consideration and
approval.

A shareholder of the Company may propose a person for
election as a Director in a general meeting pursuant to the
procedures set out in the Articles.
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Board Independence

The Board has established mechanisms (including a Board
composition of five Independent Non-executive Directors
(whose independence is being assessed based on Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and their respective length of services
with the Company) out of twelve Directors, and a majority
of all members of the Board committees are Independent
Non-executive Directors) as part of the Group’s governance
framework that underpin a strong independent Board, and
that independent views and input from Directors are conveyed
to the Board through active participation in Board and
Board committees meetings whereby their time devoted and
performance are being reviewed by the Nomination Committee
annually. The mechanisms are kept under regular review on an
annual basis to align with current or best practice to ensure
their effectiveness. During the year, the mechanisms have been
reviewed and the Board was of the view that they were still
appropriate and effective having considered their compliance by
the Company.

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed five Independent Non-executive
Directors and one of them has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

Pursuant to Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the number
of Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
represents more than one-third of the Board.

The Company has received from each of its Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company
considers that all Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent.
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The current composition of the Board committees consists
of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Remuneration Committee, comprising a majority of
with the Audit

Committee and the Remuneration Committee both chaired by

Independent Non-Executive Directors,

an Independent Non-executive Director. The Independent Non-
executive Directors receive fixed fees for their positions on
the Board and Board committees, but they are not entitled to
the Company's equity-based remuneration with performance-
related elements. The remuneration of the Independent
Non-executive Directors is also subject to a regular review
mechanism to maintain competitiveness and is commensurate

with their responsibilities and workload.

Nomination for re-election by shareholders of an Independent
Non-executive Director who has served on the Board for a
consecutive term of more than 9 years is not encouraged. Any
re-election of an Independent Non-executive Director who
has served the Board for more than 9 vyears, his/her further
appointment should be subject to a separate resolution to
be approved by shareholders accompanied by the disclosure
required under code provision B.2.3 of the CG Code. As at
the date of this annual report, none of the Independent Non-
executive Directors have served the Board for more than 9
years.

To facilitate attendance and participation at Board and Board
committees meetings, the Company plans meeting schedules
for the year in advance, and provides remote facilities for
attendance. The Independent Non-executive Directors are
encouraged to actively participate in Board and Board
committees meetings and express their views and opinions at
such meetings. The Nomination Committee reviews annually
the time devoted by each Independent Non-executive Director
who is required to retire and be re-elected, and the time
devoted to perform his or her duties on the Board and Board
committees, for consideration of nomination for re-election.
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All Directors (including the Independent Non-executive
Directors) may obtain advice from external independent
professionals, at the Company’s expense, in accordance with
specified procedures as they consider necessary to assist them
in discharging their duties.

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as
an Independent Non-executive Director at a general meeting,
the Company will state in the circular accompanying the notice
convening the relevant general meeting, amongst other things,
(i) the process used for identifying the individual and why the
Board believes he/she should be elected; (ii) the reasons why
the Nomination Committee and the Board consider he/she is
independent; (iii) the perspectives, skills and experience that he/
she can bring to the Board; and (iv) how he/she contributes to
diversity of the Board.

Insurance for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities

Appropriate insurance cover on Directors’ and officers’ liabilities
has been in force to protect the Directors and officers of the
Group from their risk exposure arising from the businesses of
the Group.

Directors’ training and professional development

Every newly appointed Director will be given an introduction
of regulatory requirements. Directors are continually updated
on the latest development of the Listing Rules, legal and
other regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and
upkeep of good corporate governance practice. Directors are
also encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company Secretary facilitates the induction and
professional development of Directors and the Company is
responsible for arranging and funding suitable training for the
Directors.
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During the financial year ended 31 December 2023, the

Company provided the Directors with online trainings and/

or presentations and discussions information and/or materials

by qualified professionals, regulatory authorities and/or

management team on regulatory updates and/or the Group’s

business and operation developments.

All Directors have provided to the Company their records of

training received during the financial year ended 31 December

2023, a summary of which is as follows:

EXEERRS

REZE2023E 1283 1HEHMBEER AR
ANEERECERNEEZABR EEHBE
R/REBEXBERAREN A AEAEER
HEBREEERBNEGEIIE HERK
SamiE R Rk o

FIEEZEERAARRHRKENEE2023F
1N2BE3MALEMBFERZEIHBINGE
C 1

Type of continuous professional

Reading materials
and updates

development programmes
RETXRRERES
Attending
presentations and/
Participating online  or discussions on

trainings and/ Group's business
or webinars on and operation
regulatory updates developments

BMAEMEREN HEFEEEBER
Z2ERENR/ EERRZER Notes

Name of Director S HEREREY RPEHAE &/ St Jiif=3
Executive Directors HTES

Zhao Tianyang PN v v v/

Xu Liang #"E v v/ v

Li Wei e = = / 1
Zhang Meng B - = 4 1
Non-executive Directors EHTES

Wu Lishun ERIE - 4 v/ 2
Li Hao o v v v

Peng Jihai EEE v v v 3
Ho Gilbert Chi Hang (GEJE / v 4

Liu Jingwei =R / v/ v/

Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BIUEMTES

Wang Xin IE v v v/

Choi Fan Keung Vic BER / 4 4

Deng Yougao HEE v / v

Zhang Quanling RRE v v/ v

Zhuge Wenjing HEEXE 4 4 4
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Notes: Mtat -
1. Mr. Li Wei and Ms. Zhang Meng retired as Executive Directors with 1.

effect from the conclusion of the 2023 AGM.

2. Mr. Wu Lishun was appointed as a Non-executive Director with 2.
effect from 5 December 2023.

3. Mr. Peng Jihai was appointed as a Non-executive Director with 3.
effect from the conclusion of the 2023 AGM.

FREERRERTRENTESEHE B
2023 EREFARGHERELER -

REIELEEEZEAIERITES > 52023512
HASHEEEM -

TEBRERZEAFRGTES B2023KRR
BERGEREER -

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE TEREESITHAES

The roles of chairman and chief executive are separate ANBEFFEESITHRAENBIIMRES
and exercised by different individuals to reinforce their M HEMNAEBRETED  THAB A LIE

independence and accountability. fFo

Mr. Zhao Tianyang is the Chairman who provides leadership HXBEEETTF I EASEEEET R
for the Board and ensures that the Board works effectively and FREZZAIME(E BETHBES -

performs its responsibilities.

The responsibilities of the Chairman include, amongst other EEMEE (Hh) @15 !

things:

o taking primary responsibility for strategies formulation e
and capital operation and approving the annual plan,
budget and performance management of the Group;

o taking primary responsibility for ensuring that good e
corporate governance practices and procedures are
established;

o ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed on e

issues arising at Board meetings, and ensuring that
the Directors receive, in a timely manner, adequate
information which must be accurate, clear, complete and
reliable;
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o encouraging all Directors to make full and active
contribution to the Board’s affairs and taking the lead
to ensure that the Board acts in the best interest of the
Company;

o encouraging Directors with different views to voice
their concerns, allowing sufficient time for discussion of
issues and ensuring that Board decisions fairly reflect the
Board’s consensus;

o ensuring that appropriate steps are taken to provide
effective communications with shareholders and that
their views are communicated to the Board as a whole;
and

o promoting a culture of openness and debate by
facilitating effective contribution of Non-executive
Directors in particular and ensuring constructive relations
between Executive and Non-executive Directors.

On 15 February 2022, Mr. Li Hao, a Non-executive Director,
was appointed as Vice Chairman to assist the Chairman of the
Board to handle key issues such as formulation of strategies
and major business opportunities of the Company.

Before the retirement of Mr. Li Wei as an Executive Director
at the conclusion of the 2023 AGM, Mr. Li Wei had the
overall chief executive responsibility for the Group’s business
development and day-to-day management. Afterwards and
throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2023,
no chief executive was appointed by the Company and
the Executive Management Committee of the Company is
responsible for the overall daily management and business
development of the Group, as well as leading the team to
implement formulated strategies.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2023, the
Independent Non-executive Directors have met the Chairman of
the Board at least once in the absence of the other Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the following committees to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist in the
execution of the Board’s responsibilities. All committees have
their own terms of reference. All resolutions passed by the
committees will be reported to the Board at the next regular
Board meeting.

Audit Committee

An Audit Committee of the Board was established in December
1998 with specific written terms of reference adopted on 1
January 2009 and revised on 1 April 2012, 21 December 2015,
1 January 2019 and 25 August 2022 respectively, which deal
clearly with its authorities and duties. The terms of reference of
the Audit Committee are posted on the websites of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include, amongst
other things:

o overseeing the relationship with and engagement of the
Company'’s auditor;

o reviewing the interim and annual financial statements of
the Group;
o reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies

and practices;

o reviewing the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems;

o reviewing the arrangements that employees of the
Company and other parties who have dealings with
the Group (such as customers, suppliers and any

other persons with whom the Group has business

relationships) can use, in confidence, to raise concerns
about possible improprieties in financial reporting,

internal control or other matters; and
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o making recommendations to the Board on the
formulation of the Company’s whistleblowing policy and
anti-corruption policy, and to review their effectiveness
on a regular basis.

The Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate
any activity within its terms of reference and the authority to
obtain external legal or other independent professional advice,
at the Company’s expense, to perform its responsibilities if it
considers necessary. It is given access to and assistance from
the employees and reasonable resources to perform its duties

properly.

The chairman of the Audit Committee is Dr. Wang Xin, an
Independent Non-executive Director, and the members of the
Audit Committee include Mr. Ho Gilbert Chi Hang and Mr. Liu
Jingwei, who are Non-executive Directors and Mr. Choi Fan
Keung Vic, Mr. Deng Yougao, Ms. Zhang Quanling and Ms.
Zhuge Wenjing, who are Independent Non-executive Directors.
None of the members of the Audit Committee are former

partners of the auditor of the Company.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2023, 6
physical meetings of the Audit Committee were held and
the attendance of each member is set out in the table above
under subsection “Attendance records” of the section headed

“BOARD OF DIRECTORS”.

The major work performed by the Audit Committee during the
financial year ended 31 December 2023 included, amongst
other things, the following:

o reviewed and made recommendation to the Board on
the proposed adoption of the non-assurance services
pre-approval policy by the Company;

o considered and approved the appointment of internal
audit service provider;
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o reviewed the reports on the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group for the financial
year ended 31 December 2022 prepared by an
independent advisory firm;

o reviewed and considered the audit plan and the
remuneration of the auditor of the Company for the
financial year ended 31 December 2022;

o reviewed the final results of the Group and the audit
report of the auditor of the Company for the financial
year ended 31 December 2022 and recommended the
reappointment of the auditor of the Company;

. reviewed and made recommendation to the Board on
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of
the Company for the financial year ended 31 December
2022;

o reviewed the interim results of the Group and the review
report of the auditor of the Company for the 6 months
ended 30 June 2023;

o reviewed the quarterly results of the Group for the 3
months ended 31 March 2023 and the 9 months ended
30 September 2023; and

o reviewed and approved the engagement of external
service provider by the compliance audit department of
the Company for the audit of the finance and operation
of the Company during the period from January 2018 to
June 2023.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2023, the Board
had no disagreement with the Audit Committee's view on the
selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external
auditor.
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Nomination Committee

A Nomination Committee of the Board was established in
February 2005 with specific written terms of reference adopted
on 17 February 2005 and revised on 1 April 2012, 28 August
2013, 12 July 2018 and 25 August 2022 respectively, which
deal clearly with its authorities and duties. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are posted on the
websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and
the Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include:

o reviewing the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at
least annually and making recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company'’s corporate strategy;

o identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and selecting or making recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

o making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or reappointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors;

o assessing the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors;

o reviewing the Board Diversity Policy annually and
reviewing the measurable objectives that have been
set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and
reviewing the progress on achieving the objectives;

o reviewing regularly the contributions made by the
Directors in discharging their responsibilities and
whether they have devoted sufficient time accordingly;
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o evaluating and reviewing the committee candidates for
the Executive Management Committee recommended by
the chairman of the Executive Management Committee
among Directors and senior management members
of the Company, taking into account the Company’s
operational and management needs, and making
recommendations to the Board; and

o performing the corporate governance responsibilities of
the Board.

The Nomination Committee follows the nomination procedures
and criteria set out in the Nomination Policy, as disclosed
above, in selecting and recommending candidates for
directorship to the Board for consideration.

The Nomination Committee has explicit authority to seek any
necessary information from the employees within its scope
of duties and the authority to obtain external independent
professional advice, at the Company's expense, to perform its
responsibilities if it considers necessary.

The chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. Zhao
Tianyang who is also the Chairman of the Board. Members of
the Nomination Committee include Dr. Wang Xin, Mr. Deng
Yougao and Ms. Zhang Quanling, all of whom are Independent
Non-executive Directors.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2023, 2 physical
meetings of the Nomination Committee were held and the
attendance of each member is set out in the table above
under subsection “Attendance records” of the section headed
“BOARD OF DIRECTORS”.
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The major work performed by the Nomination Committee
during the financial year ended 31 December 2023 included,
amongst other things, the following:

o considered and made recommendations to the Board on
the appointment of two Non-executive Directors and the
appointment of a committee member;

o assessed the independence of the Independent Non-
executive Directors;

o considered and made recommendations to the Board
on the re-election of Directors at the annual general

meeting;

o reviewed and monitored the Company’s compliance with
the CG Code;

° considered, reviewed and made recommendation to

the Board on the Corporate Governance Report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2022;

o reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board, the management structure and corporate
governance policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirement of the Company
and made recommendations on proposed changes
of Directors, committees members, management and
corporate governance policies, if any, to the Board; and

o reviewed the contributions made and time devoted by
the Directors in discharging their responsibilities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEERRS

ELEEENEHE2023F 128318 LB EAE
ERBTHNEERS (HhgiE uT:

. ERIEREZEMBIFATEER—%
ZEENENEFGIRHER

. SHZBIMIFRITESEREIL ;

. ERIEMPERRBFARGLERES
MEFTRUES

. BERAERARDETEXERTR
BB

. EZE WA TMEE2022F12831H
FTFEErEELARENEETTRLE

¥

¢ RHEFENRE REREN KA
ANEEERAR L EEATERE
NS ERREERTSENE
R LHRHEF ZRRNA EE
MEFRIRHES; R

. BNEFERITHERMMFHOEM
A B BFE o

HERZRAMRAT 2023FFR 71



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERERS

Remuneration Committee

A Remuneration Committee of the Board was established in
February 2005 with specific written terms of reference adopted
on 17 February 2005 and revised on 1 April 2012 and 25
August 2022 respectively, which deal clearly with its authorities
and duties. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are posted on the websites of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include:

o making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration of
Directors and senior management of the Group;

o reviewing and approving the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Company’s
goals and objectives, including year-end bonus, project
bonus, share awards for employee, cash/stock risk
premium and employee’s co-investment with the Group
under the incentive constraint mechanism;

o reviewing the ongoing appropriateness and relevance of
the Company’s remuneration policy and its structure of
directors and senior management;

o determining, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors
and senior management and making recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration of Non-executive
Directors;

o reviewing and approving compensation payable to
Executive Directors and senior management and
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or
removal of Directors for misconduct;

o ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates is
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration; and

o reviewing and/or approving the matters in relation to the

share schemes as described in Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules.
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The Remuneration Committee should consult the Chairman
of the Board about their remuneration proposals for other
Executive Directors. It has explicit authority to seek any
necessary information from the employees within its scope
of duties and the authority to obtain external independent
professional advice, at the Company's expense, to perform its
responsibilities if it considers necessary.

The Company has in place a Directors and Senior Management
Remuneration Policy for determining the remuneration of
the Directors and senior management on the basis of their
expertise and experience in the industry, the performance
and profitability of the Company and the Group, and with
reference to the remuneration benchmarks of other local and
domestic companies and the prevailing market conditions.
Executive Directors and senior management also participate in
discretionary bonus arrangements based on the performance of
the Group and individuals, as well as share incentive schemes
established by the Company from time to time; however, Non-
executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) are not eligible to participate in the share incentive
schemes of the Company.

Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-
executive Directors) are paid an appropriate level of fees for
their contribution to the Company in order to attract and
retain high-quality and experienced personnel to provide
independent perspectives and advice to the Board, and the
Remuneration Committee regularly conducts remuneration
reviews with reference to companies of similar business or size
and recommends appropriate remuneration adjustments to
the Board. Non-executive Directors who are invited to serve on
a committee of the Board will receive an additional standard
fee for that committee. If an individual Non-executive Director
is invited to participate in strategic formulation and business
development and other related duties of the Group, he or she
will be entitled to an annual discretionary bonus determined by
the Remuneration Committee and the Board with reference to
his or her contribution to the Company for the relevant period.
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The chairlady of the Remuneration Committee is Ms. Zhang
Quanling, an Independent Non-executive Director, and
members of the Remuneration Committee include Mr. Peng
Jihai who is a Non-executive Director, and Dr. Wang Xin and
Mr. Choi Fan Keung Vic who are Independent Non-executive
Directors.

Details of remuneration paid to the Directors for the financial
year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2023, 4 physical
meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held and
the attendance of each member is set out in the table above
under subsection “Attendance records” of the section headed
“BOARD OF DIRECTORS".

The major work performed by the Remuneration Committee
during the financial year ended 31 December 2023 included,
amongst other things, the following:

. determined, reviewed and made recommendations to
the Board on the terms of the engagement letters and
directors’ fees of the proposed Non-executive Directors;

o considered, reviewed and approved the performance
bonus distribution plan, including the incentive
mechanism and restraint mechanism, for the financial
year ended 31 December 2022 for all staffs of the
Group;

o considered, reviewed and made recommendations to
the Board on the proposals of (i) fulfillment of the first-
phase exercise conditions of the awards (including the
individual performance of the Executive Directors);
and (ii) the 2023 exercise conditions of individual
performance, under the share incentive plan;
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° considered, reviewed and made recommendations to the
Board on the application of exercise of the first-phase
awards under the share incentive plan;

o considered, reviewed and approved the standardized
operation proposal for the payroll in Hong Kong dollars
of the core management of the Company;

o considered, reviewed and approved the remuneration of
the Executive Directors and made recommendations to
the Board on the directors’ fees and meeting allowance
of the Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-
executive Directors for the financial year ended 31
December 2024; and

o considered, reviewed and approved the proposal on the
remuneration structure of the core management of the
Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary supports the Board by ensuring good
information flow within the Board and that the Board policy
and procedures are followed. The Company Secretary is also
responsible for advising the Board through the Chairman on
corporate governance and the implementation of the CG Code.
The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and
has day-to-day knowledge of the Group’s affairs.

All Directors also have access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary to ensure that Board procedures, and
all applicable laws, rules and regulations, are followed. The
selection, appointment and dismissal of the Company Secretary
are subject to the Board approval.

The Company Secretary has confirmed that she has taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the
financial year ended 31 December 2023.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Management is responsible for the design, implementation
and monitoring of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems, while the Board is responsible for overseeing
management in performing its duties on an ongoing basis. A
review of the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control system has been conducted annually by the Board to
cover all material controls, including financial, operational,
corporate culture, Board independence, Board diversity,
shareholders communication, environmental, social and
governance and compliance controls. Main features of the risk
management and internal control systems are described in the
sections below:

Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages
the risk associated with its business and operations. The system
comprises the following phases:

o Identification: ldentify type of significant risks, business
objectives and risks that could affect the achievement of
objectives (including but not limited to environmental,
social and governance risks).

o Evaluation: Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks
and evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

. Management:. Consider the risk responses, ensure
effective communication to the Board and on-going
monitor the residual risks (including but not limited to
environmental, social and governance risks).
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The management of the Company identifies relevant major
risks through the above risk management process. Compared
to last year, with the continuous changes in the external
environment and the continuous expansion of the business
scale and business scope of the Company, the management
believes that relevant major risks still exist, and the risk level
has not changed significantly. Among them, “policy compliance
risk” has increased to a certain extent, “core business risk” has
slightly decreased, and the level of other risks is roughly the
same.

Based on the risk assessment conducted in 2023, the following
significant risks to the Company have been identified and
management has developed and implemented corresponding
measures:

Policy Compliance Risk

In 2023, the State Council of the People’s Republic of
China, China Securities Regulatory Commission, and other
government authorities issued a series of regulatory policy
documents pertaining to the fund industry. These policies
specifically addressed areas such as fund raising, investment
operations, information disclosure etc., which introduced
more stringent management requirements. Consequently,
the fund industry witnessed the implementation of a robust
regulatory framework. The Company has established a
dedicated compliance team to closely monitor the requirements
and trends of the regulatory policy department, proactively
enhance the Company’s business strategies and compliance
measures, and regularly disclose results and business activities
in accordance with regulatory mandates. Simultaneously,
the Company organizes and conducts regular risk control
compliance training sessions aimed at improving employees’
comprehension and awareness of external laws, regulations,
and internal management requirements. This endeavor aims
to fortify business compliance, ensure that the Company’s
operations align with regulatory prerequisites, and guarantee
the steady progression of the Company’s business.
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Parking Operations Risk

The Company’s parking business investment construction and
operation management are encountering numerous challenges
due to the impact of slowdown in domestic economic and
inflationary pressure, resulting in a lower-than-expected
recovery of consumers’ travel demand. The Company is
diversifying its investments by investing in different types of
parking projects in different regions through various business
modes and balancing the uncertainties through various business
modes such as property rights holding, long term leasing,
and entrusted management etc. In terms of operation, the
Company improves its operation efficiency by upgrading the
intelligence level of parking lot operation while reducing the

manpower management costs at the same time.

Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission 2013 framework. The framework
enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness
and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The

components of the framework are shown as follows:

° Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group.

o Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks
should be managed.

o Control Activities: Actions established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management directives
to mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives are
carried out.
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. Information and Communication: Internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the

information needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

o Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to
ascertain whether each component of internal control is
present and functioning.

Internal Auditor

The Group’s compliance audit department analyzes and
independently evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems,
which should cover all significant controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls. The Group’s compliance
audit department is independent of the Group’s daily operation
and carries out appraisal of the risk management and internal
control systems by conducting interviews, walkthroughs and
tests of operating effectiveness.

The Group outsources its internal audit work to a globally
renowned professional internal audit services provider who
reports the results of the review to the Group’s compliance
audit department and makes recommendations to improve
the identified significant system deficiencies or control
weaknesses. An internal audit plan has been reviewed by
the Board. According to the established plan, review of the
risk management and internal control systems is conducted
annually, and the results are reviewed by the Audit Committee

and reported to the Board.

The Board is responsible for allocating adequate resources to
the relevant departments of the Group in order to address
significant internal control deficiencies identified during the
review of risk management and internal control system, and
promptly implement recommendations provided by the Group’s
compliance audit department.
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Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and ensuring review of the
effectiveness of these systems has been conducted annually
according to the requirements of the CG Code.

The Board, through its review and the review made by the
Group's compliance audit department, the management
and Audit Committee, concluded that the risk management
and internal control systems were effective and adequate.
Such systems, however, are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. It is also considered that the
resources, staff qualifications and experience of relevant staff
were adequate and the training programs and budget provided
were sufficient.

INSIDE INFORMATION DISCLOSURE POLICY

The Company adopted an inside information disclosure
policy (the “Inside Information Disclosure Policy”) on
21 December 2015 which sets out the procedures for the
handling and dissemination of inside information with a view
to preventing uneven, inadvertent or selective dissemination of
inside information and ensuring shareholders and the public are
provided with full, accurate and timely information about the
activities and the financial condition of the Group. The Inside
Information Disclosure Policy covers the following:

o setting out the processes for identifying, assessing and
escalating potential inside information to the Board;

o setting out the responsibilities of officers in preserving
the confidentiality of inside information, escalating
upwards any such potential information and cascading
down the message and responsibilities to relevant staff;
and

o identifying who the Company’s authorised

spokespersons are and their responsibilities for
communications with stakeholders of the Company.
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In addition, the Company has communicated to all relevant
staff regarding the implementation of the Inside Information
Disclosure Policy.

The Board considers that the Company’s existing measures are
effective and appropriate compliance mechanisms to safeguard
the Company and its officers in discharging their disclosure
obligations in respect of inside information.

The Inside Information Disclosure Policy is posted on the
website of the Company.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Company adopted a whistleblowing policy (the
“Whistleblowing Policy”) on 22 March 2012 and revised on
25 August 2022 which sets out the procedures for reporting
concerns about malpractice or impropriety in all matters related
to the Group by employees at all levels and other parties who
have dealings with the Group in any reporting format.

In addition, details of the reporting and investigation
procedures of the Whistleblowing Policy have been
communicated to all staffs of the Group through internal
seminars.

The Whistleblowing Policy is posted on the website of the
Company.

ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

The Company adopted an anti-corruption policy (the "Anti-
corruption Policy”) on 25 August 2022 which provides
guidance to all Directors, management and employees of the
Group on how to deal with corruption, bribery and related
matters that may arise in the course of business. The Group
is committed to complying with all applicable laws and
regulations in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates in
order to prevent corruption and bribery in any of its business
transactions.
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In addition, interpretation and illustration on the scope,
applicability and enforceability of relevant laws and regulations
of anti-corruption in the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates have been communicated to all staffs of the Group
through internal seminars.

The Anti-corruption Policy is posted on the website of the
Company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules as a code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. A reminder
is served by the Company to each Director four times a year of
the black-out period that Directors cannot deal in the securities
and derivatives (if any) of the Company.

Directors are required to notify the chairlady of the
Remuneration Committee and to receive a dated written
acknowledgement before dealing in the securities and
derivatives (if any) of the Company. In the case of the chairlady
of the Remuneration Committee herself, she must notify a
designated Executive Director and receive a dated written
acknowledgement before any dealing.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Directors have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Company has also established a written guideline no less
exacting than the Model Code for securities transactions by
relevant employees (including any employee of the Company
or director or employee of a subsidiary who, because of such
office or employment, is likely to possess inside information in
relation to the Company or the securities of the Company). No
incidence of non-compliance was noted by the Company.
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AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

During the financial year ended 31 December 2023, the
remuneration paid/payable to the Company's auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, is set out as follows:
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5,239

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
financial statements of the Group which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group on a going concern
basis and in presenting the annual and interim reports and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, the
Directors aim to present a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of the Group’s position and prospects.

The statement of the auditor of the Company,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, about its reporting responsibilities on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out in
the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 138 to 151 of this
annual report.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company adopted a shareholders’ communication policy
(the “Shareholders’ Communication Policy”) on 22 March
2012 and updated on 31 March 2014, 11 July 2019 and 25
August 2022 respectively, which reflects the current practices
of the Company for communication with its shareholders and
investors. Such policy aims at ensuring the shareholders and
investors of the Company are provided with ready, equal and
timely access to balanced and understandable information
about the Company, in order to enable shareholders to exercise
their rights in an informed manner, and to allow shareholders
and investors to engage actively with the Company. The
Board will review the implementation and effectiveness of the
Shareholders” Communication Policy on an annual basis.

During the year, the Shareholders” Communication Policy
has been reviewed and the Board was of the view that it
was still appropriate and effective having considered its
communication channels through which the Investor Relations
team and management of the Company can conduct ongoing
communications with shareholders and investors on business
strategy and development of the Group.

The Shareholders’ Communication Policy is posted on the
website of the Company.

The Company has adopted a dividend policy for delivering
sustainable returns to shareholders whilst retaining adequate
reserves for the Group’s future development, details of which
are disclosed under the section headed “FINAL DIVIDEND" of
the Report of the Directors of this annual report.

To foster effective communications with the shareholders
and investors, the Company provides extensive information
in its annual report, interim report, results announcements,
environmental, social and governance report and
announcements, and organizes various regular events, including
investor/analyst briefings and one-on-one meetings, roadshows,
media interviews and marketing activities for investors and
specialist industry forums etc. during the year. All corporate
communications are also available on the Company's website
at www.shouchengholdings.com and on the website of Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited at www.hkexnews.hk.
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The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful
forum for shareholders to exchange views with the Board. All
Directors will make an effort to attend. The external auditor
is also available at the annual general meeting to address
shareholders’ queries. In case of any general meeting to
approve a connected transaction or any other transaction that
is subject to independent shareholders’ approval, members of
the independent Board committee will also make an effort to
attend to address shareholders’ queries.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2023, 1 general
meeting, being the 2023 AGM, was held.

The auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers,
attended the 2023 AGM. Details of the attendance of each
Director at the 2023 AGM are set out in the table above
under subsection “Attendance records” of the section headed
“BOARD OF DIRECTORS”.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2023, the
notice of 2023 AGM despatched by the Company to its
shareholders was sent at least 21 days before the meeting.
Separate resolutions were proposed at the 2023 AGM on
each substantially separate issue, including the re-election
of individual retiring Directors, and all resolutions put to
the vote of the 2023 AGM were taken by way of a poll. At
the 2023 AGM, the chairman of the meeting explained the
procedures for conducting a poll and answered questions from
shareholders on voting by poll, if any. The results of the poll
were published on the websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited and the Company respectively.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Convene a general meeting

Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders of the Company having a right to vote
at general meetings can request the Directors to call a general
meeting pursuant to Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The request must
state the general nature of the business to be dealt with at
the meeting and may include the text of a resolution that may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting.
Such request must be authenticated by the shareholder(s)
making it and sent to the Company in hard copy form or in
electronic form for the attention of the Company Secretary.

Put forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings

Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders of the Company or at least 50
shareholders who have a relevant right to vote at a general
meeting can request the Company to circulate to the
shareholders of the Company a statement of not more than
1,000 words with respect to a matter mentioned in a proposed
resolution or other business to be dealt with at that meeting
pursuant to Section 580 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The expenses shall be borne
by the shareholder(s) making the request unless the meeting
concerned is an annual general meeting and the statement is
received by the Company in time for sending with the notice
of the meeting. The request must identify the statement to be
circulated, and must be authenticated by the shareholder(s)
making it and sent to the Company in hard copy form or in
electronic form for the attention of the Company Secretary at
least 7 days before the meeting to which it relates.
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Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders of the Company or at least 50
shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at an
annual general meeting can request the Company to give to
the shareholders of the Company notice of a resolution that
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting pursuant to Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The request must
identify the resolution of which notice is to be given, and must
be authenticated by the shareholder(s) making it and sent to
the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form for the
attention of the Company Secretary no later than 6 weeks
before the annual general meeting to which the requests relate,
or if later, the time at which notice of the meeting is given.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Specific enquiries or suggestions by shareholders can be sent in
writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at our registered
office or by email to our Company. In addition, shareholders
can contact Tricor Tengis Limited, the share registrar of the
Company, if they have any enquiries about their shareholdings
and entitlement to dividend. Relevant contact details are set
out on page 3 of this annual report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the financial year ended 31 December 2023.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHREE

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) present their
report and the audited financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal business of the Group is infrastructure asset
management. The principal activity of the Company is
investment holding. The activities of its principal subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures are set out in notes 17 and 18 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023
and the state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in
the audited consolidated financial statements on pages 152 to
312 of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The board of Directors (the “Board”) considers sustainable
returns to shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
whilst retaining adequate reserves for the Group’'s future
development to be an objective. Under the dividend policy
adopted by the Company, dividends may be recommended,
declared and paid to Shareholders from time to time. In
summary, the declaration of dividend is subject to the discretion
of the Board, taking into consideration of, among others, the
following factors:

. financial results;

. Shareholders’ interests;

o general business conditions and strategies;
° capital requirements;

o taxation considerations;
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o contractual, statutory and regulatory restriction, if any;
and
o any other factors that the Board may deem relevant.

Where a dividend is being declared in any particular financial
year, the total amount of payment shall not exceed 50% of the
accumulated profits available for distribution during such given
financial year.

The Board has resolved to recommend a final dividend in
the total amount of HK$161 million for the year ended
31 December 2023 (2022: HK$400 million), payable to
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company at the close of business on Tuesday, 16 July
2024. Based on 7,307,655,440 ordinary shares of the Company
(the “Shares”) in issue as at the date of this report, such a
final dividend would amount to HK2.20 cents per Share (2022:
HK5.40 cents per Share).

Subject to Shareholders’ approval of the proposed final
dividend at the Company’s annual general meeting to be
held on Thursday, 23 May 2024 (the “2024 AGM"), the final
dividend is expected to be paid on Monday, 5 August 2024.
In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s share registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited
at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 16 July 2024 for
registration.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 20 May 2024 to Thursday, 23 May 2024 (both days
inclusive) to determine the Shareholders’ entitlement to attend
and vote at the 2024 AGM. During such period, no transfer
of shares of the Company will be registered. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the 2024 AGM, all transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s share registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited at 17/
F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 17 May 2024 for registration.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023 is set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 8 to 10 and pages 20 to 48 of this annual report
respectively.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out
on page 313 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year are set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DONATIONS

No charitable donation was made by the Group during the year
(2022: Nil).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
are:

Executive Directors

Zhao Tianyang

Xu Liang

Li Wei (retired with effect from the conclusion of the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 25 May 2023
("2023 AGM"))

Zhang Meng (retired with effect from the conclusion of the
2023 AGM)

Non-executive Directors

Wu Lishun (appointed with effect from 5 December 2023)

Li Hao

Peng lJihai (appointed with effect from the conclusion of the
2023 AGM)

Ho Gilbert Chi Hang

Liu Jingwei

Independent Non-executive Directors

Wang Xin

Choi Fan Keung Vic
Deng Yougao
Zhang Quanling
Zhuge Wenjing

In accordance with article 93 of the Company’s articles of
association (the “Articles”), Mr. Wu Lishun will hold office
until the 2024 AGM and being eligible, offer himself for
re-election at the 2024 AGM. In accordance with article 102(A)
of the Articles, Mr. Zhao Tianyang, Mr. Li Hao, Mr. Ho Gilbert
Chi Hang and Mr. Liu Jingwei will retire and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming 2024 AGM.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year and up to the date of this report, directors of
the subsidiaries of the Company include Li Wei, Zhang Meng,
Bai Jie, Chan Weng Mui, Chen Hongyuan, Chen Zhichao, Di
Jiaping, Ding Li, Dong Ying, Du Feng, Fu Qiang, Gao Ying,
Gao Yun, Harada Masanori, Jia Tingting, Kang Xu, Li Jinhui,
Li Na, Lian Feng, Liang Lixia, Lin Yan, Liu Hongyi, Liu Manjia,
Liu Quanfeng, Lu Peng, Lv Pengji, Meng Ziyang, Ni Beibei,
ONG KAH KOK, Peng Cheng, Ren Wei, Shen Zhuolin, Song
Changhai, Song Chunsheng, Tian Xiangjun, Wang Jianguo,
Wang Junfa, Wang Sheng, Xia Xiaohong, Xue Jiangzhou, Yang
Di, Yang Dongmei, Yang Shiying, Ye Qian, Zhang Baogiang,
Zhang Bei, Zhang Haitao, Zhang Jianxun, Zhang Jiben, Zhang
Jun, Zhang Lan, Zhang Qi, Zhao Weixu, Zhao Xiaotong, Zhao
Yuntao, Zhao Yuzhen, Zheng Yuegiang and Zhu Yu.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES AND INSURANCE

As permitted by the Articles, every Director or other officers
of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which
he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the
duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
2024 AGM has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the
Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix C3 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were
as follows:
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Long positions in the Shares and underlying shares

of the Company

REABRRG KBRS ZIFE

% of the total

number of

Shares in issue
as at 31.12.2023

(Note 2)
Number of Shares and 720234
underlying shares held 12A31H
Capacity in which (Note 1) LB ETRM
Name of Director interests were held HERMREAKGH®E wyzEDL
EENA HEEDZZER HizE1) Hiz22)
Zhao Tianyang Beneficial owner Shares: 100,000 0.0014
HXE BEnBEAA B1n
Share options: 7,000,000 0.0950
B An HAE
Xu Liang Beneficial owner Shares: 700,000 0.0095
Hr= ERBEEA 1
Share options: 5,000,000 0.0678
P17 BRHE
Liu Jingwei Beneficial owner Shares: 4,033,200 0.0547
22’ ERBEEA B
Wang Xin Beneficial owner Shares: 40,000 0.0005
T= BERBEBA BAn
Interest of spouse Shares: 200,000 0.0027
[ L B5
Notes: Htat
7. Each share option entitles the holder thereof to purchase 1 Share 1. RIEF2021F 11550 FH)51 2] (€%

pursuant to the terms of the Plan (as defined and described in the
section headed “Share Incentive Plan” below) which was granted on
5 November 2021.

2. As at 31 December 2023, the total number of issued Shares was 2.

7,369,975,440.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates had registered any interests or short positions in the
Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed in the sections headed “DIRECTORS’
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES”, “SHARE
INCENTIVE PLAN" and “BONUS AWARD SCHEME" herein,
at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, its parent company or any subsidiary of its parent
company a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
or their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts that are significant
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, its parent company or any subsidiary of
its parent company was a party and in which a Director or his/
her connected entities had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, the following
Directors have declared interests in the following businesses
(other than those businesses where the Directors were
appointed as directors to represent the interests of the
Company and/or any member of the Group) which are

considered to compete or are likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group during the year:

Description of businesses
Name of entity of the entity which are
whose businesses are
considered to compete

or likely to compete

considered to compete
or likely to compete
with the businesses

with the businesses of the Group

BRI ERB AR T

of the Group EBWEA

EBRERAHRAER BAEEES
Name of Director EBEBRRE A ¥ PX R 3 3 T AERE B
3 BEBRPZERBZLE BEZEBZER

ESNBBRBZER

BB EHRAESI10E U TEFEEERSE
RUTEBF ARG (LA BEEEFESES
BRRABZESFURKRARA KR, NAEEE
ERAREADBRZET) MEFEBRSE
PAREFERNEAEREFBREZNEE

Nature of
interest of

the Director

in the entity
EENERER
ZHEZZHE

Zhao Tianyang
it X 5

Wu Lishun
=288

Peng Jihai

=+
EA=NS

Ho Gilbert Chi Hang

k=l EREESERARAT! FHE5EE
# Such businesses may be carried out through the subsidiaries or — * HEEH

associates of the entity concerned or by way of other forms of

investments.

Beijing Shougang Fund Co., Ltd.
("Shougang Fund”)*

ITREHREEBRAR
(MeafEx)?

Beijing State-owned Capital Operation
and Management Company Limited*
ITREBEERNEEERARAT"

Sunshine Asset Management
Corporation Limited*

BAREEEERNBRAF

Urban Parking Limited*

96 Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

Fund management

HEEEE

Fund management

BT EE

Asset management
BEEE

Car park management

Vice Chairman and
General Manager
BEERFAKE

Party Secretary and
Chairman

ELZEIREER

Director and
General Manager
EERALE

Director
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The Board is independent from the boards of the above-
mentioned entities and is accountable to the Shareholders.
Coupled with the diligence of its Independent Non-executive
Directors whose views carry significant weight in the Board's
decisions, the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of
these entities.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS UNDER THE SFO

So far as is known to the Directors and chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 December 2023, the following persons
(other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) had
or deemed to have interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO:
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Long positions in the Shares

REABRGBZHEE

% of the

total number of
shares in issue
as at 31.12.2023

Capacity in which Number of 20235 12A31H
Name of shareholder interests were held shares held HERTRG Notes
RERLE REREZZSR RERMHE wWyzEDL Hat
Shougang Group Co., Ltd. (“Shougang Group”) Interests of controlled 1,817,411,917 24.6597 1,7
BRNEEERAR ((HHER)) corporations
REFEZ EE
ORIX Corporation Interests of controlled 1,044,081,679 14.1667 2,7
B TtRBAERAR corporations
REFE R
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II) Limited Interests of controlled 835,485,105 11.3363 37
corporations
TEEEzER
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited Interests of controlled 835,485,105 11.3363 37
corporations
REFEZ EE
Rocket Parade Limited Beneficial owner 535,485,105 7.2658 37
BmEAA
Beijing State-owned Capital Operation and Interests of controlled 728,035,520 9.8784 4,7
Management Company Limited corporations
TREFEARELEERRAT REFE R
Sunshine Insurance Group Company Limited Interests of controlled 527,360,246 7.1555 57
BHRREBRRNERAR corporations
TEEEzER
HOPU Investments Co. Il Ltd Interests of controlled 507,072,891 6.8803 6,7
corporations
A
HOPU USD Master Fund Ill, L.P. Interests of controlled 507,072,891 6.8803 6,7
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Notes:

Shougang Group is interested in all the Shares held by its indirect
subsidiaries, namely, China Gate Investments Limited (holding
899,050,068 Shares), Lyre Terrace Management Limited (holding
46,000 Shares) and Jingxi Holdings Limited (holding 918,315,849
Shares).

ORIX Corporation is interested in all the 300,748,346 Shares and
743,333,333 Shares held by its direct wholly-owned subsidiary ORIX
Asia Capital Limited and indirect wholly-owned subsidiary Mountain
Tai Peak | Investment Limited, respectively.

Rocket Parade Limited is wholly owned by NWS FM Limited which
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of NWS FM Holdings Limited. FTLife
Insurance Company Limited is wholly owned by Earning Star Limited
which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Success Idea Global Limited.
Both NWS FM Holdings Limited and Success Idea Global Limited
are wholly-owned subsidiaries of NWS Service Management Limited
(incorporated in the British Virgin Islands) ("NWS Service”), which
was accordingly deemed to be interested in 535,485,105 Shares
held by Rocket Parade Limited and 300,000,000 Shares held by
FTLife Insurance Company Limited. NWS Service is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of NWS Service Management Limited (incorporated in the
Cayman Islands), which is wholly owned by NWS Holdings Limited
which is held as to 74.79% by Century Acquisition Limited, which
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited
(“Chow Tai Fook Enterprises”). Chow Tai Fook Enterprises is
wholly owned by Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited, which is held as
to 81.03% by Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited, which in turn is held
as to 48.98% and 46.65% by Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings)
Limited and by Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings Il) Limited
respectively.

Beijing State-owned Capital Operation and Management Company
Limited is interested in 728,035,520 Shares held by its indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary Beijing State-owned Capital Operation and
Management Investment and Operation Limited.

mat -

4.
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5. Sunshine Insurance Group Company Limited is interested
in 274,558,000 Shares and 252,802,246 Shares held by its
96.31%-owned subsidiary Sunshine Property and Casualty Insurance
Company Limited and 99.99%-owned subsidiary Sunshine Life
Insurance Corporation Limited, respectively.

6. HOPU Investments Co. lll Ltd ("HOPU Investments”) is interested
in 507,072,891 Shares held by its indirect wholly-owned subsidiary,
Soteria Financial Investment Company Limited (“Soteria Financial
Investment”). Soteria Financial Investment is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Soteria Financial Holding Company Limited, which in
turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HOPU USD Master Fund Ili, L.P,
a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of HOPU Investments.

7. As at 31 December 2023, the total number of issued Shares was
7,369,975,440.

December 2023, the
Company had not been notified of any person (other than

Save as disclosed above, as at 31

a Director or chief executive of the Company), who had any
interest or short position in the Shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'S INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “CONNECTED
TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS” below, at no time during the year had
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and the controlling
shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) or any of
its subsidiaries entered into any contract of significance or
any contract of significance for the provision of services to
the Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling
shareholder or any of their subsidiaries.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, there
is a sufficiency of public float of the Company’s securities as
required under the Listing Rules as at the date of this annual
report.

SHARE INCENTIVE PLAN

A share incentive plan (the "Plan”) was adopted by the
Company on 3 November 2021, the purposes of which
are to align the interests of employees of the Group, the
Company and the Shareholders for the Company's long-
term development, to attract, motivate and retain talents, to
establish and improve the long-term incentive mechanism of
the Company, with a view to achieving the objectives of further
enhancing Shareholders’ value.

The selected employees under the Plan are limited to Directors
and senior management, core management, technical and
business personnel of the Company and its branches and
subsidiaries, but excluding non-executive Directors or other
personnel subject to restrictions of applicable regulations (the
“Plan Selected Employees”).

Subject to any early termination in accordance with the Plan,
the Plan shall be valid and effective for a term of 6 years from
5 November 2021, being the date on which the Board resolved
to make the initial grant of award (the “Award”) of right to
purchase Shares at the agreed exercise price within the exercise
period, subject to fulfillment of the relevant exercise conditions,
pursuant to the Plan (the “Share Options”), and ending on 4
November 2027 (both dates inclusive).

The total number of Shares which may be awarded upon the
exercise of Share Options granted under the Plan shall be no
more than 173,139,000 Shares (the “Plan Awarded Shares”),
representing approximately 2.37% of the issued Shares as at
the date of this annual report. The maximum number of Shares
awarded and to be awarded upon the exercise of Share Options
(including exercised or unexercised) granted to any individual
Plan Selected Employee under the Plan shall be no more than
1% of the total number of issued Shares.
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Pursuant to the Plan, Shares for the Award shall be acquired
in the secondary market by the trustee utilizing the Company’s
internal resources provided to the trustee to satisfy the transfer
of Shares to the Plan Selected Employees upon the exercise of
Share Options granted under the Plan. The trustee shall hold
such Shares on trust pursuant to the trust deed entered into
with the Company and as amended from time to time until the
Shares are vested in the Plan Selected Employees in accordance
with the Plan. The trustee shall not exercise any voting rights
in respect of any Shares held under the trust (the “Shoucheng
Employee Share Award Trust”) (including but not limited to
the Shares in respect of the Award, any bonus Shares and scrip
Shares derived therefrom).

The exercise price of a Share Option under an Award shall not
be lower than any nominal value of the Shares and shall not
be lower than the higher of the following: (1) the closing price
of the Shares on the relevant grant date; and (2) the average
closing price of the Shares on the 5 trading days prior to the
relevant grant date.

The Share Options under an Award shall only be exercised
on a trading day (unless prohibited by the relevant Listing
Rules) after 24 months from the relevant grant date. The
exercise of any Share Option by a grantee shall be subject to
the satisfaction of the exercise conditions as specified in the
Plan, including, among others, the Company’s performance
and the individual grantee’s performance of each year during
the grant and the exercise periods. In respect of each grant,
upon satisfaction of the exercise conditions as provided
under the Plan, the Share Options under an Award shall
become exercisable in average in three exercise periods in
the proportion of 33%, 33% and 34% respectively. The Plan
Selected Employee shall exercise all his/her Share Options by
the last trading day on the 60th month from the relevant grant
date.
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The movements in the Share Options granted during the year EREFNRMEAESH B RAOT
are set out as follows:

Number of Share Options

RirHEHE
Outstanding Outstanding
as at as at
1 January 31 December
2023 2023
BE Granted BZE
20235F during 2023%F
Category of Plan Selected Employees/Name 1818 the year Exercised Lapsed 12A31H
HEETEREER /e RITHE REART g7 BXY KTHE
Directors:
g%
Zhao Tianyang 7,000,000 - - - 7,000,000
BRI
Xu Liang 5,000,000 = = = 5,000,000
Li Wej ore2 9,000,000 - - - 9,000,000
A {5 i)
Zhang Meng e 7,000,000 - - - 7,000,000
o )
Five highest paid individuals (excluding one Director and 13,000,000 - - - 13,000,000
two retired Directors of the Company) during 2023 e 3
ROBEAFHESNELEA FEREFRT-2EER
MEBRAES) W)
Other employees: 123,300,000 - - 40,080,000 83,220,000
Hittfes :
Total 164,300,000 et - - 40,080,000 124,220,000
L W)

Further details of the Plan are set out in note 23 to the A BINELHEBEHNESHERRWME

consolidated financial statements. 230

Notes: gz

1. On 5 November 2021, 138,500,000 Share Options (each Share 1. F2202141145H 7 138,500,00017 i 17 B 1#
Option entitling the holder thereof to purchase 1 Share) were (B RGHRERFESFENBE1RRG
granted to 50 Plan Selected Employees under the initial grant of BI1EF) IRIF A 51209 E X2 TR E1.624
the Plan at an exercise price of HK$1.624 per Share (subject to BITHIITEEE (IRIEARGTZIER T 178
adjustments pursuant to the Plan, details of such adjustments are B ZE B EH AL HAIS2021410
set out in the circular of the Company dated 18 October 2021). The BI18HBIERA) BIE 7505 51 ZIEEES °
Share Options shall be valid commencing from 5 November 2021 BRI EI#EE20214F11 550 F20264 1154
and ending on 4 November 2026. The closing price of the Shares on HIEBE R o R1IGF2021E1154H B 1875
4 November 2021 was HK$1.620. 1.620;&7T °
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On 2 November 2022, 25,800,000 Share Options were granted to
20 Plan Selected Employees under the reserved grant of the Plan
at an exercise price of HK$1.560 per Share (subject to adjustments
pursuant to the Plan, details of such adjustments are set out in the
circular of the Company dated 18 October 2021). The Share Options
shall be valid commencing from 2 November 2022 and ending on
1 November 2027. The closing price of the Shares on 1 November
2022 was HK$1.440. Due to the change of value in the grant
of Share Options upon verification, 400,000 Share Options were
deducted from the total proposed reserved grant of 26,200,000
Share Options as stated in the announcement of the Company
dated 2 November 2022.

Please refer to note 23 to the consolidated financial statements for
the fair value of the Share Options at the date of grant and the
accounting standard and policy adopted.

2. Mr. Li Wei and Ms. Zhang Meng retired as Executive Directors with
effect from the conclusion of the 2023 AGM.

3. Three of the five highest paid individuals during the year ended 31
December 2023 were one Director and the two retired Directors
of the Company, whose interests in the Share Options had been
disclosed separately under “Directors” in the table above and not
aggregated to the “Five highest paid individuals during 2023". The
five highest paid individuals during the year in aggregate amounted
to 34,000,000 Share Options.

4. No Share Options granted to the Plan Selected Employees were
cancelled during the year ended 31 December 2023.

As at 31 December 2023, a total of 173,138,000 Shares
were acquired by the trustee and held under the Shoucheng
Employee Share Award Trust and no Plan Awarded Shares have
been vested under this trust in accordance with the Plan.

BONUS AWARD SCHEME

A bonus award scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted by the
Company on 22 June 2020 (the "Adoption Date”) for the
purposes of providing the employees (including the Executive
Directors) of the Company or its subsidiaries (the “Selected
Employees”) with bonus in form of Shares in order to
encourage and retain them for achieving performance goals
and to promote the pursuit of long-term interests of the Group,
while reinforcing direct alignment of the Selected Employees
with interests of Shareholders and the Company.
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The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of 10 years
commencing on the Adoption Date, and ending on 21 June
2030 (both dates inclusive).

The Scheme shall be subject to the administration of the
Remuneration Committee and the administration committee
specifically established by the Remuneration Committee for the
Scheme (the “Administration Committee”) and shall comply
with the rules of the Scheme (the “Scheme Rules”) and the
trust deed dated 22 June 2020 entered into between the
Company and the trustee (the “Trust Deed”).

Pursuant to the Scheme Rules, the Administration Committee
may from time to time select the Selected Employee, determine
the number of Shares to be granted to a Selected Employee,
grant award(s) to the Selected Employee and determine when,
whether and how award(s) will be made. The Administration
Committee may also give instructions to the trustee to acquire
such number of Shares on the Stock Exchange for granting to
the Selected Employees pursuant to the Scheme Rules.

The Administration Committee is entitled to impose any
conditions (including a period of continued service within
the Group after any award of Shares under the Scheme (the
“Awarded Shares”)) as it deems appropriate with respect
to the entitlement of the Selected Employee to the Awarded
Shares. Subject to the Scheme Rules and the fulfillment of all
vesting conditions to the vesting of the Awarded Shares on a
Selected Employee as specified in the Scheme and the letter of
award which sets out details of the award, including but not
limited to the number of Awarded Shares, the vesting schedule
and the exercise price (if applicable), the trustee shall transfer
the Awarded Shares to such Selected Employee on the date (the
“Vesting Date”) on which his/her entitlement to the Awarded
Shares is vested in such Selected Employee in accordance with
the Scheme Rules.

The trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in respect of any
Shares held by it under the trust constituted by the Trust Deed
(the "Trust”) (including but not limited to the Awarded Shares,
any bonus Shares and scrip Shares derived therefrom).
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The maximum number of Shares which can be awarded
under the Scheme is 0.5% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the Adoption Date (being 34,627,883 Shares,
representing approximately 0.47% of the issued Shares as at
the date of this annual report) and the maximum number of
Shares which can be awarded to a Selected Employee under the
Scheme is 0.1% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the Adoption Date (being 6,925,576 Shares).

From the Adoption Date to 31 December 2023, a total of
26,066,000 Shares were purchased by the trustee and held
under the Trust and no Shares have been awarded under the
Scheme.

SHARES ISSUED

Issuance of 252,802,246 ordinary shares on 31
January 2023

On 13 January 2023, the Company entered into a placing
agreement (the “Placing Agreement”) with Huatai Financial
Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited (“Huatai”) as a placing agent
and overall coordinator for the placing of 252,802,246 Shares
(the “Placing Shares”) to Sunshine Life Insurance Corporation
Limited (B ASRERMHDBRERAT) (the "Placee”) at a
placing price of HK$1.80 per Placing Share (the “Placing
Price”) (the "Placing”). The Placing will help replenish the
cash flows, enhance the financial strength and expand the
shareholder base of the Company, which in turn will help
promote the business development of the Company. The Placee
is an independent third party of and not connected with the
Company and its connected persons and has not become a
substantial shareholder of the Company immediately following
completion of the Placing which took place on 31 January
2023 (the “"Completion Date"”). 252,802,246 Placing Shares
were allotted and issued on the Completion Date to the Placee
under the general mandate granted by the Shareholders to the
Directors at the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 24 May 2022.
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The Placing Price of HK$1.80 per Placing Share represented
a discount of approximately 4.26% over the closing price of
HK$1.88 per Share as at the date of entering into the Placing
Agreement. The net Placing Price was approximately HK$1.77
per Placing Share.

Details of the total funds raised from the issue of the
Placing Shares and the use of proceeds are set out under the
section headed “USE OF PROCEEDS” in the "MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS" of this annual report and
announcements of the Company dated 13 January 2023 and
31 January 2023.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “SHARES ISSUED"
above, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result
in the Company issuing shares or that require the Company
to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company
during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Company bought back a total of 203,026,000 Shares
on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate consideration of
HK$378,684,560.35. All such bought back Shares were
subsequently cancelled.
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Particulars of the Shares bought back during the year are set

AEEARBRMONFENT :

out below:
Price paid per Share
BRIZMZER
Aggregate
Highest Lowest Consideration
Number of BE R®RIE HRE
Month Shares bought back (HK$) (HK$) (HK$)
Bin EERGOEE CE) (C&7z) &)
March 2023 24,950,000 2.00 1.85 47,944,398.06
2023438
April 2023 28,012,000 2.20 2.02 60,922,430.38
2023548
May 2023 45,200,000 2.30 2.05 99,671,853.28
2023458
June 2023 19,200,000 2.09 1.97 39,109,711.62
2023564
July 2023 7,400,000 2.02 1.84 14,306,853.95
2023578
August 2023 3,700,000 1.69 1.57 6,128,222.65
2023484
September 2023 16,800,000 1.90 1.50 29,310,297.04
2023498
November 2022 13,500,000 1.45 1.31 18,904,453.29
2023118
December 2023 44,264,000 1.57 1.29 62,386,340.08
20235128
Total 203,026,000 378,684,560.35
ey

The Directors considered that such Shares bought back
reflected the Company’s recognition of its own value and its
confidence in the long-term prospects of the industry and

would, ultimately, benefit the Company and create value to the

Shareholders.
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Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities (whether on the Stock Exchange or
otherwise) during the year.

DISTRIBUTION RESERVES

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has reserves
available for distribution as calculated in accordance with
the relevant provisions of the Companies Ordinance, details
of which are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the percentage of
revenue from rendering of services of the Group attributable
to the largest customer and the five largest customers in
aggregate are approximately 27% and 61% respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the percentage of
purchases of the Group attributable to the five largest suppliers
in aggregate is less than 30%.

Shougang Group, being the substantial shareholder of the
Company, directly and/or indirectly held the following interests
in these major customers as at 31 December 2023:

(1) Shougang Group and/or through its subsidiary(ies), held
approximately 50% interest in Chengdu Shougang Silk
Road Equity Investment Fund Co., Ltd. (B &R &= 442K B%
EEEEEHBRAR);

(2) Shougang Group and/or through its subsidiary(ies), held
approximately 49% interest in Beijing Shouxin Jinyuan
Management Consulting Centre (Limited Partnership)

(tREMBETEEAATO (BREE));
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Shougang Group and/or through its subsidiary(ies), held
approximately 99% interest in Beijing Shougang Industry
Ltd. Ot REHEXELES

Transformation Fund Co.,

BIRAT);

Shougang Group and/or through its subsidiary(ies), held
approximately 56% interest in Jilin Shougang Industry
Revitalization Fund Partnership (Limited Partnership) (&

MBERNEXREESSBEE (FREGE)); and

Shougang Group and/or through its subsidiary(ies),
held approximately 40% interest in Beijing Service New
Shougang Equity Venture Capital Enterprise (Limited
(EREBHEAREAERELE (BR

Partnership)

&%),

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of

the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder of the

Company (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns

more than 5% of the issued shares of the Company) had any

beneficial interest in these major customers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following connected transaction and continuing connected

transactions were recorded during the year and up to the date

of this annual report:
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Connected Transaction
Irrevocable Undertaking dated 11 July 2023

On 11 July 2023,
and Fair Gain Investments Limited (“Fair Gain”),

Fine Power Group Limited (“Fine Power")
both of
which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, and
Shougang Fushan Resources Group Limited (“Shougang
Resources”) entered into a deed of irrevocable undertaking
(the “Irrevocable Undertaking”) in favour of Shougang
Resources, pursuant to which each of Fine Power and Fair
Gain has irrevocably undertaken to Shougang Resources that
it will accept the offer, in respect of all of the ordinary shares
of Shougang Resources (“Shougang Resources Shares”) held
by it in full, by Shougang Resources to buy-back the Shougang
Resources Shares from its shareholders for cancellation up
to 125,000,000 Shougang Resources Shares, representing
approximately 2.47% of the total issued Shougang Resources
Shares as at the date of the Irrevocable Undertaking, at
HK$2.40 per Shougang Resources Share (the "Offer"”).

The acceptance of the Offer is a manifestation of the
consistency and coherence of the Company's strategy and
further demonstrating to the strategic shareholders and public
shareholders the Company’s strategic determination to focus on
the development of its principal business.

Given that Shougang Group is a substantial shareholder of the
Company, Shougang Resources being an associate of Shougang
Group is a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules as at the date of the Irrevocable Undertaking. Therefore,
the entering into of the Irrevocable Undertaking and the
transactions contemplated thereunder constituted a connected
transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules.
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Details of the lIrrevocable Undertaking and the transactions
contemplated thereunder were disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 11 July 2023.

Completion of the Offer took place on 21 September 2023, as
a result of which, a total of 89,219,163 Shougang Resources
Shares were bought back by Shougang Resources from Fine
Power and Fair Gain.

Continuing Connected Transactions

(a) 2020 Master Agreement dated 18 November 2019

On 18 November 2019, the Company and Shougang
Fund entered into a new private fund management
service agreement (the “2020 Master Agreement”) in
respect of the provision of private fund management
services by the Company and/or its subsidiaries to
Shougang Fund and/or its associates for a term
commencing from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2024. Given that Shougang Group is a substantial
shareholder of the Company, Shougang Fund being a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang Group indirectly
holding approximately 16.74% of the number of
Shares in issue of the Company as at the date of the
2020 Master Agreement is a connected person of the
Company. Therefore, the 2020 Master Agreement and
the transactions contemplated thereunder constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company
under the Listing Rules.

The transaction amounts under the 2020 Master
Agreement during the term of the agreement will not
exceed the following annual caps:

Ao AE R EE TRETRSZNERE
MRAABHEEA2023F7B1MTHNAS FIK

Zo

BAF02023FE9821H =R B E RA MR
Fine PowerMlFair Gaint[cl8£89,219,163/ &
& RIRD ©

FHERMER S

(@

BE7%42019F 115 18HHI2020F 45515
K2019F 118188 AR A HE &
EHRBERAAR/ RENBRA G
EMESR AHEHBBARELEER
TEERBEIIUNMEBECEERBEWE
(M2020F i & Ws&E1) P FHH2020
F1H1HZE2024%12H31H 522020
FRemEE BHRERERA LA
BIZEERE - EHNESFAENE
BEr2BENBRARARBEFELRRE
BERITRMNN16.74%EEMRAER
BlZRE AL EIL RE LEHRE
2020 iR EmBEREE TN RET 2R
AR NEZFFERERS

RipEFEHR 2020 K5 HEET
ZREEBPRAFBBUTEELR:

For the year ending 31 December

BELANBLEE
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
ANEH NEH ANEEH NEH NEH
Provision of private fund management services
REREESEERY 358,000,000 551,000,000 701,000,000 851,000,000 924,000,000
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(b)

Pursuant to the 2020 Master Agreement, the
provision of private fund management services shall
be priced between either (i) 0.1% and 2% of the
capital commitment or the capital contribution of
the partnership each year (as determined under the
respective partnership agreements) for urban renewal
related funds; or (ii) 0.5% and 2% of the capital
commitment or the capital contribution of partnership
each year (as determined under the respective
partnership agreements) for any other types of funds.

Details of the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the 2020 Master Agreement were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
18 November 2019 and in the circular of the Company
dated 28 November 2019.

Carpark Operation Contractor Agreements

As stated in the announcement of the Company
dated 1 November 2018 and in the circular of the
Company dated 28 November 2018, Urban Parking
(Beijing) Limited (B3 (A R) FHEEBRRF,
“Urban Parking Beijing"”), which became a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company upon completion of
the acquisition of the entire equity interest in Urban
Parking Beijing (i.e. on 28 December 2018) by E Park
Investment Management Co., Ltd. (B2{ZE (tR) BE
BIEARAT, "E Park”), entered into three carpark
operation contractor agreements dated 1 April 2015
(the "Carpark Operation Contractor Agreements”)
with each of Beijing Chong Wen e New World Properties
Development Co., Ltd. (JEFRE XX « H7 it 57 f= i 2 &%
BB AE, "Beijing Chongwen"), Beijing Chong
Yu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. GtRE®RE
MEREABE/AE, “Beijing Chongyu”) and China
New World Electronics Ltd. (FEHtEREFBR L
5], "China New World Electronics”), each of which
is a subsidiary of New World Development Company
Limited (“New World Development”), which in turn

(b)
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was a substantial shareholder of the Company as at the
date of the Carpark Operation Contractor Agreements
and is an associate of certain substantial shareholders
of the Company as at the date of this annual report.
Given that each of Beijing Chongwen, Beijing Chongyu
and China New World Electronics is a connected
person of the Company, the entering into the Carpark
Operation Contractor Agreements and the transactions
contemplated thereunder constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the Carpark Operation Contractor
Agreements, the initial term is 36 months commencing
on 1 April 2015 and expiring on 31 March 2018, after
which Urban Parking Beijing may opt to (and with
respect to the year commencing 1 April 2018, has opted
to) renew the respective Carpark Operation Contractor
Agreements for a successive period of one year each,
until 10 years from the date of the agreement, subject
to any framework agreement applicable to Urban
Parking Beijing and re-compliance with the Listing Rules
at the relevant time; and Urban Parking Beijing will
provide carpark operation services to Beijing Chongwen,
Beijing Chongyu and China New World Electronics
for different sections of the carparks in Beijing New
World Department Store Phase 1 and Phase 2 (”Beijing
Carparks”) in return for income from parking, car
detailing, rental fees in the car park, advertising revenue
and other service incomes subject to the following
payments of fees (the “Carpark Operation Contractor
Fees”):
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= ﬂ:
EXgHRES

1 April 2015 to Subsequent 2-year period

31 March 2017 from 1 April 2017

H2015F4A18E201743H831H 2017F4R1BEEBWFH

Beijing Chongwen RMB1,166,975 per year Approximately 5% increase
EREX SFARY1,166,9757T EFHI5%
Beijing Chongyu RMB1,900,000 per year Approximately 5% increase
IEREH 4 AR1,900,0007T LEA%I5%
China New World Electronics RMB733,025 per year Approximately 5% increase
FREDHT R E SEAR¥733,0257T EFHI5%
Pursuant to the Carpark Operation Contractor RIFZEEEZEERPEFHE =
Agreements, the Carpark Operation Contractor Fees are EEEEANBERATUTFEELR

subject to the following annual caps: PR :

1April2015t0 1 April2017to 1 April2019to 1 April 2021to 1 April 2023 to
31 March 2017 31 March 2019 31 March 2021 31 March 2023 31 March 2025
201554818 2017%4R18 2019%4R18 2021%4R18 202354818
F201743A8318  E2019F3831H  E202143A31H  E2023%3831H  E2025%3H31H

RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARE ARE ANRE NEE AEE
Carpark Operation Contractor Fees
FEREEANBER 3,800,000 3,990,000 4,189,500 4,398,976 4,618,924
Details of the continuing connected transactions ZEREBIGEERNEHEETNE
contemplated under the Carpark Operation Contractor BRAERXSG2HBEEALSIHRA
Agreements were disclosed in the announcement dated 2018F11ATEN A S RHHIA2018
1 November 2018 and in the circular of the Company F11H28BERAIEHIEE-

dated 28 November 2018.
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Parking Lots Cooperation Agreement dated 28
October 2020

On 28 October 2020, E Park entered into a parking
lots cooperation agreement (the “Parking Lots
Cooperation Agreement”) with Beijing Shoushi
Changtai Operation Management Co., Ltd. Gt RE 1S
REEEERRAHF,
to the continuing connected transactions involving

“Shoushi Changtai”) in relation

entrusting the management and leasing of the parking
lots under the Chang'an Mills (an urban renewal project
in New Shougang High-end Industry Comprehensive
Service Park (MEMBIKEZEL SR &, "Shougang
Park”), the “Project”) by Shoushi Changtai to E Park.
Pursuant to the Parking Lots Cooperation Agreement,
Shoushi Changtai will entrust the management of
the parking lots under the Project to E Park and shall
pay E Park an annual management fee (the “Annual
Management Fee”) and shall be entitled to all the
revenues generated therefrom for the first five years
(the "Entrusted Management Period”) and Shoushi
Changtai shall lease the parking lots under the Project to
E Park for operation and management for the remaining
years (the “Lease Period”), during which E Park shall
be entitled to all the revenues and shall pay to Shoushi
Changtai a specified percentage of the profit generated
from operating the parking lots under the Project (the
“Annual Variable Lease Payment”). The initial term
of the Parking Lots Cooperation Agreement shall be
ten years commencing from the day after the date of
completion and successful acceptance of construction
of all parking lots under the Project, which shall be
extended automatically for another ten years provided
that E Park has not breached any specific terms as
stipulated in the Parking Lots Cooperation Agreement.
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The entering into of the Parking Lots Cooperation
Agreement is for that the industrial/office parking
is the key focus of the Company and the Company
will work with Shoushi Changtai to build parking lots
with international green standard under the guidance
of the goal of unified brand image, service model,
management standards, operation and maintenance
support, and internal control and supervision of
Shougang Park.

The cap amounts of the Annual Management Fee during
the Entrusted Management Period and the Annual
Variable Lease Payment during the Lease Period are as
follows:
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MABERFERAARNERMBALRA
B UREEHEE BT RE— R
HBRERAG— EERER— BEEIR
M— AEEER—HNERNIET
ARBREEMERBTFERERRS
BRENEES-

ZEEEANFEFEEEEREERN
FEIFEHETH ERIIEWMT :

During the
Entrusted
Management During the
Period Lease Period
NREXEEAR REEHAA
RMB RMB
AR AR #®
Annual Management Fee payable to E Park
BNFTEEENTFEERERE 6,000,000 -
Annual Variable Lease Payment payable by E Park
BEERXMNFEFREHEES - 6,000,000
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On 3 January 2023, E Park, E Park Operation
Management Co., Ltd. (228 (tR) BEEEFRL
5], "E Park Operation”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of E
Park) and Shoushi Changtai entered into a supplemental
agreement of the Parking Lots Cooperation Agreement
(the “Supplemental Agreement”) to amend the
commencement date of the Entrusted Management
Period, being 12 months from the day after the date of
completion and successful acceptance of construction
of all parking lots under the Project, which was initially
fixed on 11 March 2022 to 1 October 2022 after arm'’s
length negotiations between E Park, E Park Operation
and Shoushi Changtai taking into consideration factors
including the operation of the parking lots of the Project
was later than the completion of the construction.
Accordingly, the period end date for each of the annual
cap under each of the Entrusted Management Period
and the Lease Period will be by 30 September each
year starting from 2023 and by 30 September each
year starting from 2028. In addition, pursuant to the
Supplemental Agreement, E Park assigned all its rights
and obligations under the Parking Lots Cooperation
Agreement to E Park Operation.

On 30 June 2023, E Park Operation and Shoushi
Changtai entered into a second supplemental agreement
(the “Second Supplemental Agreement”), pursuant
to which, the parties agreed to further revise certain
terms of the Parking Lots Cooperation Agreement which
was amended, modified and supplemented by the
Supplemental Agreement (the “Previous Agreement”).
Subject to termination in accordance with the terms
of the Previous Agreement as amended, modified and
supplemented by the Second Supplemental Agreement
(the "Amended Agreement”), the initial term of the
Amended Agreement shall be five (5) years and shall
be extended automatically for another five (5) years
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and further extended for another ten (10) years in
accordance with the Amended Agreement, pursuant to
which, (i) the Entrusted Management Period shall be
amended to nine (9) months from 1 October 2022 to
30 June 2023; (ii) the Lease Period shall be amended
such that the initial lease period shall be from 1 July
2023 to 30 September 2027 (the “Initial Lease
Period”), and shall be extended automatically for five
(5) years (the “Extended Lease Period”). Upon expiry
of the Extended Lease Period, the Lease Period will
be further extended for ten (10) years thereafter (the
“Further Extended Lease Period”) provided that E
Park Operation has not breached any specific terms
as stipulated in the Amended Agreement; (iii) the
management fee during the Entrusted Management
Period shall be settled as previously and mutually agreed
in accordance with the Previous Agreement; and (iv)
the Annual Variable Lease Payment shall be amended
to an annual fee representing 70% of the profit (before
tax) generated from the operation of the parking lots
under the Project during the Initial Lease Period, and
an annual fee representing 65% of the profit (before
tax) generated from the operation of the parking lots
under the Project during the Extended Lease Period and
the Further Extended Lease Period after arm’s length
negotiations between E Park Operation and Shoushi
Changtai. Accordingly, the period end date for each
of the annual cap under the Entrusted Management
Period and the Lease Period will be changed as result
of the amendments in accordance with the Amended
Agreement.

After the abovementioned amendments, the Group will
operate the Project independently and share the revenue
generated from the operation of the parking lots under
the Project, which will further enhance the Group’s
ability to control the high-quality underlying assets.
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The annual caps and the respective period/year end date
thereof are set out below:

During the
Entrusted
Management
Period

REFEERH

For the nine
months from
1 October 2022 to

For the three
months from
1 July 2023 to

FELRREXBHBFLERB
HgEImT -

During the Lease Period

RBEH

For each year from
1 October 2023 to

For each year from
1 October 2027 to

30 June 2023 30 September 2023 30 September 2027 30 September 2042
H2022%10A1H H2023%751H
F202346A30H2  F2023%9A30HZ H£H2023F1081H S£82027%F1081H
9fEA 38R £2027%9A30R F204259A30H
RMB RMB RMB RMB
ANEH ANEH ANE#H ANEH
Management Fee payable to
E Park Operation
BN TEFEEENERE 4,500,000 S = =
Variable Lease Payment payable
by E Park Operation
EEEEEREI AN
FEBAT - 1,500,000 6,000,000 6,000,000

Given that Shougang Group is a connected person of
the Company and indirectly holds approximately 48.86%
interest in Shoushi Changtai, Shoushi Changtai is a
connected person of the Company by virtue of it being
an associate of the connected person of the Company as
at the date of the Parking Lots Cooperation Agreement
and hence, the transactions contemplated under the
Parking Lots Cooperation Agreement constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company
under the Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the Parking Lots Cooperation
Agreement and Amended Agreement were disclosed in
the announcements of the Company dated 28 October
2020, 9 November 2020 and 30 June 2023.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

RIEBESEEHZA BREMER
RAERBDZBAENTKREEFEEMW
ERMN48.86% Em HILtEMERKE
WERBEABBALZHBAMK A
NBZMBBAL -HIL > B LHR
A - FESEHRETRETZX
PRMNAABZFERERS -

FESAEREREEIIHERE TR
ETZRBERERSZHEBERER
SIHEAA2020E10828H ~ 20204F 11
B9H K2023F6 B30 2z AEH I

o



(d)

Continuing Connected Transactions Pursuant to
Rule 14A.60(1) of the Listing Rules

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated
29 March 2021, the Group has, through Guangzhou
Carpark Management, Guangzhou Wanwu and
Foshan Wanwu (as defined below, collectively, the
“Partnerships”) and its wholly-owned subsidiaries,
entered into various agreements, namely Guangzhou
Carpark Sales Agreement, Foshan Carpark Sales
Agreement, Guangzhou Carpark Management
Agreement (I), Guangzhou Carpark Management
Agreement (Il) and Foshan Carpark Management
Agreement (as defined below, collectively, the
“Agreements”) with subsidiaries of China Vanke Co.,
Ltd. in respect of carpark sales services and carpark
property management services in the PRC.

(i) Guangzhou Carpark Sales Agreement

Guangzhou Shouzhong Wanwu Corporate
Management Limited Partnership (B/MNESHE
MEXBESELE (BERE%), "Guangzhou
Wanwu”), an indirect non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, Shenzhen Vanke
Gongying Investment Co., Ltd. GRIITEY
HEHIZEBRR AT, "Shenzhen Gongying”)
and Guangzhou Vanke Property Management
Services Co., Ltd. (BN ERMERBEER
‘AB], "Guangzhou Vanke") entered into an
agreement (the “Guangzhou Carpark Sales
Agreement”) on 12 December 2019, pursuant
to which Guangzhou Wanwu has entrusted
Shenzhen Gongying and Guangzhou Vanke to
provide carpark sales services in respect of 7,727
carparks situated in Guangzhou City in the PRC
from 13 November 2019 to 31 December 2025,
and Guangzhou Wanwu shall pay (i) Shenzhen
Gongying and Guangzhou Vanke an annual sales
commission fee representing 3.6% to 5% of the
annual sales revenues generated from the sales
of the carparks; and (ii) Guangzhou Vanke a
monthly fee of not exceeding RMB30,000 for the
daily operational expenses relating to the services
provided thereunder;

(d)
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(i)

Foshan Carpark Sales Agreement

Foshan Shouzhong Wanwu Corporate
Management Limited Partnership (# &
BYEEEEGBLEE (BIRE%), "Foshan
Wanwu"”), an indirect non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, Shenzhen Gongying
and Foshan Vanke Property Management Co.,
Ltd. (BT EMNYERFBERLE, “Foshan
Vanke”) entered into an agreement (the
“Foshan Carpark Sales Agreement”) on 10
April 2020, pursuant to which Foshan Wanwu
has entrusted Shenzhen Gongying and Foshan
Vanke to provide carpark sales services in respect
of 2,067 carparks situated in Foshan City in
the PRC from 1 April 2020 to 31 December
2026, and Foshan Wanwu shall pay (i) Shenzhen
Gongying and Foshan Vanke an annual sales
commission fee representing 3.6% to 5% of the
annual sales revenues generated from the sales
of the carparks; and (ii) Foshan Vanke a monthly
fee of not exceeding RMB30,000 for the daily
operational expenses relating to the services
provided thereunder;
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(iii)

Guangzhou Carpark Management Agreement (1)

Guangzhou Shouzhong Easyparking Carpark
Management Co., Ltd. (BMNEF Z HEEIF
EIEAR/AT, "Guangzhou Shouzhong"),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and Guangzhou Vanke entered into
an agreement (the “Guangzhou Carpark
Management Agreement (I)”) on 1 December
2020 (as amended and supplemented on 17
March 2021), pursuant to which Guangzhou
Shouzhong has entrusted Guangzhou Vanke to
provide property management services in respect
of certain underground carparks situated in
Guangzhou Vanke Cloud City phases 1 and 2 for
a monthly fixed management fee of RMB310,800
from 1 December 2020 to 30 November 2024.
On 1 September 2022, Guangzhou Shouzhong
and Guangzhou Vanke entered into a further
supplemental agreement to amend the monthly
fixed management fee from RMB310,800 to
RMB298,800 as a result of a decrease in the
carparks for the property management services
under the Guangzhou Carpark Management
Agreement (I);
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(iv)

Guangzhou Carpark Management Agreement (ll)

Guangzhou Shouzhong Wanwu Carpark
Management Co., Ltd. (BN EHEYFE
HEEERAE, "Guangzhou Carpark
Management”), an indirect non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and Guangzhou Vanke
entered into an agreement (the “Guangzhou
Carpark Management Agreement (1I)") on 19
November 2019, pursuant to which Guangzhou
Carpark Management has entrusted Guangzhou
Vanke to provide property management and
pre-sale support services in respect of 4,324
carpark spaces situated in Guangzhou City, the
PRC (“"Guangzhou Carpark Spaces”) from
19 November 2019 to 31 December 2025,
and Guangzhou Carpark Management shall
pay Guangzhou Vanke (i) a monthly property
management fee of RMB120 to RMB150 per
every unsold carpark spaces of the Guangzhou
Carpark Spaces; and (ii) a monthly entrusted
management service fee representing 10% of the
revenue from operating the Guangzhou Carpark
Spaces; and
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Foshan Carpark Management Agreement

Guangzhou Carpark Management (Foshan
Branch) and Foshan Vanke entered into an
agreement (the “Foshan Carpark Management
Agreement”) on 29 December 2020, pursuant
to which Guangzhou Carpark Management
(Foshan Branch) has entrusted Foshan Vanke
to provide property management services in
respect of 1,338 underground carpark spaces
from 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021,
and Guangzhou Carpark Management (Foshan
Branch) shall pay a fixed monthly management
fee of RMB93,660 to Foshan Vanke for the
services provided thereunder. On 12 November
2021, Guangzhou Carpark Management
(Foshan Branch) and Foshan Vanke entered into
an agreement to renew the Foshan Carpark
Management Agreement to extend the term
thereof to 31 August 2024. As none of the
applicable percentage ratios (as defined in the
Listing Rules) in respect of the annual caps for
the renewal agreement for the three years ending
31 August 2024 exceeds 1%, the entering into
of the aforesaid renewal agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder constitute
fully exempted de minimis continuing connected
transactions pursuant to Rule 14A.76 of the
Listing Rules, and therefore are fully exempted
from the independent shareholders’ approval,
annual review and all disclosure requirements
pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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On 2 December 2022, Guangzhou Carpark
Management (Foshan Branch), Foshan Vanke
and Guangzhou Shouzhong (Foshan Branch)
entered into a Rights and Obligations Assignment
Agreement, pursuant to which, Guangzhou
Carpark Management (Foshan Branch) agreed
to assign all its rights and obligations under the
Foshan Carpark Management Agreement to
Guangzhou Shouzhong (Foshan Branch) with
effect from 1 November 2022.

Shenzhen Wanwu Growth Consultancy Services Co.,
Ltd. CRYI B RZEHARFERAE, “Shenzhen
Wanwu”) is a substantial shareholder of each of the
Partnerships. As the relevant percentage ratios in respect
of each of the Partnerships were less than 5% for the
financial year prior to 2020, the Partnerships were
insignificant subsidiaries of the Company under Rule
14A.09(1) of the Listing Rules and therefore Shenzhen
Wanwu was not a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules. Based on the annual results
announcement of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020, which was published by the Company
on 26 March 2021, the Partnerships have ceased to be
insignificant subsidiaries of the Company under Rule
14A.09(1) of the Listing Rules and Shenzhen Wanwu
has become a connected person of the Company at the
subsidiary level under the Listing Rules.

Given that Shenzhen Gongying, Guangzhou Vanke and
Foshan Vanke are fellow subsidiaries of and therefore
associates of Shenzhen Wanwu, the continuing
transactions contemplated under the Agreements
constituted continuing connected transactions of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the Agreements were disclosed in
the announcements of the Company dated 29 March
2021 and 27 May 2021.
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(e)

Provision of Executive Partnership Services
under the Lvhe Partnership Agreement dated 31
December 2021

As stated in the announcement of the Company
dated 31 December 2021, Beijing Heshou Investment
Management Co., Ltd. (JERESZSKEETEEFR A,
"Beijing Heshou"), a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a partnership agreement
(the “Lvhe Partnership Agreement”) with Shougang
Fund and China Life Investment Management Company
Limited (AIEXRERMBEEEEEMR AT, “China
Life Investment”) for the establishment of a limited
partnership with proposed name of Beijing Lvhe
Equity Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership)
(IRGERERESBEE (BRE®), "Lvhe
Partnership”) to engage in investment management
services. Pursuant to the Lvhe Partnership Agreement,
Beijing Heshou shall provide executive partnership
services (“Executive Partnership Services”) to Lvhe
Partnership during the initial term of eight years of the
Lvhe Partnership commencing from the date specified
in the capital contribution payment notice on which
the second instalment of capital contribution is due to
be made by the partners pursuant to the terms of the
Lvhe Partnership Agreement (the “Initial Term"”), in
return for the executive partnership fee which shall be
calculated as 0.5% per annum of each limited partner’s
remaining paid-in capital contribution and shall be
borne by each limited partner during the term of Lvhe
Partnership.

(e)
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Pursuant to the Lvhe Partnership Agreement, the
executive partnership fee during the Initial Term of Lvhe
Partnership will not exceed the following annual caps:

For the year ending 31 December

REGEGEBHH a8 EEY
BEANATEREHFRMSTEE
BIIFEELR:

Annual Caps of Executive Partnership Fee

BENRAMBALEE BTEaREBHERMOFE LR
(RMB'000)

(ARBTFT)

2022 4,375
2023 12,500
2024 22,500
2025 27,500
2026 27,500
2027 23,125
2028 20,000
2029 7,500
2030 3,125

Provision of Executive Partnership Services under the
Lvhe Partnership Agreement can synergise with the main
business sector of the Company.

Given that Shougang Fund is a substantial shareholder
and therefore a connected person of the Company, the
provision of Executive Partnership Services under the
Lvhe Partnership Agreement constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the Lvhe Partnership Agreement
were disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 31 December 2021.
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(f)

Investment Advisory Agreement dated 29 June
2022

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated
29 June 2022, Shouhe Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an investment
advisory agreement (the “IA Agreement”) with ORIX
Asia Asset Management Limited (“OAAM"), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of ORIX Corporation. Pursuant
to the IA Agreement, OAAM was appointed as the
investment advisor of Shouhe Limited for the provision
of certain investment advisory and other services (the
“IA Services”) for a term not longer than 3 years
commencing from the date of the IA Agreement in
return for an advisory fee (the "Advisory Fee”) to
be calculated and accumulated daily at the rate of
0.5% per annum of the total contributed subscription
amount of an investment fund to be formed, managed
and confirmed by Shouhe Limited with the principal
investment objective as set out in the IA Agreement.

The annual caps of the Advisory Fee payable to OAAM
by Shouhe Limited under the IA Agreement are as
follows:

()
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For the year ending 31 December

HZE12A31HLEE
2022 2023 2024
Usp ) usp
e ESi ESi
Annual caps of Advisory Fee
BEEENEELR 150,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

The entering into of the IA Agreement helps the
Group realizing a closed-loop asset management cycle,
continuously releasing its operational benefits and
bringing substantial returns to investors.
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Given that ORIX Corporation is a substantial shareholder
of the Company and OAAM is a subsidiary of ORIX
Corporation, OAAM is therefore a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules as at the date of
the IA Agreement. Therefore, the provision of the IA
Services under the IA Agreement constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the IA Agreement were disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 29 June
2022.

Provision of Fund Management Services under
the Shoushi Partnership Agreement dated 20
September 2022

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated
20 September 2022, Beijing Shouyuan Investment
Co., Ltd. (ERERELEBRAH,
Investment”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the

“Shouyuan

Company, as a limited partner entered into a partnership
agreement (the “Shoushi Partnership Agreement”)
with Beijing Shougang Industrial Investment Private Fund
Management Co., Ltd. QR EHEXRENEESE
BB, “Shougang Industrial Investment”) as
the general partner and executive partner, Shougang
Fund and Beijing Shijingshan Modern Innovation
Industry Development Fund Co., Ltd. QR ASLE
RABMEXZERESERAT), each as a limited
partner, for the establishment of a limited partnership
in the PRC with the proposed name of Beijing Shoushi
Science Fiction Industry Equity Investment Fund
(Limited Partnership) (IR EARLIEXEREREE
& (BME&%), “Shoushi Partnership”).
to the Shoushi Partnership Agreement, Beijing Jingxi

Pursuant
Venture Capital Fund Management Co., Ltd. JQER=

FARAIXKREETEEBMRAE, "Jingxi Venture”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, shall be the
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manager of the Shoushi Partnership and shall provide
the daily operation and management services (“Fund
Management Services”) to Shoushi Partnership for the
term of the Shoushi Partnership for a management fee
(the “Management Fee"”) in return by entering into
an entrusted management agreement (the “Entrusted
Management Agreement”’) among the Shoushi
Partnership, Shougang Industrial Investment and Jingxi
Venture. The term of the Shoushi Partnership as a private
equity fund shall be 6 years commencing on the date
specified on the capital contribution payment notice on
which the first instalment of capital contribution is due
to be made by the partners pursuant to the terms of
the Shoushi Partnership Agreement, the first 4 years of
which shall be the investment period (the “Investment
Period”) and the subsequent 2 years shall be the exit
period (the "Exit Period”). The Management Fee for
(i) the Investment Period shall be 2% per annum of the
sum of the principals actually invested by the Shoushi
Partnership; and (ii) the Exit Period shall be 1.5% per
annum of the total unexited actual invested principals of
the Shoushi Partnership’s invested projects.

Pursuant to the Shoushi Partnership Agreement, the

Management Fee during the term of Shoushi Partnership
will not exceed the following annual caps:

For the year ending 31 December
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Annual Caps of
Management Fee

BE12A3MBLFE EERENFELR
(RMB'000)

(ARETFT)

2022 1,000
2023 6,000
2024 6,000
2025 6,000
2026 6,000
2027 4,500
2028 3,375
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Provision of Fund Management Services under the
Shoushi Partnership Agreement can improve asset
management standards and service quality of the Group.

Given that Shougang Industrial Investment is the general
partner of the Shoushi Partnership, Shoushi Partnership
upon established is an associate of Shougang Industrial
Investment and Shougang Group and therefore a
connected person of the Company, the provision of Fund
Management Services by Jingxi Venture to the Shoushi
Partnership under the Shoushi Partnership Agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the Shoushi Partnership Agreement
and the Entrusted Management Agreement were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
20 September 2022.

Services Agreement dated 6 December 2022

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated
6 December 2022, Beijing Feisi Real Estate Consulting
Co., Ltd. Ut RIFBEMELHER LS, “Feisi Real
Estate”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a services agreement (the
“Services Agreement”) with Shoushi Changtai, an
associate of Shougang Fund. Pursuant to the Services
Agreement, Feisi Real Estate has agreed to provide
certain tenants referral and related consulting services
(the “Services”) to Shoushi Changtai in respect of the
leasing units of the project property of Chang'an Mills,
which is operated by Shoushi Changtai and is a fund and
the first large-scale commercial office complex project
managed by the Group, for a term commencing on 6
December 2022 and expiring on 31 December 2024 in
return for a fee (the “Service Fee"”) to be calculated
at 1.5 times of the effective monthly rent of the leased
property (inclusive of VAT).
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The annual caps of the Service Fee payable to Feisi
Real Estate by Shoushi Changtai under the Services
Agreement are as follows:

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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ENERRBERGHEEAIFETEE
XU RBEFELRAT -

For the year ending 31 December

BENANALEE
2022 2023 2024
RMB RMB RMB
NEH ANEH ANEH
Annual caps of Service Fee
BREENFE LR 6,500,000 18,000,000 6,000,000

The provision of Services is able to further enhance the
asset value of Chang’an Mills project and provide better
returns to investors and the Group.

Given that Shougang Fund is a substantial shareholder
of the Company, Shoushi Changtai is an associate of
Shougang Fund and therefore is a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules as at the date of
the Services Agreement, the provision of the Services
under the Services Agreement constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the Services Agreement were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 6
December 2022.
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Financial Services Framework Agreement dated 26
January 2024

On 26 January 2024, the Company entered into a
financial services agreement (the “Financial Services
Framework Agreement”) with Shougang Group
Finance Company Limited (BEEMBFEER AT
“Shougang Finance Company”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Shougang Group, in relation to the
provision of (i) comprehensive credit services, including
loans, acceptance of bills, bill discounting, guarantees
and other forms of capital financing businesses (the
“Credit Services”), (ii) deposit services (the

Services”) and (iii) settlement services,

“Deposit
consultancy
“Other
Financial Services”) by Shougang Finance Company

services and other financial services (the

to the Group during the period commencing from 26
January 2024 to 31 December 2024 (the “"Term”).

Pursuant to the Financial Services Framework
Agreement, the proposed maximum aggregate daily
credit balance (including the corresponding interest
accrued thereon) received by the Group from Shougang
Finance Company during the Term is RMB400,000,000,
the proposed maximum aggregate daily balance of
deposits (including the corresponding interest accrued
thereon) placed by the Group with Shougang Finance
Company during the Term is RMB400,000,000 and the
cap for the cumulative aggregate amount of service
fees charged by Shougang Finance Company for the
provision of Other Financial Services to the Group during
the Term is RMB10,000,000.

The ongoing cooperation between the two parties will
help the Group to obtain more flexible and effective
financial related services, which will in turn support the
Group's infrastructure asset management business.
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Given that Shougang Group is a substantial shareholder
of the Company, Shougang Finance Company is a
connected person of the Company by virtue of being
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang Group under
the Listing Rules as at the date of the Financial Services
Framework Agreement, the entering into of the Financial
Services Framework Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the Financial Services Framework
Agreement were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 28 January 2024.

In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the

continuing connected transactions as set out above during the

year have been reviewed by the Independent Non-executive

Directors of the Company who have confirmed that the

transactions have been entered into:

(a)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

on normal commercial terms or better; and

according to the relevant agreements governing them on

terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Shareholders as a whole.
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The Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC"),
was engaged to report on the Group's continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 (Revised) “Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. PwC has
issued an unqualified letter containing findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
by the Company in the paragraphs above in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions which were
undertaken in the normal course of business are set out in note
33 to the consolidated financial statements. For those related
party transactions that constituted connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions (as the case may be)
(other than those described in the section above headed
“CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS") under the Listing Rules, such transactions
were fully exempt from shareholders’ approval, annual review
and all disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 49 to 87 of this
annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MATTERS

The Company's compliance with the relevant provisions set out
in the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
in Appendix C2 of the Listing Rules for the financial year ended
31 December 2023 will be set out in a separate Environmental,
Social and Governance Report to be published on the websites
of the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited on the same day of publication of this annual report.

AUDITOR

PwC will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment at the forthcoming 2024 AGM. A resolution will
be submitted to the forthcoming 2024 AGM to reappoint PwC
as the auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board
Zhao Tianyang

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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To the Members of Shoucheng Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Shoucheng Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”),
which are set out on pages 152 to 312, comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2023;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended,;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements,

comprising material accounting policy information and
other explanatory information.
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“"HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.
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Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as

follows:

o Revenue recognition — construction revenue from service e
concession arrangements, fund management services
income and excess return from investment funds

° Valuation of investment properties

HAEESATHINERESAFTEBGLL T

WARDB-IRBHFEEZHRER
MECEERBEANKREESHN
AR

. REMENRAREE

Key Audit Matter
RREStFE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BB NAERIEMRESSE

Revenue recognition — construction revenue from service concession arrangements, fund
management services income and excess return from investment funds

WAED -RBEFCELHEZERA - ESEERFBURANKREERENEELDR

Refer to Notes 4.1(e) and 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group recognised total revenue of
HK$883,478,000 for the year ended 31 December
2023, in which construction revenue from service
concession arrangements, fund management services
income and excess return from investment funds
recognised were HK$48,706,000, HK$183,032,000
and HK$194,931,000, respectively. The aggregate of
these revenue represented approximately 48.3% of
the total revenue of the Group.

S2REHMBHRERBWEES ()5

EEEREE2023F 1283 1HIEFEFEERBIWA
75 751£883,478,0007  EFIRFBINFTFRELHELE
BA-BEEEBERBURANEEESNBRERLRS
Al 7 B 1£48,706,0007T ~ A& 15183,032,000 7 Fl A& HE
194,931,0007T ° 55 LWL A BB RR A9 (h SR E AR UR ALY
48.3% o

Our audit procedures in relation to the recognition of
these revenue included:

- understanding of the management’s internal
control of revenue recognition, the basis,
calculation and timing of the recognition,
and assessing the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors such as subjectivity; and

- evaluating the appropriateness of the revenue
recognition policies for each revenue stream as
adopted by the management.

FMUABRES  RPIRTHEFEFETERRE

—  THREEBHWAERIRERES M GRE
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BRE ;
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Key Audit Matter
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BB NARIEMRESSE

Revenue recognition - construction revenue from service concession arrangements, fund
management services income and excess return from investment funds (continued)

WARED-RBEFTCELHEZERA - ESEERFUANREESNBERR (&

A.

Construction revenue from service
concession arrangements

The Group entered into service concession
arrangements with local governments or
parties in respect of its carpark projects in
different locations in Mainland China on a
Build-Operate-Transfer (“BOT") basis. Under
the service concession arrangements, the
Group was responsible for construction of
the carpark assets in the construction phase
and operated these carpark assets. The Group
generated cash flows over the operation phase
of these arrangements.

During the construction phase of BOT projects,
the Group recognised construction service
revenue at fair value based on construction
costs plus a mark-up margin.

IRFEFEEERERERA ¢

B 5 B S AR B %3 BT S AR B AR LU 4 — 48
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ESFEEERRENEER SEEEL
ERBHABERRERMA

ABOTIEEWREHE > BEEERNEMMN
BEMGEFHNANEDRERA -

For construction revenue from service concession
arrangements, our audit procedures also included the
following:

evaluating the Group’s process for applying
the requirements of the Hong Kong (IFRIC)
Interpretation 12 - Service Concession
Arrangements (“HK (IFRIC)-Int 12") and
inspecting associated contracts and documents
for projects which commenced construction in
the current year to assess whether the carpark
projects fell within the scope of the HK(IFRIC)-
Int 12;

engaging our internal valuation expert to
assists us in evaluating the assumptions
adopted by management in determining the
fair value of construction services delivered,
including the mark-up margin estimated for
the construction services by benchmarking
against other comparable companies with
similar projects;

inspecting underlying documents, on a sample
basis, for actual costs incurred during the
construction phase of contracts;
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Key Audit Matter
RREtEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BB NAREMRESSE

Revenue recognition — construction revenue from service concession arrangements, fund
management services income and excess return from investment funds (continued)

WARE -REBERFEELHREERA - EEERRFUANKREESNERER (&

A.

Construction revenue from service
concession arrangements (continued)
Where construction services were not
completed at the end of a reporting period,
construction service revenue was recognised
using the input method, measured by
reference to the proportion of contract
costs incurred for work performed to date
to estimated total contract costs for each
construction project.

We focus on this area as the application of
the requirement of the prevailing accounting
standards could be complex and involved the
exercise of significant management judgement
and estimates which could give rise to errors in
the recognition of construction revenue.

IRESFEEETHRERA : (&
HRREMRATINEZRERE > SEER
BRAE BUNBETIEMEENGAOME
G s A2 R AR A RESR R E WA ©

HARBRBHEFEERZTHRABRESRRS
SRR EAHRTEERNERNERE
MHEREN ARG RESIREAEERH
i g5t fhst ERE S ERNELE IR AR
I o

assessing whether there is any indication of
management bias in the total contract costs
estimation by performing a retrospective
review of the historical accuracy of contract
costs for similar contracts;

re-calculating the percentage of completion
of incomplete construction contracts at the
end of the reporting period by comparing
the actual costs incurred to date with total
estimated costs on completion; and

obtaining representation from management
of the Group in the management’s judgement
applied on assessment of the recognition of
construction revenue from service concession
arrangements.
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Key Audit Matter
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BB NARIEMRESSE

Revenue recognition — construction revenue from service concession arrangements, fund

management services income and excess return from investment funds (continued)

W A BEESE —

RBRFECELHEZEERA - EEEERFRANKREESNEREDOR (@)

B. Fund management services income and
excess return from investment funds
The Group generated fund management
services income and excess return from
investments funds of which the Group served
as the general partner or manager.

The Group recognised fund management
services income and excess return based on
manual calculation process and there is an
inherent risk of material misstatement due to
the following:

a) Interpretation of contractual terms
from relevant investment management
agreements;

B. EESEERBUANREESHNBHERIR
EEEESNESEERSTWANBERLRR
ﬁii—i EEEREIESEBERAAEEANR
BERTPEL-

HE2BERFWAMNBIELHRMNAEETERA
T BARUTRER FEEARBERNES
i

a) HRAREEEWZT R IFRAOEE

For revenue from fund management services income
and excess return from investment funds, our audit
procedures also included the following:

- reading management service agreements, on
a sample basis, and considering the Group's
accounting policies for the recognition of
revenue with reference to the terms of the
agreements and the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards;

- checking the accuracy of the records by
examining relevant third party custodian
statements;
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Key Audit Matter
RREtEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BB NAREMRESSE

Revenue recognition — construction revenue from service concession arrangements, fund
management services income and excess return from investment funds (continued)

WARE -REBERFEELHREERA - EEERRFUANKREESNERER (&

Fund management services income and
excess return from investment funds

(continued)

b) Manual input of key contractual terms
and fee rates in relevant spreadsheets;
and

@) Manual input of details of assets under

management obtained from the third
party administrators.

We focused on this area due to the
significance of the amount and the manual
calculation process in deriving fund
management services income and excess
return from investment funds recognition
involved management judgement and
estimates.

EEERRBBWANKEESNBEROER (&)
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0 FERARE=ZHXFEABRAREKF
RN EEEESRENFAGEE -

MREEEN BEIBARIRHWAFHE
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ETEERBURAKRKREETHBEARIR AR
RESTFER

checking the mathematical accuracy of the
calculation of management fee, performance
fee and excess return;

checking on a sample basis, the settlement
of the fund management services income and
excess return from the investment funds; and

obtaining representation from management
of the Group in the management'’s judgement
applied on assessment of the recognition of
excess return from investment funds.

Based on our audit procedures performed, we found

that revenue recognised were supported by the

available evidence.
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Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

HRESEE BB NARIEMRESSE
Valuation of investment properties
BREVMENRAAEE

Refer to Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's investment
properties were measured at fair value of
HK$841,226,000. HK$116,530,000 fair value gain of
the investment properties for the year then ended,
were recorded in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Fair value of the investment properties were
determined by the Group based on the valuation
performed by external valuers using the income
approach.

2REHMBEBRERTWE 140
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REMEZANEETH SEBRBINSMEERL
WA ETHGEEETE

Our audit procedures included:

- understanding of the management’s internal

control and assessment process of valuation
of investment properties and assessing
the inherent risk of material misstatement
by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk
factors;

- evaluating the competency, capabilities and
objectivity of the external valuers engaged by
the Group;

- obtaining the valuation reports of the
investment properties and understanding the
valuation method, significant assumptions and
data from external valuers;
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Key Audit Matter
RREtEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BB NAREMRESSE

Valuation of investment properties (continued)

REMENQAEE (B

We identified valuation of the Group’s investment
properties as a key audit matter because the
determination of the fair values involves significant
judgement and estimation, particularly in selecting
the appropriate valuation methodology, significant
assumptions and data.

ML SEEREVENGEISRBESFIE
ERARRENENRABENBEE S REKRHEMN
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HESmE e

- involving our internal valuation expert in

assessing the appropriateness of the valuation
method, significant assumptions and data,
and evaluating mathematical accuracy of the
valuation models; and

- conducting land search on investment
properties.

Based on our audit procedures performed, we found
that the valuation of investment properties were
supportable by the available evidences.

— TERBEEEXRNBE T RMFFETEES
FCIERRMEMNSEMN W ERZE
AP EANHRBABENEREY , &

— HREVEETEM-

REBEFAATHESER  AABRENDENQAIAEE
ERERERXF-
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BB R S

HES
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BERANFAEGRE  EFEEEAHBR
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B HATAIHREFEMEREREATLA
BYEERE 5 o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BB R S

ERB(EBSEHEL)ETHEFTNBRES
FIERT BEYE  RIFTHEREAEAE-
975 -
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° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BB R S

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this HEXRBIZHEMBENETEEEEAR
independent auditor’s report is Ng Ka Ho. = 55 ©

PricewaterhouseCoopers BERKEDMERAR

Certified Public Accountants HEEEET

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024 H#20245FE3828H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEEBRmR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #E2023F 128318 LEEE

consolidated financial statements.

152 Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

AR ER7

2023 2022
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
K et EBETFT BT T
Revenue WA 5 883,478 1,599,809
Cost of sales FIsN==3 N (523,759) (535,391)
Gross profit EF 359,719 1,064,418
Other income Halg A 6 458,066 480,511
Other gains, net H s mF %8 7 128,496 194,354
Provision for impairment loss FEWBR R 2 W (B
for trade receivables [ SEi=beidi] 20 (11,279) (14,600)
Administrative expenses EEER (299,979) (378,568)
Operating profit e mA 8 635,023 1,346,115
Finance costs MR AR 10 (105,689) (102,356)
Share of results of associates BOBERB X8 18(A) (31,502) 499
Share of results of joint ventures BMLaEREZEE 18(B) (31,381) (60,820)
Profit before income tax PRETISMANEF] 466,451 1,183,438
Income tax expense TSz 11 (6,906) (269,091)
Profit for the year EEHEF 459,545 914,347
Profit/(loss) is attributable to: UTALTEGEF
(B548):
Owners of the Company KABHEB A 403,565 922,010
Non-controlling interests JEITERRE R 55,980 (7,663)
459,545 914,347
The notes on pages 161 to 312 are an integral part of these ZF161E31N2BZWHARGEMHTREZE



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSNE INCOME
n‘7|_ A éﬁu& 13—%

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #(ZF2023F12831HIEEE

2023 2022
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
k23 BT BT
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hth&mE (5i8) Ik
Items that have been/may be B#% 11 A iEAF EFT 5
subsequently reclassified to HEEmZHEE -
profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on BN EBELEZER
translation of foreign operations Z28 (116,134) (215,479)
Release of exchange reserve upon EENEARAFEN
disposal of asset classified as held BEEREBRIMNERE
for sale - (42,618)
Share of exchange differences of BEBHELABDREERT
associates and joint ventures arising  ITEEINEBELEZE
on translation of foreign operations REEE (21,288) (71,027)
Items that will not be reclassified T ETEHSFEEHEREZ
to profit or loss: EE
Exchange differences arising on ERMEES ZERERE
currency translation (9,002) (8,045)
Fair value changes on financial BAnBESFAEMEZE
assets at fair value through other Wz EMEEZ R
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) BEEH 19 277,876 76,145
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FEH M EURE,
for the year (B548) 131,452 (261,024)
Total comprehensive income FEZEWEEE
for the year 590,997 653,323
Total comprehensive income/(loss) WU TATEEEZEKRE
attributable to: (F548) 4818 :
Owners of the Company KABEB A 544,019 669,031
Non-controlling interests JEER R 46,978 (15,708)
590,997 653,323
Earnings per share for profit TATER ANEGETZ
attributable to the owners sREF
of the Company:
— Basic earnings per share (HK cents) —&RERZF] G&l) 12(a) 5.57 12.97
— Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) —&R&EEBEF GE1) 12(b) 5.57 12.97
The notes on pages 161 to 312 are an integral part of these HF161E31N2EZMEAREEHBREZE

consolidated financial statements.

REER{7
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ma MBI AR

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023 /220234 12H31H

2023 2022
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
k23 BT BT T
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M~ FRE R 13(A) 108,069 22,939
Right-of-use assets FREEE 13(B) 1,823,259 2,051,682
Contract assets in respect of service — ERFFHFEELTHARH
concession arrangements NENEE 5 114,664 209,368
Investment properties KEME 14 841,226 615,579
Investments in associates REEATZRE 18(A) 241,364 163,790
Investments in joint ventures RN 18(B) 560,605 650,204
Investments — non-current B —JEMED 19 3,454,413 3,490,102
Prepayments and deposits ENRIERZE 20 173,854 167,162
Deferred income tax assets RIEFAISIMEE 28 30,497 5,291
Other non-current assets HIERmEEE 15 530,288 403,233
Total non-current assets ERBEEMRE 7,878,239 7,779,350
Current assets MEBEE
Trade receivables FE U BR R 20 203,648 355,961
Prepayments, deposits and other FERIE - 125 R H AR
receivables 1B 20 253,075 300,936
Investments — current BE—RE 19 1,173,636 1,495,605
Time deposits with maturity over three ZR={EH REIEIZ EH
months 3 21 1,751,346 150,654
Bank balances and cash IRITHGRIRE 21 2,262,573 3,573,685
Total current assets HEHRERE 5,644,278 5,876,841
Total assets BEE®RE 13,522,517 13,656,191
Equity T
Capital and reserves B A e (et 1
Share capital [N 22 12,994,847 12,546,847
Reserves M (3,071,495) (2,619,258)
Capital and reserves attributable to Zx2AFIHEHE AEMERE R
owners of the Company G 9,923,352 9,927,589
Non-controlling interests JEFER RS 117,383 96,470
Total equity S iaE 10,040,735 10,024,059

BIGIE3NEZMEREGREMBRRZE

AR ER7

The notes on pages 161 to 312 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

4 A

177 N e |

A E5 IR R

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023 /220234 12831H

2023 2022
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Hiat EEFT BT T
Liabilities afE
Non-current liabilities EREIER
Borrowings — non-current B —IETME 26 452,280 465,572
Bond payable — non-current FE &S —IEmED 27 183,786 =
Lease liabilities — non-current HEaeE-ERE 13(B) 1,314,432 1,448,146
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTIEMEaE 28 105,590 160,013
Financial liabilities at fair value BARBEAERD
through profit or loss - non-current ERAaE—IERE 25 92,519 87,461
Total non-current liabilities ERBHEBEEE 2,148,607 2,161,192
Current liabilities REIBE
Trade payables FE{TRR X 24 485,585 353,950
Other payables, provision and HMENHIE - BER
accrued liabilities fEst & & 24 181,214 273,174
Contract liabilities EHNEE 58,599 22,517
Financial liabilities at fair value BARBEAERD
through profit or loss — current By =Ki=Rabi¥2) 25 292,423 925
Tax payable FETIRIE 79,540 137,716
Borrowings — current B —mE 26 157,131 581,821
Lease liabilities — current iEN ==X~ Eai¥:) 13(B) 78,683 100,837
Total current liabilities mEARAEAE 1,333,175 1,470,940
Total liabilities BEBEE 3,481,782 3,632,132
Total equity and liabilities EEkEaEHEE 13,522,517 13,656,191
The notes on pages 161 to 312 are an integral part of these Z161E31N2BZWHARGEHHTREZE

consolidated financial statements.

AR ER{7

The consolidated financial statements on pages 152 to 312
were approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2024
and were signed on its behalf.

Zhao Tianyang
BX
Director

EF

BN EI2E3NEZIZEMBHREN20245F

3A2AESEEME TAHEKRE-

Xu Liang
Director

EF
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

n‘7r | 4'-%.%@]%

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #E2023F 128318 LEEE

Note (i):

The PRC laws and regulations require companies registered in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”,
of this report shall exclude Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC (“Hong Kong"),
Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan, China) to provide

for the purpose

the Macao Special

for certain statutory reserves, which are to be appropriated
from the net profit (after offsetting accumulated losses from
prior years) as reported in their respective statutory financial
statements, before profit distributions to equity holder.

All statutory reserves are created for specific purposes. The
PRC company is required to appropriate 10% of net profits to
statutory reserves, upon distribution of its post-tax profits of
the current year. A company may discontinue the contribution
when the aggregate sum of the statutory surplus reserve is
more than 50% of its registered capital. The statutory reserves
shall only be used to make up losses of the company, to expand
the company’s production operations, or to increase the capital
of the company.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HEHERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #(ZF2023F12831HIEEE

2023 2022
Note HK$'000 HK$000
Viog=3 BT T BT T
Cash flows from operating REFTHMZHRETRE
activities
Net cash generated from operations EREEFMFIRE P 31(a) 334,241 171,361
Income tax paid BPER (142,439) (114,877)
Net cash generated from RETHREZIRNEFE
operating activities 191,802 56,484
Cash flows from investing REFHZHRERE
activities
Dividends received Bl = 328,373 414,899
Dividends received from associates BWEBEA B ZKRE - 1,439
Dividends received from joint ventures BUWEZE AT ZKRE — 20,360
Capital reductions from joint ventures &E AT HE 18(B) 38,234 =
Interest received BWFH 2 127,073 62,873
Proceeds from disposal of asset HEREFRENEEZ
held for sale FrigsIiE - 1,440,000
Acquisition of a subsidiary, WiE—REIWE AR
net of cash 34 - (22,126)
Withdrawal of deposits with maturity $EERZHR3MESREIEH >
over three months EHEMR 464,018 100,000
Placement of deposit with maturity EHZR3MEAREEZ
over three months ERFER (2,064,710) (150,654)
Purchase of property, plant and BEVE BRERXE
equipment 13(A) (104,294) (5,586)
Addition of financial assets at fair AERANEBES ABR
value through profit or loss (“FVPL") 2 &RbEE (48,701) (1,267,173)
Proceeds from disposal of financial HERARBESTAER
assets at FVPL ZEMEEZFRENIE 572,900 1,333,150
Proceeds from disposal of other HEEMIERSHEES
non-current assets Frigsnia - 8,266
Proceeds from disposal of financial HERRABES AEM
assets at FVOCI 2ENEZEMEE
1S 7UE 209,504 15,980
Purchase of financial assets at FVOCl  ABZAABE AEHM
PEHBEZECREE - (3,464)
Purchase of other non-current assets  BEEEMIERTHEE (31,136) (30,744)
Purchase of investment properties EELEWME 14 (125,442) (109,376)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME -BEREZEZ
plant and equipment FriS= 1A 13(A) = 575
Net cash (used in)/generated from RE;EE (FrA) 8z
investing activities HEFER (634,181) 1,808,419
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n\7|' = Eﬁi 2118 213—%

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #E2023F 128318 LEEE

2023 2022
Note HK$000 HK$'000
k=3 ABEFT BT
Cash flows from financing activities MEEZFHZHRERE
Repayment of borrowings BEBR (514,661) (312,593)
Proceeds from borrowings EESTIESE O 51,810 613,893
Repayment of bond payable BEEMNES (4,159) -
Net proceeds from issuance of bond BITESFZPIEMIE 25
payable 184,937 -
Net proceeds from financial liabilities QA ABEFAEBEZ
at FVPL TMEEZPIIERIE
FRE 220,866 -
Payments for financial liabilities TR AREESA
at FVPL BmzT/MEE (41,961) -
Repayment of lease liabilities BEREaR (141,038) (167,853)
Capital injection from non-controlling  JE¥ERRET T E
interests 30 2,677 24,408
Dividends paid to the Company's NFARRBEBREZRKE
shareholders 29 (627,128) (877,971)
Dividends paid to non-controlling S FHE A B IEER
interests in subsidiaries oz iRE (28,742) -
Net proceeds from placing of BITER HRZFE%%‘T—'XIE
ordinary shares HRE 448,000 =
Payment for repurchase of shares SR EIERIA (378,685) (19,886)
Net cash used in financing REEEFTRA 2R R
activities (828,084) (740,002)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash RERREEEEY
and cash equivalents GRZ) /1ghn$ %8 (1,270,463) 1,124,901
Cash and cash equivalents FZzRERIBEEEY
at beginning of the year 3,573,685 2,573,462
Effect of foreign exchange rate SNEEREB  HE
changes (40,649) (124,678)
Cash and cash equivalents FRZAERHEEEY
at end of year 21 2,262,573 3,573,685
The notes on pages 161 to 312 are an integral part of these 5161E31N2EZMFANGREMBERRZE

consolidated financial statements.

160 Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

AR ERD



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Shoucheng Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company
and together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
principally engaged in infrastructure assets management
business. The Company’s principal subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures are set out in Notes 17 and
18.

The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are 7th Floor, Bank
of East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars ("HKS$"),
unless otherwise stated. These financial statements have
been reviewed by the audit committee of the Company
and approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 28
March 2024.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@) Compliance with HKFRSs and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) and requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties and the financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value (including derivative
instruments).

New and amended standards adopted by
the Group

The Group has applied the following amendments
or annual improvements for the first time for their
annual reporting period commencing 1 January
2023:

o Insurance Contracts — amendments to
HKFRS 17
o Definition of Accounting Estimates —

amendments to HKAS 8

° International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model
Rules — amendments to HKAS 12.

o Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
— amendments to HKAS 12

o Disclosure of Accounting Policies -
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

New and amended standards adopted by
the Group (continued)

The adoption of these amendments to accounting
standards has no material impact on the Group’s
financial statements except as described below.

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction — Amendments
to HKAS 12

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exemption such that it does not
apply to transactions that give rise to equal
and offsetting temporary differences on initial
recognition, such as leases and decommissioning
liabilities. Entities will need to recognise a
deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability
for temporary differences arising on these
transactions. The amendments are applied
prospectively to transactions that occur on or
after the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented with any cumulative effect
recognised as an adjustment to retained earnings
or other component of equity at that date.

Following the adoption of the amendments,
the Group would recognise a separate deferred
tax assets arising from the lease liabilities and
a deferred tax liability arising from the right-
of-use assets. However, as these new deferred
tax assets and liabilities qualify for offsetting in
accordance with HKAS 12, there was no impact
on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group, except for the disclosure of the deferred
tax assets and liabilities as set out in the Note 28
to the consolidated financial statements.

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified
to conform with the current period’s presentation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN 2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

New and amended HKFRSs issued but (d)

not yet effective

Certain new and amended accounting standards
and interpretations have been published that are
not mandatory for 31 December 2023 reporting
periods and have not been early adopted by the

Group.

MNBEREBRES (B

EEMERRERZ TR

RAZS T B AV BHR S ER

ETHI &R ERZE
SIRRIECEMEEENE L
2023F12831HIEEE @G|
TAERTRRIERHRM

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
KT BEHZ &RA
ZESHHREN

Amendments to HKAS 1

BRGSERBIRIER]

Amendments to HKAS 1
SRS EAH 15T

Amendments to HKFRS 16
SR EAH165R1EET

Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(Revised)

BBREHES (B5])

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current

MBI IERBEESE

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
MEREERBEHENIEREIEBE

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

HEMEBETHEESR

Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause

MBRERZ 27 —ERAHE I ER

Z AN

BREBRRZEHERZDE

1 January 2024

2024F1H1H

1 January 2024
20241818

1 January 2024
20241818

1 January 2024

2024F1H1H



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B HRRMEE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN 2 {RRUHEREHKESE 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) New and amended HKFRSs issued but (d BCRHmERKRERZHMITIR
not yet effective (continued) RIETEEMBREEN @)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RTFIBEA %%
ZEHERER
Amendments to HKAS 7 and Supplier Finance Arrangements 1 January 2024
HKFRS 7
SRAGHENETRR HEMMELH 2024%F181H
BEEVBHREENETR
BEET
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale Or Contribution of Assets between To be determined
HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture
BEEVBREENEI10E R KREEEEBES AR R EERE M BEERE
EAEGTENE28FNEL] ZEERETIFE
The Group is still assessing what the impact of the AEBE T AR ER] ~ R
new standards, interpretations and amendments BIIEERERBEEMNFE-B
will be in the periods of initial application. It B HASR RIS 2R B BRI
is not yet in a position to state whether these BIIREEHAEENRKEZE
standards, interpretations and amendments will ENHBERIEEEARTE-

have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency
risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance. The Company manages its
financial risks in accordance with guidelines laid
down by its Board of Directors. The Operating
Finance Department identifies and evaluates
financial risks in close co-operation within the
Group to cope with overall risk management,
as well as specific areas, such as market risk
(including currency risk, interest rate risk and
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

Market risk
Currency risk

The Group operates principally in Hong Kong
and in the PRC. It is exposed to foreign exchange
risk primarily with respect to Hong Kong dollar,
United States dollar (“US$”) and Chinese
Renminbi ("RMB") denominated transactions.
Foreign exchange risk arises where future
commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities are denominated in currency that is not
the functional currency of the subsidiaries of the
Company.

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies other
than the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)  Market risk (continued)

(i) Currency risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2023, some group entities
with functional currency of HK$ had considerable
amount of bank balances and cash denominated
in US$. Under the Linked Exchange Rate
System in Hong Kong, HK$ is pegged to US$,
management therefore considers that there is no
significant foreign exchange risk with respect to
US$ (2022: Same).

The following table indicates the approximate
change in the Group's profit/(loss) for the years
in response to reasonably possible changes in the
foreign exchange rates to which the Group has
significant exposure at the reporting date.

RE B HRRMEE

MBERER (&

3.1
€))
@

MBERRER (&)

a5 BUBR (4

BRI (4
2023128318 EKEH
AABNETEREEFAA
BURTHENRITERERR
& o IRIR S B OB B 0 KA
BiERETHE AL SEE
50 7% M 4 B2 3% T 4 R 9 2B A4
B B (20224 : 48[F) °

TEERAEBEERR (B
1) AR UEH RS D
7 # (8 71 66 5 & L I B9 5 B B
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Impact on post-tax profit

R
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
RMB/HK$ exchange rate — increase AR MHBIKER— FF
by — 3% (2022: by — 3%) 3% (20224 : 3%) 3,511 8,816
RMB/HK$ exchange rate — decrease A RS H B IEER —TE
by — 3% (2022: by — 3%) 3% (20224 : 3%) (3,511) (8,816)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1
(a)
(i)

(i)

Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)
Currency risk (continued)

The Group also entered into foreign currency
forwards in relation to projected cashflow for
the next 12 months that do not qualify as "highly
probable’ forecast transactions and hence do not
satisfy the requirements for hedge accounting.
The foreign currency forwards are subject to
the same risk management policies are all other
derivative contracts. However, they are accounted
for as held for trading with gains (losses)
recognised in profit or loss.

Interest rate risk

The Group holds interest bearing assets and
liabilities including cash at banks, bond payable
and borrowings. The Group is mainly exposed to
cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-
rate bank balances and borrowings.

At 31 December 2023, if interest rates on
cash held at banks had been 25 basis points
higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, pre-tax profit for the year would
have been approximately HK$5,656,000 (2022:
HK$8,933,000) higher/lower.

As at 31 December 2023, if interest rates on
bank borrowings had been 25 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant,
pre-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$1,524,000 lower/higher (2022:
HK$2,572,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

(i)

(iii)

Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)

Other than the financial assets at FVPL held by
the Group which the underlying investments can
be affected by interest rates and bond payable,
the Group is not exposed to significant fair value
interest rate risk.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk arises from
investments held by the Group and classified in
the consolidated statement of financial position
as investments (Note 19).

To manage its price risk arising from these
investments, the Group diversifies its portfolio.
Diversification of the portfolio is done in
accordance with the investment policy set by the
Group.

The table below summarises the impact of change
on the price of financial assets at FVPL and FVOCI
on the Group's equity and pre-tax profit for the
year. The analysis is based on the assumption
that the price had increased/decreased by certain
percentage with all other variables held constant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An e B HRR MR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(iii) Price risk (continued)

MBERREEE (&

31 HMBRAKRER @
@  BEEEE (4

iy SRR ()

Impact on
Impact on other components
pre-tax profit of equity
HiEmHM
RAiF BN E ARBANRE
2023 2022 2023 2022

HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000
BETrT EETrT EETT EETT

Financial assets at FVPL BARBEFABRZERNEE
Equity securities — 5% (2022: 5%) Be A sE % —5% (2022: 5%)
Debt securities - 5% (2022: 5%) BHEH—5% (2022: 5%)

Investment funds - 5% (2022: 5%) ~ ®REEE—5% (2022: 5%)

Wealth management products - 1% R ER—1% (2022: 1%)
(2022: 1%)

Other securities — 5% (2022: 5%) HithzE % —5% (2022: 5%)

7,011 2,748 = =
- 19,024 - =
51,560 42,462 - -

148 675 - =
53,419 66,894 - =

Foreign currency forwards - 1% SMNEREI—1% (2022 @ )
(2022: Nil) 84 - - _
Financial assets at FVOCI BARBESARMZEREZ
EMEE

Other securities - 5% (2022: 5%) HAhE#H—5% (2022: 5%)
Equity securities — 5% (2022: 5%) FRAEE#H —5% (2022: 5%)

- = 6,690 7,321
- - 111,563 107,463

Pre-tax profit for the year would increase/decrease
as a result of net fair value changes on financial
assets at FVPL. Other components of equity would
increase/decrease as a result of net fair value
changes on financial assets at FVOCI.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1
(b)

Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks
and financial institutions, deposits and other
receivables, as well as credit exposures to trading
customers, including outstanding receivables.

Risk management

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt
and other receivable at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment loss
is made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors consider that the Group's credit
risk is significantly reduced. Besides, the Group
has reduced credit risk on trade receivables by
requesting deposits to be made before service
or settlement before delivery. The Group mainly
deals with companies with a good repayment
record and reputation and also has policies
in place to assess the credit worthiness of
customers.

The Group has limited credit risk on liquid funds
as the counterparties are banks and financial
institutions which are reputable and/or with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit
rating agencies.

Credit risk mainly arises from trade and other
receivables.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1
(b)
(i)

Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Risk management (continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the top five
debtors and the largest debtor accounted for
approximately 48% (2022: 56%) and 19% (2022:
27%) of the Group’'s trade receivables balance,
respectively. The Group has policies in place
to ensure that sales of products are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history. The
Group normally conducts credit checks on new
customers and requires them to pay a deposit
of certain percentage of the sales amount, or to
provide the Group with a letter of credit when
placing orders.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for
all trade receivables.

The Group recognised lifetime expected credit
loss for trade receivables carried at amortised
cost based on either individually customers who
are long overdue with significant amounts or
known insolvencies or non-response to collection
activities, or collectively assessing them for
likelihood of recovery based on ageing of the
balances with similar risk characteristics taking
into account the forward-looking information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1
(b)
(i)

Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Given the track record of regular repayment
of trade receivables and good credit profiles
of customers, the directors are of the opinion
that the risk of default by these customers is
not significant, taking into account forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors.
Therefore, expected credit loss rate of trade
receivables is assessed to be insignificant
and loss allowance provided on a collective
basis was amounted to HK$2,223,000 (2022:
HK$1,153,000).

For trade receivables relating to accounts
in which objective evidence that the debtor
faces significant financial difficulties or enters
liquidation, they are assessed individually for
impairment allowance. No specific loss allowance
was made (2022: HK$14,457,000) as at 31
December 2023.

Trade receivables are written off where there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery
include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor to
engage in a repayment plan with the Group.

The Group adopts general approach for expected
credit losses of financial assets at amortised
cost (other than trade receivables) based on the
Group's assessment in the risk of default of the
respective counterparties. The Group considers
these financial assets have not significantly
increased in credit risk from initial recognition.
Thus, these financial assets are classified in stage
one and only consider 12-month expected credit
losses.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

(b)
(i)

(c)

Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Considering the history of default and forward-
looking factor, the expected credit loss is
immaterial.

Liquidity risk
The Group manages its liquidity risk by ensuring
it has sufficient liquid cash balances and credit

facilities to meet its payment obligations as they
fall due.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group held bank
balances and cash of HK$2,262,573,000 (2022:
HK$3,573,685,000) that are expected readily
generate cash inflows for managing liquidity risk.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group's operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. A monthly report on forecasted inflow
and outflow of cash is compiled for the directors’
review. The management monitors the utilisation
of bank and other borrowings.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has
outstanding borrowings of HK$609,411,000
(2022: HK$1,047,393,000) and bond payable of
HK$183,786,000 (2022: Nil). As at 31 December
2023, the Group has available unutilised
borrowing facilities of HK$1,511,310,000 (2022:
HK$969,580,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1
(c)

Financial risk factors (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative
financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest dates on which the
Group can be required to pay. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate
at the end of the reporting period.

In addition, the following table details the
Group's liquidity analysis for its non-derivative
financial liabilities as at 31 December 2023 and
2022. When the amount payable is not fixed, the
amount disclosed has been derived from interest
rate and foreign currency exchange rates at the
end of the reporting period.
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3.1
(c)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3  BIFSEGEIR (&
Financial risk factors (continued) 31 HERAMKEZER @)
Liquidity risk (continued) © AEEEERE (E)
Repayable Carrying
on demand/ Total amount at
less than 3 months 12 25 Over5 undiscounted 31 December
3 months to 1 year years years years  cash flows 2023
HEREE/ AR g
=fEBMUA =fip% —£E REE RERE 128382
BE - if bik:3 RENE a5 e
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
2023 2023
Non-derivative financial liabilities kit eRaR
Trade payables FEfTERE 485,585 - - - - 485,585 485,585
Other payables EfhEnsE 54,652 - - - - 54,652 54,652
Borrowings B3 12,144 166,938 59,186 224,967 246,599 709,834 609,411
Bond payable 5 - 1,480 3,946 14,908 208,717 229,051 183,786
Financial liabilities at FVPL AR BE 2B L
NEHBENERER - 92,519 - 292,423 - 384,942 384,942
Lease liabilities fg&k 50,753 95,095 137,693 520,712 885802 1,690,055 1,393,115
Total At 603,134 356,032 200,825 1,053,010 1,341,118 3,554,119 3,111,491
Repayable Carrying
on demand/ Total amount at
less than 3 months 1-2 25 Over5  undiscounted 31 December
3 months to 1 year years years years cash flows 2022
REREE/ AEE s
ZEBNA LGk —EE MEE ReéRg 1283182
BE —f nE bik3 RENE 28 HEE
HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000
BEFT B8 BEFT BB BEFT BEFT BETT
202 22
Non-derivative financial liabilities Fitemam
Trade payables EER 353,950 = = = = 353,950 353,950
Other payables HftEME 172,371 - - - - 172,371 172371
Borrowings (R 15,508 492,523 155,274 197,254 316,479 1,177,038 1,047,393
Financial liabilities at FVPL NAABE 2L
NERBRNERER 925 - 87,461 - - 88,386 88,386
Lease liabilities fg&E 30,679 106,479 249,082 481,550 972,097 1,839,887 1,548,983
Total At 573,433 599,002 491,817 678,804 1,288,576 3,631,632 3,211,083
The amounts included above for variable interest MWEFZHANEZEH BN ER

rate instruments for non-derivative financial

liabilities are subject to change if changes in

variable interest rates differ to those estimates

of interest rates determined at the end of the

reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

3.3

(a)

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists
of borrowings disclosed in Note 26 and bond
payables disclosed in Note 27 and equity
attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors review the capital structure on a
semi-annual basis. Based on recommendations
of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues and share buy -
backs as well as the issue of new debt or the

redemption of existing debts.

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and
estimates made in determining the fair values
of the financial instruments that are recognised
and measured at fair value in the consolidated
financial statements. To provide an indication
about the reliability of the inputs used in
determining fair value, the Group has classified
its financial instruments into the three levels
prescribed under the accounting standards. An
explanation of each level follows underneath the
table.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
An e B HRR MR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HERBER &

3.3 Fair value measurements of financial 33 ERMIBEZAREBES=
instruments (continued) (#Z)
(a)  Fair value hierarchy (continued) (a) QKAAEBEER B
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B—IRERA FRER FZREH A%

HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
EETn EEFT EETT  EETRT

Recurring fair value 20235128310 EH

measurements as at ARBEFE

31 December 2023
Financial assets THMEE
Financial assets at FVPL BALEEFTAERRZZ

THEE

Equity securities e A 58 25 140,227 - - 140,227
Foreign currency forward SMEEIR IR - 8,393 - 8,393
Investment funds REEE - - 1,031,195 1,031,195
Other securities HMhzB 5 1,068,371 - - 1,068,371
Wealth management products 3281 E @ - - 14,799 14,799

Financial assets at FVOCI BALEBEFARM

PEN G EHEE

Equity securities fg A58 55 2,231,261 - - 2,231,261
Other securities Hthsg % 133,803 - - 133,803
Total &t 3,573,662 8,393 1,045,994 4,628,049
Financial liabilities TRIEME
Financial liabilities designated (SEAUAABEN2EE

at fair value through EEAEHERNSR

profit or loss afE
— Third-party interests in - B=ARAEEMGHZ

consolidated funds EeRFE 2R - - 384,942 384,942
Total CEl - - 384,942 384,942
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3

(a)

Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

2'11 P
177 g |

3 MBRKBERE
33 EMIRZAABESE

(%)

(a) RAAEBEER @)

RA#5 SR R P 5E

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—RMRF) FEHRRF  FE=ZRERF EE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BlsFr BlEFr BEFT  BEFT
Recurring fair value 1#20225 128318 K &4
measurements as at 31 ARBEFE
December 2022
Financial assets EMEE
Financial assets at FVPL BALEEFTAERRZZ
THEE
Debt securities BHES 380,475 - - 380,475
Equity securities RS 54,964 = = 54,964
Investment funds REEE - - 849,234 849,234
Other securities Hithz8 5 1,156,378 - 181,511 1,337,889
Wealth management products 3281 E @ - = 67,465 67,465
Financial assets at FVOC/ HARBESARM
PEANBZEHEE
Equity securities B Az 5 2,149,267 = - 2,149,267
Other securities Hithz8 5 146,413 - - 146,413
Total i 3,887,497 - 1,098,210 4,985,707
Financial liabilities =N
Financial liabilities designated EEAMNAAEEFTER
at fair value through HEHFTABHERN
profit or loss THEE
Third-party interests in BZAREEEREHZ
consolidated funds EeRa 2R - - 87,461 87,461
Other Hith - 925 - 925
Total &t - 925 87,461 88,386
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3

(a)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
other securities amounting to approximately
HK$384,825,000 (2022: HK$1,093,304,000) were
transferred from measurement based on level 3 to
level 1 as a result of the end of lock-up period.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into
and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as
at the end of the year.

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets (such as publicly traded
derivatives, and equity securities) is based on
quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques which
maximise the use of observable market data
and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs
is not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3

(b)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

Valuation techniques used to determine level
2 and level 3 fair values

Specific valuation techniques used to value
financial instruments include:

o the use of quoted market prices or
dealer quotes for similar instruments, if
appropriate, with adjustment for discount
of lack of marketability;

o for investment funds — stated with
reference to recent transaction prices or
the net asset values of the investment
funds;

o for other financial instruments and wealth
management products — discounted cash
flow analysis; and

o for third-party interests in funds
consolidated by the Group - net asset
values of the fund.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.3

(c)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

Reconciliation of level 3 fair value

measurements of financial assets

The following table presents the changes in level
3 items for the years ended 31 December 2022

MEBRREE (&
3.3

TMIRZANEESE (@

(© SRR EHEELAIEE

B

TREYEHZE2023F12831H
K:2022F12H31HILHAZ &8

and 2023: ZHRAEEZES
Financial
Financial assets liabilities
TREE tRaR
Third-party
interests
Wealth in funds
Investment Other management consolidated
funds securities products by the Group
F=AR
FERREH
ZEERE
KREES HitisE % B ER Z2H#E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2022 1£2022%181H 916,226 1,093,304 23,852 -
Gain recognised in the REa2EKRERED
consolidated statement of W=
comprehensive income 60,929 24,479 7,904 -
Additions HE 386,942 160,638 803,365 (87,461)
Disposal HE (466,148) - (706,998) -
Exchange differences [ERELE (48,715) (3,606) (60,658) =
Transfer to level 1 EEREEE—RRA = (1,093,304) = =
At 31 December 2022 and 12022128318 K
1 January 2023 202318 1H 849,234 181,511 67,465 (87,461)
Gain/(loss) recognised in the  Pir A2 EWNERET
consolidated statement of 2WE/ (F18)
comprehensive income 10,606 (13,226) 1,868 (728)
Additions HE 293,174 297,362 14,747 (340,384)
Disposal HE (97,769) (71,709) (65,365) 41,961
Exchange differences ERER (24,050) (9,113) (3,916) 1,670
Transfer to level 1 BEEE—RM = (384,825) = =
At 31 December 2023 12023128318 1,031,195 - 14,799 (384,942)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3

(d)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

Valuation inputs and relationships to fair
value of level 3 fair value measurements

The following table summarises the quantitative
information about the significant unobservable
inputs used in recurring level 3 fair value
measurements (see (b) above for the valuation
techniques adopted):

RE B HRRMEE

3 WMBEREREE

3.3

(d)

TMIRZAREESE @

SRR EHEELAIEE
EZIEHEGARLELAEE
BIRF

TREBLBRAE = RRH =/
BEEZARBESEMAIIEF
ERRTEEEZHBEHANTE
BEF - FRRMMAYEE (SERM
BF2BEX(D) -

Fair value at Range of inputs
RFFBMZAREE YRHARE
Un-observable Relationship of unobservable inputs
Description 2023 2022 inputs* 2023 2022 to fair value
FREBREEZY
i BBA~ FREBRMEZHBRARARBEZHG
HKS$'000  HK$'000
BEFT EEFT
Investment funds 1,031,195 849,234 Fair value of N/A N/A Increase/decrease 10% (2022: 10%) of
KEES® underlying assets BB TEH the fair value of underlying assets would
ENEENALE increase/decrease the fair value measure by
& HK$103,119,000 (2022: HK$84,923,000)
ENEENAABEEM,HD10% (2022
F110%) BERANEEHEEMN
D E103,119,0007 (20226 © 1
84,923,0007T) °
Other securities - 181,511 Discount for lack of N/A 2% -3% N/A (2022: Increase/decrease 10% of the
Hiths marketability B discount for lack of marketability would
FhZ EHE RN increase/decrease the fair value measured
by HK$412,000)
& (20226 BRZBEMMITINEM,/ D
10%BEHANBETEEM,/ R B
412,0007t) ©
Wealth management 14,799 67,465  Expected rate of 1.25% - 1.65% - Increase/decrease 10% (2022: 10%) of the
products return 2.45% 3.15% expected rate of return would increase/
BHER BilEE decrease the fair value measure by
HK$27,000 (2022: HK$67,000)
FEHARIREIE M,/ 10% (20225 10%)
BERAREEREM/ L EE27,000
7t (20224 © %¥67,0007T) ©
Third-party interests in (384,942)  (87,461) Fair value of N/A N/A Increase/decrease 10% (2022: 10%) of the fair
funds consolidated by underlying assets AEB ~ER value of underlying assets in consolidated
the Group in consolidated funds would increase/decrease the fair
B=AHR funds value measure by HK$38,494,000 (2022:
TEFFAH AEERAHZ HK$8,746,000)
ZEERE EEeNEEEE FEEMAHZESNEEEENAABEL
2@ NAREBE m/E10% (202251 10% ) BERA AR
Bt EIEN /7 B H38,494,0007T (2022
4 1 B%58,746,0007T) ©
e There were no significant inter-relationships * FREBRLEHERAZH
between unobservable inputs that materially affect TEIFHAAEBEERNEK
fair values REZBEREEMEARC

HERZRAMRAT 2023FFR 183



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PN
g o =

3

184

R 75 ¥R R P 5

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3

(d)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

Valuation inputs and relationships to fair
value of level 3 fair value measurements
(continued)

The management determined the fair value of
the investment funds with reference to recent
transaction prices or by reviewing the valuations
of the underlying investments held by respective
investment funds to assess the appropriateness of
the fair values of the investment funds.

The management determined the fair value of the
other securities classified as FVPL with reference
to market value at the end of the reporting
period. As at 31 December 2022, these securities
have restriction of trading for 1 year. The fair
value measurement reflects the effect of such
restriction. Therefore, the fair value is determined
by the market price adjusted by a discount rate
for lack of marketability of 2% to 3% as at 31
December 2022. As at 31 December 2023, these
securities have no restriction of trading.

As at 31 December 2023, the fair value of the
other securities is determined to be approximately
HK$1,202,174,000 (2022: HK$1,337,889,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3

(d)

(e)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

Valuation inputs and relationships to fair
value of level 3 fair value measurements
(continued)

The management determined the fair value of
third-party interests in funds consolidated by the
Group with reference by reviewing the valuations
of the underlying investments held by respective
consolidated funds to assess the appropriateness
of the fair values of the consolidated funds.

Valuation processes

The Group includes a team that performs the
valuations of financial instruments required for
financial reporting purposes, including level
3 fair values. This team reports directly to the
senior management and the audit committee.
Discussions of valuation processes and results are
held between the senior management and the
valuation team at least once every six months,
in line with the Group’'s half-yearly reporting
periods.

Changes in levels 2 and 3 fair values are analysed
at the end of each reporting period during the
half-yearly valuation discussion among the senior
management, audit committee and valuation
team. As part of this discussion, the team
presents a report that explains the reason for the
fair value movements.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4

Financial assets and financial liabilities
subject to offsetting, enforceable master
netting arrangements and similar
agreements

The Group has no such financial assets or
financial liabilities outstanding in the consolidated
statement of financial position which are
under master netting agreements. No material
impact on the amounts reported in the Group's
consolidated financial statements and respective
disclosures relating to the Group’s master netting
agreements as no such contracts outstanding.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

3

MBERER (&

34

ZAFIRHRHE - TR EIER
THR—FREHEREEARG
HFTMRRNERE E KR E R
&R

AEBR GG BHIK TR E
ER—FELEBEHE T HKRE
HrtMEENESHEB/-HR
WHEZEHRIBAEH ALY
FERGREMBRERMEZE
STREAHATERR—FER
EEWREERBLESEXN

a
o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
requires the use of accounting estimates which,
by definition, will seldom equal the actual results.
Management also needs to exercise judgement in
applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated.
They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that
may have a financial impact on the entity and that are

believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates

(a) Estimation of the fair values of investment
properties

Information about the valuation of investment
properties is provided in Note 14.

(b)  Estimation of goodwill impairment

The Group tests whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment on an annual basis. For the 2023
and 2022 reporting periods, the recoverable
amount of cash-generating units (CGUs) was
determined based on value-in-use calculations
which require the use of assumptions. The
calculations use cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management

covering a five-year period.

Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using the estimated growth rates
stated in Note 15. These growth rates are
consistent with forecasts included in industry
reports.

Details of impairment charge, key assumptions
and impact of possible changes in key
assumptions are disclosed in Note 15.
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CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(continued)

4.1
(c)

Critical accounting estimates (continued)

Estimation of the fair value and impairment
of certain financial assets

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market is determined
using valuation techniques. The Group uses
its judgement to select a variety of methods
and make assumptions that are mainly based
on market conditions existing at the end of
each reporting period. For details of the key
assumptions used and the impact of changes to
these assumptions see Note 3.3(a).

The loss allowances for financial assets are
based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement
in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based
on the Group's past history existing market
conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period. Details of the
key assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in
Note 3.1.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(continued)

4.1
(d)

(e)

Critical accounting estimates (continued)

Recognition of deferred tax asset for carried-
forward tax losses

No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of tax losses of approximately
HK$1,225,264,000 due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. In cases where probable
taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences can be
utilised and the amounts are confirmed by the tax
authority, a deferred tax asset may be recognised.

Recognition of revenue under service
concession agreement

Revenue under service concession agreement
acts is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation,
depending on the nature of the contract, is
measured mainly by reference to the proportion
of contract costs incurred for work performed
to date to estimated total contract costs for
each contract. Management estimates the total
contract revenue and total contract costs at
the inception of each contract. As the contract
progresses, management regularly reviews
and revises the estimates of contract revenue
and contract costs if circumstances change,
such as variations in contract work, claims and
incentive payments. The increases or decreases
in estimated total contract revenue or total
contract costs resulted in the adjustments to
the extent of progress toward completion and
revenue recognised in the period in which the
circumstances that give rise to the revision
becomes known by management.
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CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(continued)

4.1
(f)

Critical accounting estimates (continued)
Determination of the lease term

In determining the lease term, management
considers all facts and circumstances that create
an economic incentive to exercise an extension
option, or not exercise a termination option.
Extension options (or periods after termination
options) are only included in the lease term if the
lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not
terminated).

For leases of car parks operating rights, the
following factors are normally the most relevant:

o If there are significant penalty payments
to terminate (or not extend), the Group is
typically reasonably certain to extend (or
not terminate).

o If any leasehold improvements are
expected to have a significant remaining
value, the Group is typically reasonably
certain to extend (or not terminate).

o Otherwise, the Group considers other
factors including historical lease durations
and the costs and business disruption
required to replace the leased asset.

Most extension options in offices and vehicles
leases have not been included in the lease liability,
because the Group could replace the assets
without significant cost or business disruption.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e TSR R MY 5L

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WARSERER
The Group has been principally engaged in infrastructure AEBRTENEERSHEEETEE
assets management business. 5o
Revenue recognised during the years are as follows: FREEDZWANT
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$000
BT BT T
Revenue recognised under HKFRS 1RIEF B IBIRE %R
15: FISTRREBZUN -
Operation service income EE RN 554,752 386,737
Construction revenue from service FRIB R eT & RHEE WA
concession agreement 48,706 124,594
Fund management services income  E&EIBRFEWN 183,032 186,833
Excess return from investment funds & &S KB AR 194,931 515,489
981,421 1,213,653
Revenue recognised under other RIFEth & st#EH|
accounting standards: HERZUN :
Leasing income HEWAN 54,672 71,613
Investment (loss)/gain on financial BARBESFANETZZ M
assets at FVPL EEZEE BB e (152,615) 314,543
Total revenue WN4EE 883,478 1,599,809
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Timing of revenue recognition ST\ B 57 Y B B
- Overtime —E—EEEN 981,421 1,213,653
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Management has determined the operating segment
based on the reports reviewed by the chief operating
decision makers that are used to make strategic
decisions and resources allocation. No operating
segments identified by the chief operating decision
makers have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.

The revenue, profit before tax, total assets and total
liabilities reported to the chief operating decision makers
are measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated financial statements.

The non-current assets, operations and substantially
all of the customers are located in China which is the
country of domicile of the relevant entities of the Group.
Accordingly, no further analysis of revenue from external
customers and non-current assets by geographical
location is presented.

Revenue of approximately HK$241,176,000 (2022:

HK$317,363,000) are derived from a single external
customer during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Contract assets

As at 31 December 2023, contract assets which are
presented as concession rights under service concession
arrangements amounted to HK$114,664,000 (2022:
HK$209,368,000).

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue
earned from the provision of construction services for
the infrastructures during the period of construction
under the service concession arrangements. Pursuant to
the service concession agreements, the Group receives
no payment from the grantors during the construction
period. The service concession arrangement (including
the contract assets therein) are not yet due for payment
and will be settled by grant of concession rights that
entitled the Group to operate during the operating
periods of the service concession arrangements.

Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities represent advances received for the
operation service income.

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December
2023 that was included in the contract liabilities as at
1 January 2023 is approximately HK$22,517,000 (2022:
HK$22,659,000).

5
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Accounting policies for revenue recognition

(a)

(b)

(c)

Operation service income

Operation service income is recognised when the
services is provided.

Construction revenue from service concession
agreement

The Group's performance in respect of construction
services creates or enhances an asset or work in
progress that the customer controls as the asset
is created or enhanced, thus the Group satisfies
a performance obligation revenue over time, by
reference to completion of the specific transaction
assessed on the basis of the surveyors’ assessment
of work performed and the costs incurred up to
the end of the reporting period as a percentage of
total estimated costs for each contract.

Revenue from the construction services under a
service concession arrangement is estimated on
a cost plus basis with reference to a prevailing
market rate of gross margin at the date of the
agreement applicable to similar construction
services rendered.

Fund management services income

Revenue from management fees are recognised
on a time-proportion basis with reference to
the subscribed capital of the investment funds
and managed accounts. Performance fees are
recognised on the performance fee valuation day
of the investment funds and managed accounts
when there is a positive performance for the
relevant performance period and it is determined
that it will not result in significant reversal in a
subsequent period, taking into consideration the
relevant basis of calculation for the investment
funds and managed accounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Accounting policies for revenue recognition
(continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Excess return from investment funds

Excess return from investment funds when
the contractual conditions are satisfied, to the
extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversed in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur.

Investment income

Investment income includes net gains/losses on
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss.

Refer to Note 37.9 for the recognition policy.

Leasing income

Refer to Note 37.22 for the recognition policy.

Financing components

The Group does not expect to have any contracts
where the period between the transfer of the
promised goods or services to the customer and
payment by the customer exceeds one year. As
a consequence, the Group does not adjust any
of the transaction prices for the time value of
money.

5

RE B HRRMEE

WA TR ERE

(#)

WA FESD B S STEER

(%)
(d)

(e)

()

)

REBZELELIHR

REESHNBREREESREK
i e By 5D R 5T B IRA
RASEFGHEEAER -

REMA
REBRASRERAABES
ANEmZERMEEREBRZ
Wk, E5IRIPER

BB BUERFE 2R EE37.90

TAEIKA

ERBERBRESHEME
37.22¢°

HEEES
EERBAIERITAER KRS
ERIRBTFERETRUMX
ZHARBE - FNEAEH A
I AEBRTEREEEEEE
HEBERARZER-

HERZRAMRAT 2023FFR 195
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6 OTHER INCOME 6  HfthA
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Dividend income BB U A 328,373 414,899
Government grant (Note) BT B (07 &E) 2,257 1,649
Interest income on bank deposits IRITERFEWA 127,073 62,873
Others Hh 363 1,090
458,066 480,511
Note: The amount represented government grants received W =BRARPEMAFBNERESNE
from the PRC local government authorities in respect of A A E BB A B EE A BT
subsidising the operating costs of subsidiaries, which were B EXAEBREMBHEMBEEE
immediately recognised as other income for the year as the B BB BN A FEREAMI
Group fulfilled all the relevant granting criteria. Ao
7  OTHER GAINS, NET 7 Hitl=HEE
2023 2022
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
b &t BT BT T
Exchange losses, net EREIETER (10,132) (24,268)
Fair value gain on financial BARBEFAERZ
assets at FVPL STHEEZAANEE
& 23,502 8,423
Fair value gain/(loss) BARBEFAERZ
on financial liabilities at FVPL SHEBEZANEER
Wi, (B518) 197 (1,293)
Gain from changes in fair KREMELANEBEEH 2
value of investment properties W &= 14 116,530 198,100
Gain on disposal of assets EEREREEEY
classified as held for sale W - 16,699
Others Hth (1,601) (3,307)
128,496 194,354
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING PROFIT

The Group's operating profit is stated after charging the

followings:

RE B HRRMEE

8 KEEmF

FEBEE DA EMNRUT :

2023 2022
Note HK$000 HK$'000
=23 EEFT BT
Employee benefit expenses BERAEZH (FEE
(excluding benefits and BF/A M@
interests of directors) 9 185,556 249,985
Benefits and interests of EERMN N @
directors 36 13,553 13,497
199,109 263,482
Amortisation of other HnIEmEN & E#
non-current assets 15 21,884 30,695
Auditor’s remuneration Z B EMEN &
— Audit service — =R 4,369 3,659
— Non-audit service —IEE IR 870 539
Construction cost JESEA PN 41,400 105,905
Depreciation of property, ME.BENRKRBITE
plant and equipment 13(A) 17,104 12,479
Depreciation of right-of-use FREBEERE
assets 13(B) 132,003 162,804
Expense relating to short-term CHATH SR
leases 13(B) 45,538 21,109
Legal and professional expenses AR NEXER 16,135 21,631
Research and development EEER
expense 22,605 24,875
Service and management fees AEHERSZTZ
charged by Shougang Group RBENEIEER 33(a) 2,990 2,990
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(EXCLUDING BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS)

EBERAXEH FEEEEEF
)&ilk)

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

EBETFT HBIETFT

Basic salaries and allowances B AR HE & KRR 142,218 194,338
Retirement benefits scheme RIKER F B H R

contributions 36,640 42,944

Share options granted to employees &% {& B By I% 1 6,698 12,703

185,556 249,985

Note:
During the year ended 31 December 2023, no forfeited

contributions were utilised by the Group to reduce its retirement
benefits scheme contributions (2022: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9
(EXCLUDING BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS) (continued)

()

Five highest paid individuals

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the five
individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group include three (2022: two) director(s),
whose emolument is reflected in the analysis in
Note 36. The emoluments paid/payable to the
remaining two (2022: three) individuals during
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are
as follows:

RE B HRRMEE

EBEEANXE FEEESEEN
RFlzm) ()

0]

TRESHALT

HZE2023F12R31HLEEE
rEEHEEENARATE
E=42022:: %) 5 &M
ERBRHTFEI6Z DN -BE
2023F K2022F12831HLEE
EE[ FEEGRT % (2022
F=Z%) ALZBSIWT

2023 2022
HKS$'000 HK$'000
BT HBEFT
Salaries, share options and e RIDEAER
all allowances and Hih@H
benefits in kind 4,934 7,446
Contributions to retirement RIKEFR FHEH
benefit schemes 36 36
4,970 7,482

The emoluments of the highest paid individuals
fell within the following bands:

EeHALTZMENTKUT
#HE

Number of individuals

AE
2023 2022
Emolument band i <& &5
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 72,000,001 %
B2 500,0007T 1 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 #&#&2 500,001 &
& 3,000,0007T 1 1
2 3

HERZRAMRAT 2023FFR 199
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An e B HRR MR

10 FINANCE COSTS 10 HMHBEA
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
EEFT BT T
Interests on bank borrowings RITERFE 38,744 33,795
Interests on bond payable FEESFE 3,008 =
Interests on lease liabilities HEaEMNE 63,937 68,561
105,689 102,356
11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11  FRfEMZH
The amount of income tax expenses charged to the NEeasERERANBRZMERX
consolidated statement of comprehensive income HMIEA !
represents:
2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Current income tax in China FEBPEAPR SR 84,582 167,500
Deferred income tax (Note 28) RIEFTISIR (H1a£28) (77,357) 105,830
7,225 273,330
Over-provision for prior year UEFEEBLEEE (319) (4,239)
Income tax expense FrigfRfasz 6,906 269,091
Hong Kong profits tax BEHBRER
Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% of the EEBMEMROBEEZRRENTE
assessable profit in 2023 (2022: 16.5%). 2023F R E16.5%51 8 (20224 :
16.5%) ©
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has made in the AREBMAEESTABERRER  EIL
consolidated financial statements as the Group has no GEVMBRR EUEREE20238K
Hong Kong assessable profit for both years ended 31 2022F12B3  HMBEFEEFEHEET
December 2023 and 2022. "R E-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
China enterprise income tax

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
"EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT
Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is mainly 25%
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: 25%).

Pursuant to the EIT Law, a 10% withholding tax is
levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from
foreign investment enterprises established in China.
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The
Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on any
dividends distributable by its subsidiaries established in
China in respect of earnings generated.

The tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before income tax per the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as follows:

1

AR e TSR R MY 5L
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= f RS

REPEAREME (THEY) B
Bx (ThERE\RZE) REEMSE
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F125%) o

RIEFEPERESRZEZ EHERM
RUNIIBERELENEIGEESE
FIRMIR B BEBMN10%MWTEINR - %
ERE2008FE1H1HEEN  BAR
20071283 1HENKGZ - MRFEH
HIBNI R EENEER B EFERIK
WE > Ao EASREMNTFENRE - RE
EMERREAS% HIL ) KEEAE
ot EL 5 R B P9 M BY 3L B9 B B R B RE PR
ELXNBFIMmDIRNEMRESMTE
0 o

FRZMEILEGEEE2ERE XY
MZFRFTSMAEF HERNT ¢

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$000
BT BT T
Profit before income tax expense bRFETS MR BE Z FiE A 466,541 1,183,438
Calculated at domestic tax rates BRI =R A AR
applicable to profits in the EMREFENRIE
respective countries: 85,296 268,122
Tax effect of amount which are not Rt BEZERIANEBR
deductible/(taxable) in calculating ol e, (BEZER)
taxable income: SRENMBEE
Share of results of associates BOME N B XS 7.875 (125)
Share of results of joint ventures (LS N NTIEE 7,845 15,205
Expenses not deductible for tax AE[HIMR 2 1
purposes 17,184 12,901
Income not taxable for tax purposes H7ERH N (150,193) (90,035)
Tax loss not recognised RIERRIFBEE 41,832 67,262
Utilitsation of tax lossess previously — BYFIBF R HERIRIEER
not recognised (2.614) -
Over-provision in prior year NFFEBEEE (319) (4,239)
Income tax expense for the year FERMEMREX 6,906 269,091
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EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The basic earnings per share for the year is
calculated by dividing the profit attributable to
the owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during
the year and excluding shares held for share
incentive plan (Note 23).

12

sREA

(a)

sRELXERN

rEESREABMDEERA
AEBEREDEFAE ARG T
BRURFESHTEBRME
T 19 B 7 Bk B 1 S0 B 5t & PR
FRpsE (isE23) :

2023 2022
HK Cents HK Cents
Ml Bl
Basic earnings per share KNBVEB NEM
attributable to the owners of &RERZEF
the Company 5.57 12.97
Diluted earnings per share (b) SkEHEERA

The diluted earnings per share for the year is
calculated by dividing the adjusted earnings
attributable to the owners of the Company which
have taken into account the after-tax interest
and other related after-tax financing costs on
potentially dilutive ordinary shares by the adjusted
weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue which have taken into account the
additional ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming that all potentially dilute
ordinary shares have been converted.

FRERBERENDRERE
WIS MEARBD S BER Em
REANGRNEZREIFMERE
FMENRETHRBEMENE R
REEMBRAFSREREN
AEUEBAENAFERTE
BRMEFIEE EZREERRK
FRERERENEBRREKE
MEMEINETHEER

2023 2022
HK Cents HK Cents
Al Bl
Diluted earnings per share KNBVEB NEW
attributable to the owners of ERFEZF
the Company 5.57 12.97
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B HRRMEE

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 12 SRR @
() Reconciliations of earnings used in 0 HARstESEREBENZERN
calculating earnings per share HER
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Basic and diluted earnings SREFKFEEET
per share
Earnings attributable to the ~ ARStBESREANRFEERT
owners of the Company ZRATHEE AT
used in calculating basic and
diluted earnings per share 403,565 922,010
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12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 12 EBREAN @)
(d) Weighted average number of shares d EHIBZzRMHBZME
used as the denominator 9
2023 2022
Number of Number of
shares shares
R8I E RipEE
‘000 ‘000
FhR FhR
Weighted average number of ordinary {E&2F3BRFAESR
shares used as the denominator in BERBRMzEBR
calculating basic earnings per share I F 8 (ff )
(Note) 7,243,783 7,108,941
Adjustment for calculation of diluted E% 75 B8 IR #E K Bh
earnings per share in relation to FEITETEIN
options granted to employees ERENSRERE
under the share incentive plan BHEE (Hke)
(note (e)) 3,013 -
Weighted average number of ordinary A9 SRR ESR
shares and potential ordinary EAKRHERANZ
shares used as the denominator T sBTE
in calculating basic and diluted T Nt T
earnings per share (Note) (%) 7,246,796 7,108,941
Note: st -

The weighted average number of ordinary shares adopted
in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 have been
arrived at after deducting the shares held in trust for the

Group under the share incentive plan of the Group.

(e) Effects of share options for the year
ended 31 December 2022

Options granted to employees under the share
incentive plan are considered to be potential
ordinary shares. Certain outstanding share
options as at 31 December 2022 are not included
in the calculation of diluted earnings per share
because they are anti-dilutive for the year ended
31 December 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B HRRMEE

13(A) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13(A) % BEKRZE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
HENERE B -RERRHE HE CE
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BETT BETT BETT BEFT
At 1 January 2022 1202251818
Cost Pl A 15,177 43,850 2,881 61,908
Accumulated depreciation REE (5,209) (18,155) (2,881) (26,245)
Net carrying amount FETE 9,968 25,695 - 35,663
Opening net carrying amount HBREFE 9,968 25,695 = 35,663
Addition RE - 5,586 - 5,586
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—EREAR
(Note 34) (fz#34) - 4 - 4
Depreciation & (1,110) (11,369) = (12,479)
Disposal HE = (575) = (575)
Exchange difference ERER (661) (4,599) = (5,260)
At 31 December 2022 120224128318 8,197 14,742 - 22,939
At 31 December 2022 120225125310
Cost A 14,275 33,939 2,657 50,871
Accumulated depreciation Rt E (6,078) (19,197) (2,657) (27,932)
Net carrying amount REEFE 8,197 14,742 = 22,939
Opening net carrying amount BERmEE 8,197 14,742 - 22,939
Addition hE 91,589 12,213 492 104,294
Depreciation i (12,221) (4,793) (90) (17,104)
Disposal HE - (792) = (792)
Exchange difference ERER (99) (1,169) = (1,268)
At 31 December 2023 12023&12831H 87,466 20,201 402 108,069
At 31 December 2023 1#2023%F 128318
Cost PR A 105,562 37,670 1,419 144,651
Accumulated depreciation REtifE (18,096) (17,469) (1,017) (36,582)
Net carrying amount REZE 87,466 20,201 402 108,069

During the year ended 31

December 2023, no
impairment loss (2022: Nil) was provided for.

B ZE2023F 128318 EEE > &g

BB AR (2022F 1 &
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An e B HRR MR

13(A) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13(A) Y% -BEBGRE &)

206

(continued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight — line
method to allocate their cost or revalued amounts, net
of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives
as follows:

Leasehold improvements  Shorter of lease term or 4 to

WEDRGSIERFEHRUNERED
HRASNEGEEE CORERERE
B st8mT:

HEMEEE HBPNIEI0F

10 years (UBRsE&E A %)
Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 10 years RE-BKEKR 3E105F
equipment B4
Motor vehicles 4 years AE 45

See Note 37.6 for the other accounting policies relevant
to property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13(B) LEASES

The consolidated statement of financial position shows

the following amounts relating to leases:

(i)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

RE B HRRMEE

138) #HE
EEMBERRRES LT EIEEHE
ZE&EE

() MNESHUBRARERZE
L]

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETFT HBIETFT

Right-of-use assets FREEE
Office premises B EYE 767 11,146
Car parking assets FEEE 1,822,492 2,040,536
1,823,259 2,051,682

Lease liabilities HEaR

Current ) 78,683 100,837
Non-current JEREN 1,314,432 1,448,146
1,393,115 1,548,983

Additions to the right-of-use assets during
the year ended 31 December 2023 were
HK$14,645,000 (2022: HK$174,136,000).

As at 31 December 2023, right-of-use assets of
HK810,062,000 have been pledged as security for
the Group's borrowings. Please refer to Note 26
for details.

R20230NEE  FREESE
AN #14,645,0007T (2022
£ ; H&174,136,0007T) ©

HZFE2023&F128318 %
FH#EETEEB810,062,000
TR ERAEREREMR
e EYER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
An e B HRR MR

13(B) LEASES (continued) 138) HE (&
(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (i) NEEE2EKRERERZE
statement of comprehensive income L
The consolidated statement of comprehensive FecmEmWEmKREI T EA
income shows the following amounts relating to BEEM &%
leases:
2023 2022
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ioEz3 BT T BT T
Depreciation of right-of- {FREEEIRE
use assets
Office premises BFEBYE 5,884 4,275
Car parking assets EEEE 126,119 158,529
8 132,003 162,804
Interest expense (included in #] BB (Gt A
finance costs) B 75 B AR) 10 63,937 68,561
Expense relating to short- 42 HAFA SARRARE =
term leases (included in GtANEEER)
administrative expenses) 8 45,538 21,109
109,475 89,670
The total cash outflow for leases in 2023 was 2023F FHEZREMH 4B
HK$186,576,000 (2022: HK$188,962,000). A8 1186,576,0007T(2022 - /%

#188,962,0007T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13(B) LEASES (continued)

(iii)

The Group’s leasing activities and how
these are accounted for

The Group leases various office premises and
car parking assets. Lease contracts are typically
made for periods of 1 to 20 years, but may have
extension options as described in (iv) below.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-
lease components. The Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative
stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real
estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has
elected not to separate lease and non-lease
components and instead accounts for these as a
single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the security interests
in the leases assets that are held by the lessor.
Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to
borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security
and conditions.

RE B HRRMEE

138) HE &

(iii)

FEBZHAEEHIRAEAR
AR

AEEERZERTENER
FEEE-HEGNBEZRAHE
12205 5T T X E(iv)IE
Ffrai o] 3892 5 AREHF o FH E & X
DEEHNEEGEEER L&
N EVMEFR R & 14 o FE & 17555 WL
BN AE R 3255 o

GHRESHEHERIFEERD -
FEBERBEAEHBUNER
RENIREBEIEEHEEKRIF
HEED A RAEEER
ABAEERMEMS  HEE
BEreNHEERIFEERD > M
ERZEFHEAKRFERE—ME

B&fme

HEFRRIDEER 2R L
6 F & AE AR B R R B AR ©
BRTHBEARAZHEEER
g A B 175 3 Bl 0
Rt -HEBEFTREERH
iR

HEMNREBRETRIOF
REITHIR - HEEREZA R

(FERBEBBWMIL) - AR
FAATR ARG B ERFZE > BE
BIABARREUKBRET
ERACAEEEBEREIN
BEE DUELURR B R R ARMF
BAFBETMEATNHN

EL
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13(B) LEASES (continued)

210

(iii)

The Group’s leasing activities and how
these are accounted for (continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee
as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third
party financing was received,

o uses a build-up approach that starts with
a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit
risk for leases held by the Group, which
does not have recent third party financing;
and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease,
e.g. term, country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is
available to the individual lessee (through recent
financing or market data) which has a similar
payment profile to the lease, then the group
entities use that rate as a starting point to
determine the incremental borrowing rate.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases
in variable lease payments based on an index or
rate, which are not included in the lease liability
until they take effect. When adjustments to lease
payments based on an index or rate take effect,
the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted
against the right-of-use asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13(B) LEASES (continued)

(iii)

The Group’s leasing activities and how
these are accounted for (continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated
over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the
lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s useful life. While the Group
revalues its land and buildings that are presented
within property, plant and equipment, it has
chosen not to do so for the right-of-use buildings
held by the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-
value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis
as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.
Low-value assets comprise IT equipment and small
items of office furniture.

RE B HRRMEE

138) HE &

(iii)

FEEZHEEEHREAK
AR @

EREEE-—RBEENER
FHAEBERZREE  LERE
BETHE - HASEGERTE
TEBEEER AERAREE
RERMEENDEREHRET
WE-BFREEFHYE BB
RRBETH LM RIEFENT
BEEMG AEREEIHER
EREREETETEESMG.

RERSBERAAEURMME
BEEEEAENMERER XU
BHEREEREBEEPRIAMZ
M EAMEEBEA12BIUA
NS - BREESEGEENR
BB N B A E R o
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13(B) LEASES (continued)

212

(iii)

(iv)

The Group’s leasing activities and how
these are accounted for (continued)

The Group has adopted Amendment to HKFRS
16 — COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions.
The amendment provides an optional practical
expedient allowing lessees to elect not to
assess whether a rent concession related to
COVID-19 is a lease modification.
adopting this election may account for qualifying
rent concessions in the same way as they
would if they were not lease modifications.
The practical expedient only applies to rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the
following conditions are met: a. the change in
lease payments results in revised consideration for
the lease that is substantially the same as, or less
than, the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change; b. any reduction in lease
payments affects only payments due on or before
30 June 2022; and c. there is no substantive
change to other terms and conditions of the
lease.

Lessees

The Group has applied the practical expedient to
all qualifying COVID-19-related rent concessions.

Lease income from operating leases where the
Group is a lessor is recognised in income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included
in a number of leases across the Group. These
are used to maximise operational flexibility
in terms of managing the assets used in the
Group’s operations. The majority of extension and
termination options held are exercisable only by
the Group and not by the respective lessor.
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(iii)

(iv)

FEBEZEEEIREAKR
AR @

FEECRKRMEBHBRSE
ZERIZE1658 2 R5T-COVID-1948
NS RE ZEERREMRT
— O EENEE AL AT
AMANEZERTEECOVID-19
EENEERERS A —1BH
BT A EERENAM
AABEE U EHEETINE
BARKEEEERNEASH
ot AIITHEE A AEBARR
COVID-19ARRIT IR EHETLE
MEXNHEEESE W EETR
BUTHBRENBRETNER !
A FAEZTHMNEHERETE
NEEHEHREEENNME
EHEEANBERIELD ;b.EM[
HMEZHB R ERLE20224F
6830 ATEIHAN S & 5 A
CHENEMERMEELIEE
BiEEEo

AEBCEHFMBELSE KA
COVID-1918RE M TE = HZE A
TRfTHEE R A

HAEBEAHEA QESERE
FIEREWRALEREERE
HAR IS U AFESD

FERARE R AR 1L 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B HRRMEE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14 KEYE
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
At fair value BANEE
Opening balance at 1 January M1 B1H Z BB 4 85 615,579 257,466
Addition (Note) wnE (HE) 125,442 109,376
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 34) WiE—EM BB (Bat34) - 81,813
Changes in fair value recognised RiFeaeEBR@ERPERZ
in the consolidated statement of NABEES Hat7)
comprehensive income (Note 7) 116,530 198,100
Exchange differences PEERE (16,325) (31,176)
Closing balance at 31 December R12831H Z AR R 841,226 615,579
Note: o2
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has acquired EER2023F AL A 95,625,000 F B
carpark buildings of HK$95,625,000 and HK$29,817,000 in 29,817,000t R EEFMIER D BB FEESR K
Chongging and Beijing respectively. & o
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has acquired EER2022FALLAE®EA41,412,0007TF B
a carpark building of HK$41,412,000 and HK$67,964,000 in 67,964,0007Ch EE MG L 2D B UL BE —EE (= 5
Chonggqing and Foshan respectively. BRI o
Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of MBEEMER G S 2B W =R NER
comprehensive income for investment properties: Z &
2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$000
BT BT T
Rental income GEREALON 41,617 28,375
Direct operating expenses from REBELEHESWANZZEZ
properties that generated rental HiEREZH
income (10,742) (7,535)
Gain from changes in fair value of KREMEANEBEE 2 W@
investment properties (Note 7) (B1a£7) 116,530 198,100
As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no unprovided R2023F 128310 KEE W R
contractual obligations for future repairs and MRREBRERE REBEHENET
maintenance (2022: Nil). (20224 : #E) o
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Investment properties are held for long-term rental
yields and are not occupied by the Group. Investment
property is initially measured at cost, including related
transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.
Subsequently, they are carried at fair value. Changes in
fair values are presented as part of the “other gains,
net” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income (Note 7).

Independent valuations of the Group’s investment
properties situated in Chongging, Chengdu, Beijing
and Foshan are performed by the external independent
valuers, Jones Lang LaSalle Inc. and Cushman &
Wakefield, to determine the fair value of the investment
properties as at 31 December 2023.

Independent valuations of the Group’s investment
properties situated in Chongqging and Foshan are
performed by the external independent valuer, Wokesen
(Beijing) International Assets Assessment Limited
Company, to determine the fair value of the investment
properties as at 31 December 2022.

Independent valuation of the Group’s investment
property situated in Hong Kong is performed by the
independent external valuer, AA Property Services
Limited, to determine the fair value of the investment
property as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14
Fair value hierarchy

The following table analyses the investment properties
carried at fair value, by fair value hierarchy levels.

RE B HRRMEE

REWE (&
DREERR

TREBEETZDNTRAAEEY
RZREYFE-

Significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3)

JEREHIRMEZ
BEEHEAA (BE=HREKHN)
2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BEF T
Recurring fair value measurements & EMHA A EESE
Investment properties: "EWE .
Carpark building — Beijing FEHAE—IR 110,368 77,102
Carpark building - Chengdu (EE NSl g 137,837 153,725
Carpark building — Chongging FHFRKE-BE 269,783 63,537
Carpark building — Foshan FEIZRE— L 316,838 314,315
Residential building — Hong Kong FEB-FB 6,400 6,900
841,226 615,579

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that causes the
transfer. There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and
3 during the year.

FEBNBRANREELENERS
BRzEBAREBL - FA > FE KRR

B~ %6 T RAR B LUK B = Ak AR Bl 2 [
A R ER A o
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i e IR R MY EE
14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14 KBEWE(E
Fair value measurements using significant FEFEERRUHEEEHRBADN
unobservable inputs (Level 3) [REESE (BE=ZREF)
Carpark Carpark Carpark Carpark  Residential
building- building- building- building- building-
Beijing Chengdu  Chongging Foshan  Hong Kong Total
BERAR- BERAE- GEEAE- GFESAE- fred-
Iz e EE I &3 it
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
Vil do Vil do Vil do Vil do Vil do ETr
2023 2023
Opening balance at R203E1 BB Z B
1 January 2023 17,102 153,725 63,537 314,315 6,900 615,579
Acquisition HE 29,817 - 95,625 - - 125,442
Gains/{losses) recognised i~ R EMNERED 2 WG/ (BB
other gains, net 5,506 (11,501) 111,698 1,327 (500) 116,530
Exchange differences EREE (2,057) (4,387) (1,077) (8,804) = (16,325)
Closing balance at R023E12831 B 2K ES
31 December 2023 110,368 137,837 269,783 316,838 6,400 841,226
Carpark Carpark Carpark Carpark Residential
building- building- building- building- building-
Beijing Chengdu Chongging Foshan Hong Kong Total
FEEAE- FESAR- RBEENE- FEEAE- freg-
bl e E Ll By )
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFr BEFr
2022 2022
Opening balance at RNRE1B1H 2 B45
1 January 2022 83,595 166,671 - - 7,200 257,466
Acquisition HE = = 41,412 67,964 = 109,376
Acquisition of a subsidiary  MEFAF - - - 81,813 - 81,813
Gainsfllosses) recognised in P EflERRz MG/ ()
other gains, net - - 24113 174,287 (300) 198,100
Exchange differences ERER (6,493) (12,946) (1,988) (9,749) = (31,176)
Closing balance at RNNENRNRZEXES
31 December 2022 71,102 153,725 63,537 314,315 6,900 615,579
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Valuation processes of the Group

The Group’s investment properties were valued at 31
December 2023 by independent professionally qualified
valuers who hold a recognised relevant professional
qualification and have recent experience in the locations
and segments of the investment properties valued. For
all investment properties, their current use equates to
the highest and best use.

The Group’s senior management reviews the valuations
performed by the internal valuation team and
independent valuers for financial reporting purposes.

At each financial year end, the senior management:

o verifies all major inputs to the valuation;

J assesses property valuations movements when
compared to the prior year valuation; and

. holds discussions with the internal valuation team
and independent valuers.

14

RE B HRRMEE

REWE (&
FEBGERRE

AEBZKREMEDBAFTEARNME
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REFRKERO/RSRRERRT
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MBHEMSMETHME.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Valuation techniques

The Group obtains valuations for its investment
properties at least annually.

At the end of each reporting period, the directors
update their assessment of the fair value of each
property, taking into account the most recent valuations.
The directors determine a property’s value within a range
of reasonable fair value estimates.

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in
an active market for similar properties. Where such
information is not available the directors consider
information from a variety of sources including:

o current prices in an active market for properties
of different nature or recent prices of similar
properties in less active markets, adjusted to
reflect those differences

o discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows

o capitalised income projections based upon a
property’s estimated net market income, and a
capitalisation rate derived from an analysis of
market evidence.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B HRRMEE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Valuation techniques (continued)

The following table analyses the level 3 investment
properties carried at fair value, by valuation techniques.

14 KEYE(E
fL{EFRM 2

TREGERMD N
ME @R AREBETIER) -

s —

E=—MmAKRE

Relationship of
Range of unobservable
Property Fair value at31 December Valuation technique(s) Unobservable inputs unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
FRBENEY FBREE HE
nE R12BNAZAREE hERH HEEA FEBRNEZ HEEASE BARARBEZEG
2023 2022 2023 2022
HKS 000 HKS000
Vilawd Vilava
Carpark building - Befjing N/A(Note) 77,002 Market approach Comparable’s unit selling N/A RMB258,000  The higher the unit selling
BERE-IR TER (W) Tk price ER Per parking price, the higher the
atNEZENER space space fair value
SEFBAARE EfifEER:
258,000 RBEES
110,368 N/A (Note)  Income approach Rental growth rate 2%-3% N/A~ The higher the rental
FER () (discounted cash flow) HEEXERX TR growth rate, the hight
Wit (BRRERE) the fair value
kA= S
NBEES
Discounted rate 4.5%5.5% NA~ The higher the discount
i3k TR rate, the lower the fair
value
EREER.
RpBEEM
Capitalisation rate 3% NA The higher the
BAfLEE TBR capitalisation rate, the
lower the fair value
ExfitEds,
ABEEE
Carpark building - Chengdu N/A 153,725 Income approach (discounted cash ~ Comparable’s unit selling N/A RMB120,000-  The higher the unit selling
BESAE-AH TER flow) and market approach price TER RMB150,000 price, the higher the

WA EREERE) R%E

NEZENER

Rental growth rate

AEEXERE

Discounted rate
BRx

Capitalisation rate

s

per parking space

SEFBf

AE%120,0007

FARM150,0007

N/A 3%
ER

N/A 6.27%
RER

N/A 3.27%
ER

space fair value
EfiEEis

RBEME

The higher the rental
growth rate, the hight
the fair value

HERREER.
RBEES

The higher the discount
rate, the lower the fair
value

E3ESIEE
ABEEE

The higher the
capitalisation rate, the
lower the fair value

ExfitEds.
ABEEM
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14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14 RKREWE (&
Valuation techniques (continued) HER (&
Relationship of
Range of unobservable
Property Fair value at31 December Valuation technique(s) Unobservable inputs unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
FERRIMEL FEBRRUEZHE
g K12A3MAZAAEE fhERH YEEA FRBENEZ HEGAEE BARRABEZER
2023 2022 2023 2022
HKS 000 HKS000
Vil-aw Vel A
Carpark building - Chengdu 137,837 N/A (Note)  Income approach (discounted cash ~ Rental growth rate 3% NA The higher the rental
BESAE-AH TER (f3) flow) fsE=ERR TER growth rate, the hight
WAt BERRERE) the fair value
kRS
NEERE
Discounted rate 5.5% NA~ The higher the discount
ERE TER rate, the lower the fair
value
E3ESIE
ABEEM
Capitalisation rate 0% NA  The higher the
BRfLE TBR capitalisation rate, the
lower the fair value
EXfit s
NRBEME
Carpark building - Chongging N/A (Note) 63537 Market approach Comparable’s unit selling N/A RMB70,000-  The higher the unit selling
FERKE-EE TER () Ly price TER RMB160,000 price, the higher the
ENEZENER per parking space space fair value

BEEEM  EUEEHS
ARE70,0007E ABEHS

AR 160,000
269,783 N/A (Note)  Income approach (discounted cash ~ Rental growth rate 3% N/A~ The higher the rental
FER (i) flow) HEEXERX TER growth rate, the hight
WA @ERRERE) the fair value
kA= S
ABEES
Discounted rate 5.5% /A The higher the discount
i3 TEE rate, the lower the fair
value
ERzds
RpBEEM
Capitalisation rate 2% NA~ The higher the
BAfLHLE B8R capitalisation rate, the
lower the fair value
ExfitZis,
REEHE
Carpark building - Foshan N/A (Note) 216,780 Market approach Comparable’s unit selling N/A RMB80,000-  The higher the unit selling
FEAAE-HL FER (H3) R price TER RMB160,000 price, the higher the
L7 EER per parking space space fair value

SEEEN ENERUS
AE580,0007F RBEME
AEH160,00070
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

14 KEYE(E

2'11 P
177 g |

RA#5 SR R P 5E

Valuation techniques (continued) HERA (&
Relationship of
Range of unobservable
Property Fair value at31 December Valuation technique(s) Unobservable inputs unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
FERRIMEL FEBRRUEZHE
g K12A3MAZAAEE e YEEA FRBENEZ HEUAEE BARRABEZER
2023 2022 2023 2022
HKS 000 HKS 000
Vil-awd Vel A
Carpark building - Foshan N/A (Note) 97,535 Income approach (discounted cash ~ Comparable’ s unit selling N/A RMBB80,000-  The higher the unit selling
BESAR-HU TER () flow) and market approach price FEB  RMB160,000 per price, the higher the
WK BRRSRE) RAE atNEzBER parking space space fair value
SERBM  EfifEdm
AE80,0007F AREEY
AR%160,0007
Rental growth rate N/A 3%  The higher the term rate,
AelEE TER the lower the fair value
ReERTUR
ABEES
Discounted rate N/A 7% The higher the discount
finx TER rate, the lower the fair
value
HEIESIR
NREEME
Capitalisation rate N/A 3.7%  The higher the
Eryns TER capitalisation rate, the
lower the fair value
ErfxEn AnER
o
316,838 N/A (Note)  Income approach (discounted cash ~ Rental growth rate 3% NA The higher the rental
TER () flow) AEEXERE TR growth rate, the hight
WA BRRETE) the fair value
kRS
NEERE
Discounted rate 6% NA~ The higher the discount
ERE TER rate, the lower the fair
value
E3ESIEE
NBEEE
Capitalisation rate 0% N/A - The higher the
BAfLLE TER capitalisation rate, the
lower the fair value
Exfit s,
NREEME
Residential building - 6,400 6,900 Income approach (term and Term rate 23% 2% The higher the term rate,
Hong Kong reversionary method) ikl the lower the fair value
ftER-54 WA BERESE) ikt
NRBEME
Reversionary rate 2.8% 25%  The higher the

ERLE

reversionary rate, the

lower the fair value
[ bES Y

AHBEEE
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Valuation techniques (continued)

As at 31 December 2023, investment properties
of HK$327,612,000 are securitised for quasi-REITs
structured asset securitisation products. Please refer to
Note 27 for details.

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2023, management considered
that the income approach would be more appropriate for the
valuation of Group's investment properties as investment properties
are securitised or are planned to be securitised for quasi-REITs
structured asset securitisation products.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B HRRMEE

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 15 HMIERBHEE
2023 2022
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
=3 ABIETT BT
Goodwill [GES d 133,959 136,725
Intangible assets mEEE a 275,490 166,974
Others HAts b 120,839 99,534
530,288 403,233
Note: Wzt
(a) The carrying amounts of intangible assets as at 31 (a) B EEZREREENR2023F128
December 2023 and 2022 are as follows: 31HM2022%128318WTF -
Carpark Funds
operating  Concession management
rights rights contracts Software
(Note (1) (Note (i) (Note (i) (Note (iv) Total
FEBTERE HirlE H2EELY B
(=) (i) (et (i) () Bt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT

At 1 January 2022 1202251818

Cost D% 72,302 106,906 30,167 = 209,375
Accumulated amortisation Rt (38,034) (6,483) (18,959) = (63,476)
Net carrying amount REFE 34,268 100,423 11,208 = 145,899
Opening net carrying amount FENREFE 34,268 100,423 11,208 - 145,899
Addition HE - = 1,158 23,123 24,281
Transfer 3 - 26,348 - = 26,348
Amortisation charged BIHER (4,121 (6,652) (3,480) (1,327) (15,580)
Exchange differences ERER (4,115) (8,398) (800) (661) (13,974)
At 31 December 2022 20225128318 26,032 111,721 8,086 21,135 166,974
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OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS (continued) 15 HthIERSHEE &
Note: (continued) HizE o ()
(a) The carrying amounts of intangible assets as at 31 (a) B EEZREREENR2023F128
December 2023 and 2022 are as follows: (continued) 318M20224128318WF : (&)
Carpark Funds
operating  Concession management
rights rights contracts Software
(Note (i) (Note (i) (Note (i) (Note (iv) Total
FEGREE Wi ESEEAN it
(Hz0)) (i) (a2 (i) () &3t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BT BT BT BT BT
At 31 December 2022 #20235181H
Cost A 66,685 124,151 28,947 22,422 242,205
Accumulated amortisation Rt (40,653) (12,430) (20,861) (1,287) (75,231)
Net carrying amount REFE 26,032 111,721 8,086 21,135 166,974
Opening net carrying amount ENREFE 26,032 111,721 8,086 21,135 166,974
Addition HE - - - 7,144 7,144
Transfer B - 137,182 - - 137,182
Amortisation charged BIHER (4,227) (11,021) (3,060) (3,576) (21,884)
Exchange differences EREH (750) (12,091) (475) (610) (13,926)
At 31 December 2023 20235128318 21,055 225,791 4,551 24,093 275,490
At 31 December 2023 120235128318
Cost A 64,800 248,929 28,128 28,932 370,789
Accumulated amortisation Rt (43,745) (23,138) (23,577) (4,839) (95,299)
Net carrying amount REFE 21,055 225,791 4,551 24,093 275,490

Amortisation of intangible assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their costs to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Concession rights 10 to 30 years
Carpark operating rights 5 to 10 years
Funds management contracts 3 to 10 years
Software 3 to 10 years
See Note 37.7 for the other accounting policies relevant
to intangible assets, and Note 37.8 for the Group’s policy

regarding impairments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS (continued)

Note: (continued)

(i)

(i)

Carpark operating rights represent the carpark
operating rights held by E Park Investment
Management Co., Ltd. ("E Park”), Urban Parking
Beijing Limited (“Urban Parking”) and their
subsidiaries. The rights entitled the Group to
operate a number of carparks in the PRC for 3 years
to 10 years over which the cost will be amortised.

Concession rights represents right to operate a
number of carparks in the PRC for 5 to 30 years
over which the cost will be amortised pursuant to
the service concession agreements.

The Group entered into service concession
arrangements with local governments or parties in
respect of its carpark projects in different locations
in Mainland China on a Build-Operate-Transfer
("BOT") basis. Under the service concession
arrangements, the Group was responsible
for construction of the carpark assets in the
construction phase and operated these carpark
assets. The Group generated cash flows over the
operation phase of these arrangements. During
the construction phase of BOT projects, the Group
recognised construction service revenue at fair
value based on construction costs plus a mark-
up margin. During the operation phase of BOT
projects, the Group operates and maintain the
carpark assets at a specified level of serviceability
on behalf of the grantors for periods ranging from
5 to 30 years (2022: 5 to 30 years) (the "Service
Concession Periods”). The carpark assets will be
transferred to the respective grantors at the end of
the Service Concession Periods for BOT. The BOT
arrangements do not contain renewal options or
any termination rights to any of the contracting
parties.

RE B HRRMEE
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OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS (continued) 15

HERSEE (2

Note: (continued) HizE o ()
(ii) (continued) (ii) (#)
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
" »®
2023% 20224
Region: the PRC & : PE 12A31H 12A31H
Total numbers of projects THE @8 23 18
Total numbers of carpark lots EREEg 6,501 5,153
Minimum service concession periods BEFRR/NE 5 5
Maximum service concession periods — EEERRAE 30 30

(i) Funds management contracts represent the
contracts entered by a subsidiary of the Group,
Shoucheng Rongshi (Beijing) Fund Management
Company Limited and its subsidiaries with
other parties. The contracts granted the Group
to manage the funds held on behalf of other
contracting parties and receive management
income as return for 1 year to 10 years over which
the cost will be amortised.

(iv) Software consists of capitalised development costs
being an internally generated intangible asset.

(b) The balance mainly represents prepayment of expenditures
in related to certain carpark operating projects.

(c) As at 31 December 2023, concession rights of

HK$64,993,000 have been pledged as security for the
Group's borrowings. Please refer to Note 26 for details.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS (continued)

Note: (continued)

(d)

Goodwill impairment assessment

For the purpose of impairment test of goodwill, goodwill
is allocated to groups of CGU(s). Such groups of CGU(s)
represent the lowest level within the Group for which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purpose.
The Group has only one group of CGU(s) according to its
business operation during the year ended 31 December
2023 and 2022. Impairment review on the goodwill of
the Group has been conducted by the management as at
31 December 2023 and 2022. The Group conducted the
annual impairment test on goodwill for its group of CGU(s)
by comparing its recoverable amount to its carrying amount
as at 31 December 2023 and 2022. The recoverable amount
of the group of CGU(s) is determined based on the higher
amount of value-in-use calculations and fair value less costs
of disposal.

At 31 December 2023, the Group completed goodwill
impairment test on its group of CGU(s). The recoverable
amount of the goodwill was determined based on value-
in-use calculations. The value-in-use calculations used cash
flow projection based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period and a pre-tax
discount rate of 12% (2022: 12%). Cash flows beyond the
5-year period are extrapolated using a steady 5% (2022:
5%) growth rate of this group of CGU(s).

RE B HRRMEE
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16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 16 #REHEIDzEmMT A

2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$000
BT BEFT
Financial assets EMEE
Financial assets at amortised BB ANRZ ERIEE
cost (including cash and cash (BERE MBS EEY)
equivalents) 4,556,596 4,460,240
Financial assets at FVOCI BAnBEFAEMEE
WmzemMEE 2,365,064 2,295,680
Financial assets at FVPL BARBEFANERZ
TREE 2,262,985 2,690,027
2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT
Financial liabilities Ecd B=RE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost R RMANRZ EREE 2,726,549 3,122,697
Financial liabilities at FVPL BARBEFNERZ
TREE 384,942 88,386
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B HRRMEE

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2023 and 2022:

Place of
incorporation
or registration/

Issued and

17

FEMBAE

TNERESH2023F12831HM2022F
12B31HZFEWNB AT :

Proportion of issued share/

Name of subsidiary operations fully paid share registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
R,/
WEAR%E REm BEITRBARRE FRAAREEETRG/ERERLH FTEER
Directly Indirectly
E# S
2023 2022 2023 2022
% % % %
Shoucheng Management Company Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 100 100 = = Provision of
BRERERAH &% Ordinary shares management services
#1100,0007 B BR RUEERY
Shoucheng Services Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Ordinary shares 100 100 - - Provision of
BRRBERAH i AT EER management services
REEERS
Shouhe Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - - 100 100 Provision of asset
BAERAR EE Ordinary shares management services
715,000,000 % B RUEBEEERY
Shoucheng Rongshi (Beijing) Fund The PRC RMB239,500,000 - - 100 100 Provision of private fund
Management Company Limited* FE A& 1239,500,0007 management services
(Note () REMNEESERRE
BERE (R A2ER
BRAR (M)
Beijing West Fund Management Co., Ltd.  The PRC RMB90,000,000 - - 100 100 Provision of equity
("Beijing West")* (Note (1)) FE AR 90,000,0007T investment
LTRRAEAEREESERRRAT REtRERE
(TR (Hazi)
Beijing Shoucheng Jishi Investment The PRC RMB105,049,935 - - 100 100 Provision of investment
Limited* (Note (})) FE AR #105,049,9357% management services
TRERERRERRAR (1) RUEZEEERY
E Park Investment Management Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC RMB1,182,155,326 - - 100 100 Carpark operation
(Note (i) e AR11,182,155,3267 BHpLE
BRE (IR REERERAT (W70)
Beijing Shouzhong Car Parking The PRC RMB220,000,000 - = 99 99 Carpark operation
Management Company Limited FE AR 220,000,000 FHFTE

("Shouzhong Parking")* (ote (7))

PRETREEEERAT
(TE S5 (H0)
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17  PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17 FEWRBAE &
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 TERETIH2023FE12831HF20224
December 2023 and 2022: (continued) 12B31HZFEWB AR : (&
Place of
incorporation
or registration/  Issued and Proportion of issued share/
Name of subsidiary operations fully paid share registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
R,/
WEAR%HE BEH BEITRBARRS FRARREREARG AREXLH TEEH
Directly Indirectly
E# fitk
2023 2022 2023 2022
% % % %

Beijing Lu Tong Shun Jie Car Parking The PRC RMB20,851,500 - = 80 80 Carpark operation
Management Company Limited* FE AR20,851,5007 BEFLE
(Note (1)

FTRRBIERFERER
BIRAE (W)

E Park (Chengdu) Car Park Management ~ The PRC RMB33,000,000 - - 100 100 Carpark operation
Company Limited* (Note () FE AR 33,000,0007 PEBLE

BRE () FEHER
BRAR (W)

Nanjing Qinhuaizhuyi Car Parking The PRC RMB4,000,000 - - 100 100 Carpark operation
Management Company Limited* ol AR %4,000,0007 FEBLE
(Note ()

BRAERREEERERAA W)

Nanjing Shouginzhuyi Car Parking The PRC RMB10,200,000 - - 98 92 Carpark operation
Management Company Limited* ol AR %10,200,0007 FHEBLE
(Note ()

BRERERFBEEEBRAT ()

Beijing Shouyuan Xinneng Investment The PRC RMB30,000,000 - - 100 100 Provision of equity
Management Company Limited* FE A& 30,000,007 investment
(Note () RiERE

FTREHEREERERAR (H20)

Beijing Shouzhong Jingtai Transportation ~ The PRC RMB300,000,000 - - 80 80  Carpark operation
Car Parking Management Company FE AR 300,000,0007 FEFLE
Limited* (Note (1)

FTREPHERBFEER
BIRAE (M)

Yibo (Beijing) Private Equity Fund The PRC RMB50,000,000 - - 100 100 Provision of private fund
Management Co., Limited* (Note (j)) R AE#50,000,0007 management services

BAER AEESER RULEESEERS
BIRAE (M)

Chengdu Shougang Silk Road Equity The PRC RMB10,000,000 - - 70 70 Provision of private fund
Investment Fund Management Co., Ltd. ~ H'E AE#10,000,0007% management services
(Note (i)) RULEESEERS

RBEBMEREREESER
BIRAE (W)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:
(i) Limited company established in the PRC

* For identification purposes only

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affect
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

As at 31 December 2023, equity interests of two of
the Group’s subsidiaries, namely Chongqing Zhujie Real
Estate Management Co., Ltd. and Chongging Chengjie
Real Estate Management Co., Ltd., have been pledged
as security for the Group's borrowings. The subsidiaries
mainly hold the Group’s investment properties amounted
to HK$71,026,000 as at 31 December 2023 (Note
14). Please refer to Note 26 for details of the Group's
borrowings.

None of the subsidiaries have non-controlling interests
that are material to the Group.

17

RE B HRRMEE

TEWBAR &

(i) RHREMIZAREEATE

* E# 5

ERINHEERREERELERE
BHAEEZETATDNBLRE - EFR
mORRHEMKNB AR ZHFBRER
HBEBR AR

B E2023F128310  EER M F
NREHNEE DHAEEERNTEE
EEBRABDMEENNITEEERE
BERABDHERAEERGBRBER.
HE2023F128310 EEF R E
ERAEEENREYEXEHABE
71,026,0007¢ (fYsE14) - EBEERH
FIEFE2BIMET260

ZEMBABNAFERMEEAI
EREDRSTEERMSBEK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
An e B HRR MR

18(A) INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 18(A) REHE AR ZIRE

Set out below are the associates of the Group as at 31 DUF#EAAEER2023F1283182
December 2023 which, in the opinion of the directors, BMENE EFERAZELBHAE
are immaterial to the Group. The entities listed below EMEBEAR T AR ZKRAER
have share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, ZERMAN ERAEBEREFTRE %
which are held directly by the Group. The country of LENBZzEAME I NFRERTAR
incorporation or registration is also their principal place EoTEEEME BFRERER Y
of business, and the proportion of ownership interest is EbB B pRr i ig R 2 LEBIAR A o

the same as the proportion of voting rights held.

All of these associates are accounted for using the equity REEMBRERIMBLESFEHER
method in these consolidated financial statements. Bl NAEFE AR IEIER
The carrying amounts of investments in associates as at BERB 2R EREENR2023F128
31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follows: 31HM20224128318W T -

Proportion of
issued shares/

Place of Principal place Measurement registered capital held
Name of entity incorporation of operation  method by the Group Carrying amount Principal activities
FEABEEETRG/
R AMEIE TEEEME HERE EMERZ LA REE TEEH
2023 2022 2023 2022
HKS$'000 HK$'000
BlEFr  EEFT
Immaterial associates below
NTAREAKERT
Beijing Vstartup Investment and ~ The PRC The PRC Equity method 22.57% 22.57% 94,641 136,624  Leasing of shared
Development Co., Ltd.* HE HE ik workplace for startups
TREFAHKEERERAT REERARMEERR
WABH
Beijing West Business Factoring  Hong Kong The PRC Equity method 11.68% 11.68% 20,928 20,736 Provision of trade
Company Limited* (Note (a) &% HE i 3 financing
REBEREFRAF (1) REBZRE
Beijing Bayi Space LCD The PRC The PRC Equity method 3.02% - 117,349 - Produces and sells liquid
Technology Co., Ltd.* (Note (a)) S HE i 3 crystal materials
ERNERERER RN LENHERSMH
BRAF (@)
Other immaterial associates 8,446 6,430
HthFEEABE QT
241,364 163,790
3 For identification purposes only e EeT= ik
Note (a): Management has assessed the level of influence that Kiaita): EEMEBENGEAEREZERE
the Group has on these investments and detemined NEEBHKE TEREEAEBEAY
that it has significant influence even through the EH - ARNESFTERRNEFER BNE
shareholding is below 20% because of board R FIMER20% > ELERECIHE
representation. Consequently, these investments have BARBERE .

been classified as associates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18(A) INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

()

(i)

Commitments and contingent liabilities
in respect of associates

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not
have any material commitments and contingent
liabilities in respect of associates (2022: Nil).

Summarised financial information of
material associates

Individually immaterial associates

In addition to the interests in associate disclosed
above, the Group also has interests in a number
of individually immaterial associates that are
accounted for using the equity method.

18(A) F B
0]

(i)

RE B HRRMEE

EBARZIRE (&
BERBEATRNHAERE

HIEF2023F12A318 L&
B AEBITRETAMNEE
NEEBARNHAEE (20224

)
FEMEQATMBERE

1G5 FFEABE L E]

bR ESORBER B E AR oI
AEBTHEBEATEBIFFEKN
BMEATDNED  UEmEA
fRe

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Aggregate carrying amount  {ERJIEE R E QT
of individually immaterial IREE4E%E
associates 241,364 163,790
Aggregate amounts of the REBBMGUTEIBENELE
Group's share of
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (BB &F (31,502) 499
Other comprehensive loss Hngs18 (1,304) (8,808)
Total comprehensive loss S HEEEEEE (32,806) (8,309)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An e B HRR MR

18(B) INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 18(B) REE AT ZIRE

2023 2022

Note HK$000 HK$'000

k=23 EEFT BT

Opening balance at 1 January 1A 1B VHRIEREE 650,204 854,694

Share of losses BLER (31,381) (60,820)

Dividend received WEINRE - (20,360)

Capital reductions BE (38,234) =
Derecognition of interest in a joint & IFERBEEGENER 34

venture - (61,063)

Exchange differences bE &2 & 28 (19,984) (62,247)

Closing balance as 31 December & ZE12H31HMHIREREE 560,605 650,204

Set out below are the joint ventures of the Group
as at 31 December 2023 and 2022. The country of
incorporation or registration is also their principal place
of business, and the proportion of ownership interest is
the same as the proportion of voting rights held.

LU AREBR2023F K%2022F12
B31HZAE AR ZERBMILI
HAMBERINARE T ESEMEL
BFfEEDR 2 LA EMTRERY
EEBIAR[E] o

Proportion of
issued shares/

Place of Principal place registered capital held
Name of entity incorporation  of operation by the Group Carrying amount Principal activities
FEBNEERTRG/
AGE SR  FEREENE  HERE HREFZ LA RER TEEH
2023 2022 2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$000
EEF7T BB
Guangzhou Shouzhong Wanwu The PRC The PRC Equity method 70.07% 70.07% 403,696 429,928  Carpark management services
Corporate Management Limited # 3 FERBERE

Partnership*® (Note (a))
BENETENCEERABLER
(@)
Other immaterial joint ventures
(Note (b))
EtIEBARERR (W)

156,909 220,276

560,605 650,204

d Limited company established in the PRC

o For identification purposes only
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18(B) INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)

Note (a):As at 31 December 2023, the Group indirectly owns

*

approximately 70.07% (2022: 70.07%) equity interest in
Guangzhou Shouzhong Wanwu Corporate Management
Limited Partnership* (“Guangzhou Shouzhong Wanwu").
Pursuant to certain terms and conditions given in the equity
owners’ agreement, the financial and operating policies of
Guangzhou Shouzhong Wanwu require approval from all
equity owners. Guangzhou Shouzhong Wanwu is jointly
controlled by the Group and another equity owner and, as
such, it is accounted for as a joint venture of the Group as
at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

For identification purposes only

Note (b):On 28 November 2022, E Park entered into a sale and

(i)

purchase agreement with Shouzhong Wanwu Carpark
Management Co., Ltd.* (BMNEHFBYEESEEERA
7)) and Shenzhen Wanwu Chengchang Consultancy Service
Ltd.* CRIIT B ERBHRFEBRAE) in relation to
acquisition of 30% of equity interests of Foshan Shouzhong
Vanke Gongying Enterprise Management Limited
Partnership* (“Foshan Shouzhong Vanke”) (Ll &+ &
MEREXEESREE (BRE®)), at a consideration
of RMB22,518,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$26,198,000). Details of the acquisition are disclosed in
Note 34.

Commitments and contingent liabilities
in respect of joint ventures

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have
any material commitments or contingent liabilities
in respect of joint ventures (2022: Nil).

RE B HRRMEE

18(B) REEARIZIRE &)

MfEt(a):

HfEE(b):

0]

2023128318 AEB B IZE
BEEMNERENCEXEESEBLE
(BERa®) (BMNEHREY) Y
70.07% (2022 : 70.07%) f&## - iR
BHEDRERS AMERAEZETHRNR
K&t BNEFEM BB RE
BHRBELEBERER AfLE-
20235128318 H2022F128
3TH EMEFEYHAERES
—LEEER AREREG B
RAXEERZ —REE QT °

Eta 5

2022115280 BEEAEMNE
HEYEESEEAERATRE
NHEYMREABAREESRAE
MEERLETEMERLXE
EaeBrXE (BREa%) HBLaH
BR)30%RETIEE R R
BAANRME22,518,0007T (49818
26,198,0007T) o s 1B MIEE34 0

ERESEATINEERIAR
afE
HIEE2023F12831HIEE
E AEBTEEEAERSE
ENBRBEANEKERARER
(2022%F : §&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An e B HRR MR

18(B) INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)

(i)

Summarised financial information of
material joint venture

This table below provide summarised financial
information for these joint venture that is
material to the Group. The information disclosed
reflects the amount presented in the financial
statements of the relevant joint venture and
the Group’s share of those amounts. They have
been amended to reflect adjustments made by
the Company when using the equity method,
including fair value adjustments and modifications
in accordance with HKFRSs.

18(B) &

@ii)

BARZIKRE (@)
FEREQAMBENRE

FTERERDZMBEANGRE
I T THEMKETEE
1 28 B 75 ¥R 3R o B9 B 750K 0 X
REBGENDE BT RBRA
B EER R AR RSN
FoEEEREKEETTRE
BEANBEREBNRE(ER
MBWEER) EITHENR -

Guangzhou Shouzhong Wanwu Corporate EBMNEFREYLEEESBLE
Management Limited Partnership* (BIRE)
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Current assets MENEE 6,724 18,190
Non-current assets FERBEE 603,593 668,326
Current liabilities mEas 34,185 72,947
Revenue YON 29,452 56,928
Loss for the year FEEE (3,133) (73,691)
Other comprehensive loss FEHEME2EEBE
for the year (17,935) (57,171)
Total comprehensive loss FESEBERE
for the year (21,068) (130,862)
Dividend paid 2R E - 29,085
Capital reduction & (16,370) =
The above amounts of assets EREENEBBESEBEFUT
and liabilities include the NEA
following:
Cash and cash equivalents HEMREEEY 6,724 18,084
Current financial liabilities nEEMad FEERMERR
(excluding trade and other Ko B FE AT TR I8 A B5 )
payables and provisions) 1,143 656

3 For identification purposes only
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B HRRMEE

18(B) INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)

(i)

(iii)

Summarised financial information of
material joint venture(continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest

18(B) R&E

(i)

FESE
(%)

LtHEMBENRBER RS

REZKRE (&)

AEMBENBE

o

BEARINEGEARD 2D

in the joint venture recognised in the consolidated REEZHIER
financial statements:
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
ABEFT BT
Net assets of Guangzhou BENEFREMFEE
Shouzhong Wanwu 576,132 613,569
Proportion of EERBENETRY 2 HE
the Group's ownership T ¥ 75 LE 11
interest in Guangzhou
Shouzhong Wanwu 70.07% 70.07%
Carrying amount of the Group'sAEBREMNEFTEYEE Z
interest in Guangzhou REE
Shouzhong Wanwu 403,696 429,928
Individually immaterial joint ventures (iii) ﬂEIE'HFEj(A&"\ﬂ
In addition to the interest in joint venture frEXEBENGE AT DI
disclosed above, the Group also has interests in a ﬁ%)ﬁl’%ﬁE?Tl AMIEEKXR
number of individually immaterial joint ventures EERAINER AR ZEA
that are accounted for using the equity method. fRo
2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$'000
ABEFT BT
Aggregate carrying amount of ER|IEEEAREGE R BINIREE
individually immaterial joint 4 zE
ventures 156,909 220,276
Aggregate amounts of the REBBEMGUTEIBENELE
Group's share of
Loss for the year FEEE (28,248) (9,236)
Other comprehensive loss Hnira8%k (7,417) (22,159)
Total comprehensive loss cEWEEE (35,665) (31,395)

The amount due from a joint venture is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

BFEERBDZREARER
W RERANRSAERRFE

St—ERERER-
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An e B HRR MR

19 INVESTMENTS 19 KE
2023 2022
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
b &t BMEFT EMEF T
Financial assets at FVPL NABEFNEZZ
EREE
Debt securities BIRE S a - 380,475
Equity securities R A58 &5 b 140,227 54,964
Foreign currency forward SN = HA 8,393 =
Investment funds KEE® c 1,031,195 849,234
Other securities Hihss 1,068,371 1,337,889
Wealth management products B E M e 14,799 67,465
Financial assets at FVOCI BRARBEFNEM
PENBEZEMEE
Other securities Hh 8 f 133,803 146,413
Equity securities e A 38 5 g 2,231,261 2,149,267
4,628,049 4,985,707
Less: non-current portion B AERENES (3,454,413) (3,490,102)
1,173,636 1,495,605

The Group classifies the following financial assets at
financial assets at FVPL:

o debt investments that do not qualify for
measurement at either amortised cost or FVOCI;

J equity investments that are held for trading, and

o equity investments for which the entity has not
elected to recognise fair value gains and losses
through OCI.

Note (a): It represents investment in debt securities in Hong Kong
of HK$380,475,000 as at 31 December 2022. The fair
value gain relating to the investments are included in
“other gains, net” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (Note 7).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 INVESTMENTS (continued)

Note (b):

Note (c):

Note (d):

Note (e):

It represents investment in listed equity investments
of HK$140,227,000 as at 31 December 2023. The
fair value gain/loss relating to the investments are
included in “revenue” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (Note 5).

It represents unlisted investment funds. The Group
has interests in investment funds which are also
under the Group’s management or advisory services.
The Group earns fees and investment returns from
investment management or advisory activities and fund
distribution activities. The fair value (loss)/gain relating
to the investment funds amounted to HK$941,410,000
(2022: HK$684,328,000) are included in “revenue” in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
(Note 5). And the fair value gain relating to the
investment funds amounted to HK$89,785,000 (2022:
HK$164,906,000) are included in “other gains, net” in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
(Note 7).

It represents investment in listed securities in the PRC
of HK$1,068,371,000 (2022: HK$1,337,889,000) as at
31 December 2023. The fair value (loss)/gain relating
in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income (Note

to the investments are included in “revenue”
5). For the year ended 31 December 2023, the purchase
of HK$333,936,000 (2022:HK$107,303,000) of these
investments are included in “Cash flows from operating
activities” in the consolidated statement of cash flows.
For the year ended 31 December 2023, the proceeds
of HK$119,514,000 (2022:Nil) from disposal of these
investments due included in “Cash flows from operating
activities” in the consolidated statement of cash flows.

It represents the wealth management products issued
by banks with interests at floating rates ranging from
1.25% to 2.45% (2022: 1.65% to 3.15%) per annum
and will mature within one year. The fair value gain
relating to the investments are included in “other gains,

"

net” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income (Note 7).

RE B HRRMEE

19 RE B

mfE£®):

MtEt(c):

W&t (d):

M5 (e):

HisEMW2023F12831HEE
140,227,00075(2022 : B
54,964,0007T) B E MR E o
Bz EEENARBERT B
Bt AGRERR RN NAL (T
5)°

HIEF R EES AEBMPZ
EREESIHEERER MZE
BT BAEENSERBER
BRREEERERTIRES
DEFEHHESER £BAB
#941,410,0007T(20224 © B
684,328,0007T) W EREZZ AR
BE (FB) IRGD B ARS
EE RN WAL (WEE5) - &8
% 751£89,785,00075(20224 & &
#164,906,0007T) 2 REE WA
ABERGDAGEEEEERN
M=t 38 (EE7) o

HIg#®1R2023F128318 8%
1,068,371,0007T (20224 : &g
1,337,889,0007T) BY A E A # /A~ F
MG T2 HMEBES HAZKES
BN AAEBENRTALGERZE
mRPH (e (iEEs) © 522022
F12A3MBILEFEE BEZSR
BEHM107,303,000 05t AR R
EREBRVMCEFHRER o
2023F12B31HIEEE  HEZSE
KEMSHRIBEAE119,514,0007T
FAGERERERNECEET
RE T ©

HAEH N F1.25%E2.45% (2022
F1.65%F3.15%) ZFHEFX
HEFT2EMBEEER BRRV
—FREH AL EEBNARNE
BERFFAGEETERERNTH
P EE (FsE7) o
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INVESTMENTS (continued) 19 KBE @

The Group classifies the following financial assets at FEERBRUTEMEESERAR

financial assets at FVOCI: BESAHMEZEARGEZ EMEE !

. equity investments which are not held for trading . FRRZMEBEEREETY
and which the group has irrevocably elected at YA TE S0 BT T O] B EH h BE IR TE 5%
initial recognition to recognise in this category. RPN AZT S BLER
These are strategic investments and the group HREE AEERATHEE
considers this classification to be more relevant; RN BEAAER -
and

. debt investments where the contractual cash . ERREREALTENFEN
flows are solely principal and interest and the BEBRE MHNRERRERE
objective of the group’s business model is NMHETHREELABRNER
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows B
and selling financial assets.

Note (f):  As at 31 December 2023, these investments comprise HizE(f): B E2023F12831H %%H
listed securities in Hong Kong and Singapore of B E B 55,641,000 kB
HK$55,641,000 and HK$78,162,000 respectively (2022: 78,162,0007T 73 B 7 & 7 K ¥ 0
HK$70,871,000 and HK$75,542,000 respectively). W EMMEESC (2022 DRIAE

70,871,000 01 A 175,542,000
7o)
During the year, the following losses were recognised in FRo U TFEHEEFAREMZ2E NS
other comprehensive income and profit or loss: B -
2023 2022
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
izt EIEFT BWEF T
Loss recognised in other REMeEWRESRZ
comprehensive income 518 (13,622) (27,530)
Dividends from the financial T ANB@m P EMBANZ
assets at FVOCI recognised in REZRAABEESAN
profit or loss in other income Hthemmz
THEEZRE 6 8,989 8,755
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 INVESTMENTS (continued)

Note (g):

Note (h):

Note (i):

RE B HRRMEE

19 RE B

As at 31 December 2023, these investments KiaE(g): BE2023F12831H  ZERE
comprise listed equity investments in Hong Kong of BIEHRM2,231,261,000RE
HK$2,231,261,000 (2022: HK$2,149,267,000). BLETHES (20226 : B
2,149,267,0007T)
During the year, the following gains were recognised in FRo U THREHFAEMEE KRG
other comprehensive income and profit or loss: M -
2023 2022
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Kyat EIEFT HBEF T
Gain recognised in other REMEEKRESRZ
comprehensive income U 291,498 103,675
Dividends from the financial SFABEPEMBAZ
assets at FVOCI recognised in RERAMBESA
profit or loss in other income Hthemlmz
EMEEZRR 6 319,384 406,143
Information about the methods and assumption used in Wizt): EBRBERAABEBESABGZZE
determining fair values of the financial assets at FVPL MEENZAABESAEMEE
and FVOCI are provided in note 3.3. WaHmz EMEENH EMNRENE
I K533 (H o
The investments above are dominated in HK$, RMB and Brate): B ELDUBEE - AR R N

Singapore dollar.

TRE
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An e B HRR MR

20 TRADE RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS,

FEWARTR B PR RRIE IR B R H

DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES fth FE UL TR IR
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$000
BT BT T
Trade receivables & Lt AR =X
— Third parties —%=h 87,491 105,698
— Related parties —RAB AL 118,380 265,873
Trade receivables FE W BR =R 205,871 371,571
Less: Provision for impairment losses 8 : BB &5 18 & & (2,223) (15,610)
203,648 355,961
Prepayments, deposits and other FE{TFIA. &E K
receivables H W FRIE
Prepayments and deposits FENRIERERE 196,140 256,430
Other receivables Hi U R IE 163,050 92,640
Value added tax recoverable AU ]IS (E R 67,653 77,676
Amounts due from related companies & B A B 2 718 86 12,190
Amounts due from a joint venture BF—EEaE B ZHRIE - 29,162
426,929 468,098
Less: Non-current portion B AEREE
Prepayments and deposits SEANENEYSE & (173,854) (167,162)
Current portion RENE 253,075 300,936

The credit terms of trade receivables are normally 30
to 180 days as at 31 December 2023 (2022: 30 to
180 days). The following is an ageing analysis of trade

receivables net of provision for impairment losses based

on the invoice date at the end of the year, which were

similar to the respective revenue recognition dates:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS,
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

RE B HRRMEE

FEMARR R TR R R E R H
fthFE R IR (#2)

(continued)
2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Within 60 days 60H ™ 79,188 167,420
61-90 days 61290H 27,787 8,793
91-180 days 91ZE180H 21,248 22,088
Over 180 days BiB180H 75,425 157,660
203,648 355,961

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. Trade receivables are recognised initially
at the amount of consideration that is unconditional
unless they contain significant financing components,
when they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds
the trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. See Note 37.9(d) for a description of
the Group’s impairment policies.

Due to the short-term nature of the trade receivables,
their carrying amounts are considered to be the same as
their fair value.

FEWNBR R TLIEM A EBMMN EE X8
EHMEmMRAMERZRBEKE
B2 RIE - FEWAR R & = mAR A
BLBEER RIFECTEAMER
DB AABERE AEBRFTERE
WEEF BN ARG NRERE
IERAEBRF R LA RBRUATE
BERAEBREREKNRAE  BFL2HE
FM5E37.9(d) o

AR ERERBRERMTE  HiRE
ERESEEAREERR-
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TRADE RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS, 20 FEWERFIRFEIRIE IEERH
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES fth FEUFRIR (42)
(continued)
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to FEBERAEEMBIRGSENFZORE
measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime EARAtEEHREEFRE AFARE
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. WEIRM B RAARLETAEHRGEEE G - B
Movement in the provision for impairment losses for R BEBBREG 2 EEFEHIIAT
trade receivables is as follow:
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
At 1 January R1A1TH 15,610 1,651
Written-off 1 25 (24,666) (641)
Provision of impairment loss HEBEEE 11,279 14,600
At 31 December 128318 2,223 15,610

Other receivables are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable within one year from the end of the reporting
period.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND TIME
DEPOSITS AT BANKS

RE B HRRMEE

IRITAEER RIRE UK IRITEHATF

=h
TA

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
EBETFT BT T
Cash at bank and in hand RITEFMNIRE 1,708,321 1,796,883
Time deposits at banks RITERER 2,305,598 1,927,456
4,013,919 3,724,339
Less: time deposits with maturity over & : R =188 N ZI A
three months ZEHEFER (1,751,346) (150,654)
2,262,573 3,573,685
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
BMEFT EMEF T
Bank balances and cash and time IRITHEGR MRS AR
deposits at banks are denominated  $R1TEHIFERLL
in the following currencies: THEEIIE :
RMB AR 1,708,609 1,602,889
HK$ B 885,147 1,290,553
us$ E7T 1,420,163 830,897
4,013,919 3,724,339

The time deposits at banks carry interest at market rates
which range from 1.30% to 5.75% (2022: 0.8% to
5.92%) per annum.

RITEHEFNEMNE N F1.30%
ZE5.75% (20224 : 0.8%E5.92%) 2
MBEEEFTE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
An e B HRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #E2023F 128318 LEEE

22 SHARE CAPITAL 22 &
Number of share Share capital
ahE 2 4E] fg 2
Note ‘000 HK$'000
Vi3 Fie BETT
Ordinary shares issued and fully paid: BT R B E LB :
At 1 January 2022 K2022F181H 7,291,017 12,546,847
Share repurchase BBl (15,082) =
At 31 December 2022 and 72022128318
1 January 2023 2023F1H1H 7,275,935 12,546,847
Share repurchase BBl a (158,762) S
Issue of new shares on R2023F 1831 HEEE
31 January 2023 B 10 BF S5 1T RO AR 1) b 252,802 448,000
At 31 December 2023 7R2023%F12831H 7,369,975 12,994,847
Notes (a): During the year ended 31 December 2023, 203,026,000 Kia#(a): BE2023F12B31BLEZEE K

ordinary shares of the Company were repurchased at a
price ranging from HK$1.29 to HK$2.30 per share. The
total amount paid for the repurchase was approximately
HK$378,685,000. 158,762,000 shares repurchased have
been cancelled during the year ended 31 December 2023.
The residual 44,264,000 ordinary shares of the Company
have been cancelled subsequently.

Notes (b):On 31 January 2023, the Company placed a total of K1z b):

approximately 252,802,000 ordinary shares of the
Company to Bt ASFREERMHBERAT (Sunshine Life
Insurance Corporation Limited*) at a placing price of
HK$1.80 per share. The net proceeds from the placing
amounts to approximately HK$448,000,000. For details,
please refer to the Company's announcements dated 13
January 2023 and 31 January 2023.

H

*  For identification purpose only * EitaE

246 Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

AREUERBESRKREE1.29TE
2 30700 f$203,026,00008 & A
AEERRM CIEMARESEYN
#7515378,685,0007T ° (£ 8 £2023
F12B31HEFE AABEEN
158,762,0000% E 3B A AE 10 2 518K o
FI T H944,264,000 I EE R D EBE
2ok o

K2023F 18318 X AR RABIEA
ERBROPBERATAREELARBN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B HRRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #(ZF2023F12831HIEEE

SHARES HELD FOR SHARE INCENTIVE PLAN 23

ARt BB =t BIFR R AR

2023 2023
Number of
Shares
Shares held for share Bi& ¥ B B =t B PR B 49
incentive plan AR ¢=|
‘000 HK$°000
FiR ABETFT
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 20221810 > 20224
2022, 1 January 2023 and 128318 2023F181H
31 December 2023 M2023F12H31H 173,138 298,433

These shares are shares in Shoucheng Holdings Limited
that are held by the Company’s trustee for the purpose
of granting shares under the Company’s share incentive
plan. Shares issued to employees are recognised on a
first-in-first-out basis.

RIESBSEFMFHNERERABRA
BRDBERAREARFTEZR
> AR IRBADRENBE MK
Fzkin - REEHTHRMULE
By 5 TURERE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g'i" P
g o =

FOR THE

R 75 ¥R R P 5

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #ZE2023F12831HILEE

23 SHARES HELD FOR SHARE INCENTIVE PLAN 23 [R#EEHEN:HEIFREFRG (&
(continued)
Share incentive plan A1 Eh =t 2l
The adoption of the share incentive plan (the “Plan”) KRB Z MBS (TAEHE)) B
was approved by shareholders at the general meeting R2021FE1MA3HZRR AT R
on 3 November 2021. The Plan is designed to provide HERM - AFEETRAARTNE
long-term incentives for senior managers and above REBEAE (BREANTES) REES
(including executive directors) to deliver long-term H2EY IR REAR BR[O o A5TE T
shareholder returns. Under the Plan, participants are BEUHNBEREERSFTSRNEGEEERA
granted options which only vest if certain performance AER - ZEEENERAEZSHEAE
standards are met. Participation in the plan is at the FUWERERAFRENGNER - HTF 2
board’s discretion and no individual has a contractual BREEBURNAAB MBS RE A
right to participate in the plan or to receive any EEFMOTERPARESEFENEERR -
guaranteed benefits. The amount of options that will ERENENHEETHEEEA -
vest depends on the Group's performance and the EREDREASGEBERE BEXR
individual grantee’s performance of each year during MI#5 A S R o
the grant and exercise periods. Once vested, the options
remain exercisable for a period of 60 months. Options
are granted under the Plan for no consideration and
carry no dividend or voting rights.
Set out below are summaries of the options granted UTHBREBEAGFEMBEHNEBEREDN
under the plan: BEE
2023 2022
Average exercise Average exercise
price per share Number of price per share Number of
option options option options
SihiEkE SERE.
TiTfEE BRESR THAEE EREYE
HKS 000 HKS 000
Details e BE & EE 7K
As at 1 January R1B1H 1.614 164,300 1624 138,500
Granted during the year RERRH - - 1,560 25,300
Lapsed during the year RERKH 1.614 (40,080) - -
As at 31 December R128318 1.614 124,220 1614 164,300
Vested and exercisable at P12831HERE
31 December R 1.624 33,580 - -
248 Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e TSR R MY 5L

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #(ZF2023F12831HIEEE

SHARES HELD FOR SHARE INCENTIVE PLAN 23 RSB BIFRIFARS (&
(continued)
Share incentive plan (continued) RRIE M ENEtE (&)
No options were expired, exercised and forfeited during ERAORENFRILEEREDE
the periods covered by the above tables. TR R U
Share options outstanding at the end of the year have MUTARERERTENERENE
the following expiry dates and exercise prices: BB RITES !
Share options
31 December
Grant Date Expiry date Exercise price 2023
g
20234
EHBAH [& i#% B HA TGRS 128318
‘000
FhR
5 November 2021 5 November 2024 1.624 33,580
202111 85H 202411 85H
5 November 2021 5 November 2025 1.624 33,580
202111 85H 2025%F1185H
5 November 2021 5 November 2026 1.624 34,600
202111 85H 20265 1185H
2 November 2022 2 November 2025 1.560 7,412
202211 82H 2025%F1182H
2 November 2022 2 November 2026 1.560 7,412
202211 82H 20265 1182H
2 November 2022 2 November 2027 1.560 7,636
202211 82H 2027F1182H
124,220
Weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.04 yearsfF

options outstanding at end of period

FARERTEBREHMEFI9ER T SHFH

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has
recognised an equity-settled share-based expense of
HK$9,557,000 (2022: HK$15,778,000) for the share
options under the plan in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

HZE2023F12831HLEEE - K&ER
BEEGeE2ERERTHMZE TH
ERERAUEZEENROEZNE
FA7&#9,557,0007t (20224 : B
15,778,0007T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An e B HRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #E2023F 128318 LEEE

23 SHARES HELD FOR SHARE INCENTIVE PLAN

(continued)

Fair value of options granted

The assessed weighted average fair value at grant date
of options granted during the year ended 31 December
2023 was HK$0.34 (2022: HK$0.34) per option. The fair
value at grant date is independently determined using an
adjusted form of the Binomial Tree Approach that takes
into account the exercise price, remaining life of the
option, number of intervals, the share price at grant date
and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the
expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for

the term of the option.

The model inputs for options granted during the year

ended 31 December 2022 included:

(a) Grant date

R HH 2022%1182H
(b) Expiry date 2 November 2025
J& i B8R 2025%1182H
(c) Share price at grant date HK$#E#1.560
REBBNKRE
(d)  Exercise price HK$#E 1,560
T1EE
(e) Expected price volatility 39.51%
TARAB R IR 1S
() Risk-free interest rate 4.37%
= E =R
(9) Expected dividend yield 7.64%
TR B

250 Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

2 November 2022

23

2 November 2022

RRIERB St RIFRIRD (B

RUBREZAREE

B E2023F12831HLEEE REYE
EREBREHNERENETE
EEHRANBEASRERBE0.34T
(20224 : B¥0.347T) - RIEHAH
HNAARBELEAKSHEE _XHEER
BRAEE BHsRERENTHEE
T FEH - BENEE WBER) 1
EHHBENKRE BEAROOTERE
BiE - EHRE NG UK BRESE
HB P9 BN 4 B B ) 2K o

REZE2022F12B31HEFEREN
BIRENER G A BB

2 November 2022

2022411 82H 2022411 82H
2 November 2026 2 November 2027
202611828 2027411828
HK$ 7% #1.560 HK$#E%1.560

HK$E#1.560

HK$AE#£1.560

39.51% 39.51%
4.25% 4.17%
7.64% 7.64%



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B HRRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #(ZF2023F12831HIEEE

SHARES HELD FOR SHARE INCENTIVE PLAN 23 PRHESEIst2IFRIFRR(D &)

(continued)
Fair value of options granted (continued) REBREZAREE @)
The model inputs for options granted during the year REE2021F12B31HEFEERHY
ended 31 December 2021 included: ERENERGABIREE
(a) Grant date 5 November 2021 5 November 2021 5 November 2021
B HE 2021411858 2021411 85H 20214511 85H
(b) Expiry date 5 November 2024 5 November 2025 5 November 2026
J& v 5 H#A 20245 1185H 2025%11H5H 2026511 85H
() Share price at grant date HK$#E 1,620 HK$E%1.620 HK$AE#£1.620
REBHNKRE
(d)  Exercise price HK$ B 151.624 HK$ B #51.624 HK$ B H1.624
TEE
(e) Expected price volatility 37.75% 37.75% 37.75%
TEHAES K 18
(f) Risk-free interest rate 0.70% 0.91% 1.11%
= R b F) =
(9) Expected dividend yield 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
TEHARR B W
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An e B HRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #E2023F 128318 LEEE

24 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES,
PROVISION AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

24

FEITARR ~ Eth (I 7RIE ~ BB K
afiE

As at 31 December

H#E128310LLFE
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BEFT
Trade payables FE{TER X 485,585 353,950
Accruals st &R 89,982 100,803
Other payables Hi 1A 91,232 172,371
181,214 273,174

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. These amounts are
presented as current liabilities unless payment is not
due within 12 months after the reporting period. These
amounts are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice dates at the end of the

ZETRERVREEERAIAASE
BiRHEHNARIRERMRERBZEE-
ZEERBEVNNARBER FIEZ
FERNBEHRI12EARKRI -
ZEZBENBUHERABERR  H
BERABERNRZRBRNATE-

RERK BREZEREHENZEAN
R ZERECDATINE ¢

years:
As at 31 December
HENAMMBLEE
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$ 000
BEFT BETFA
Within 90 days 90H W 221,265 94,223
91-180 days 91&180H 39,260 67,894
181-365 days 1812365H 69,600 90,652
Over 365 days 365H L E 155,460 101,181
485,585 353,950

The average credit period on purchase of goods is 90

days. The Group has financial risk management policies

in place to ensure that most of the payables are within
the credit timeframe.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B HRRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #(ZF2023F12831HIEEE

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

25

BRAREEFARmZEHERE

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$°000
BEFT BT
Financial liabilities designated at fair value ~ EEARAAEBEFNEZZ
through profit or loss TRIBRE

— Third-party interests in funds —REERPE=FZENER
consolidated by the Group (Note) (Htz2) 384,942 87,461
- Others — Hft - 925
384,942 88,386
Less: non-current portion B EREE D (92,519) (87,461)
292,423 925

Note:

As at 31 December 2023, the financial liabilities arising from funds
consolidated by the Group was designated as at fair value through
profit or loss by the Group, as the Group has the obligation to pay
other investor based on the net asset value and related terms of
these consolidated investment funds.

miat -

R2023F12A31B AR AEBR &
BiREEEFEREBAKIAEME
BEEZINAEERGHZESTZEMA
BRALEAERREEEARAANEBE
FFABEZEMEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE BRI

g o =

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #E2023F 128318 LEEE

26

254

BORROWINGS 26

ok
;#

Bank borrowings
RITE

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
EBETFT BT
Repayable within one year and BER—ENEERR RS
shown under current liabilities BEETIIR
Secured [SFiiELs 29,159 18,337
Unsecured Eii 127,972 563,484
157,131 581,821
Non-current liabilities ERBER
Secured B 452,280 412,441
Unsecured LI = 53,131
452,280 465,572
Total borrowings BT 4axy 609,411 1,047,393

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's
borrowings were repayable as follows:

RER AEBZBRERBAOT -

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$’000

BIEFT BT

Within 1 year or repayable on demand —F NI AR ERER 157,131 581,821
Between 1 and 2 years 18:24F 40,493 28,682
Between 2 and 5 years 2FESM 181,920 148,656
Over 5 years 5E LI E 229,867 288,234
609,411 1,047,393

As at 31 December 2023, the Company's weighted
average interest rate per annum of bank borrowings was
3.81% (2022: 2.80%).

The carrying amounts of borrowings are approximately
to their fair values.

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are

denominated in RMB approximately HK$459,598,000 as
at 31 December 2023 (2022: HK$493,592,000).

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e TSR R MY 5L

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #(ZF2023F12831HIEEE

BOND PAYABLE

On 27 June 2023, E Park Investment Management
Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
issued the parking asset quasi-REITs structured asset
securitisation product (“Quasi-REITs Structured Asset
Securitisation Product”) with aggregate principal
amount of RMB210 million at a coupon rate of 3.8% per
annum. The maturity date of the Quasi-REITs Structured
Asset Securitisation Product is 24 November 2043. The
Company has the option to buy back the product from
the investors and the investors have the option to sell
back the products to the Company every three years
during the maturity period.

27

B3 &S

2023F6827H  ARB2EFAHE
BEE (ItR) REEEBEERRABET
TEEHEEAERMERE GBI
BEFSMLCER (HBEREITHEBEEE
BEEMR) KA REAARE21E
7o EZEAIE A3 8% o FHREITs45 18
MHEERSTCEMNIEBEA20434F
1MB24B - ABERBAKEECIEE
Mo REEERAEISEEEE=FH
REEIEEmM-

Bond payables

FE{GESH
2023 2022
HK$000 HK$'000
B FT BT T
Non-current liabilities EREER
Secured BigiF 183,786 =
Bond payable FE (3 &5 183,786 =

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s bond
payable was repayable as follows:

RER AEBZERNEFERBU
T

2023 2022

HK$°000 HK$°000

BETFT BT T

Between 2 and 5 years 2E5F 183,786 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE BRI

g o =

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #E2023F 128318 LEEE

28 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 28 IRIEFRISIR
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated MEEMBRARZEIME & T
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax FILMBEEEKRBEDEEBEUT
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is AIRIERIBAE R 2 D MUIEM B R
the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial ER®
reporting purposes:
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Deferred income tax assets RIEMIBEE (30,497) (5,291)
Deferred income tax liabilities FERIBEE 105,590 160,013
75,093 154,722
(i) Deferred income tax assets (i) EREREEE
The major deferred income tax assets and AEERE-FEBEHED (KH
liabilities recognised (prior to offsetting) and B WEBIRLEFMESREEKRS
movements thereon during the current and prior BEREZHBEREMRNT (M
year are restated as set out in (Note 2(c)) in the 2(c)) :
following:
Fair value
Adjustment
of Lease
investments  Liabilities  Tax losses Total
REAR
BERE HEAR MIEEE szt
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$000 HKS$'000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
At 1 January 2022 120221818 - 555,159 3,288 558,447
Credited to consolidated REALERERTA
statement of
comprehensive income - 5,551 2,313 7,864
Exchange differences ERELR - (45,140) (326) (45,466)
At 31 December 2022 and 122022%12831HA
1 January 2023 2023F181H - 515,570 5,275 520,845
(Charged)/credited to Riza2ERERIA
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income 24,603 (41,363) 1,240 (15,520)
Exchange differences ERER 86 (18,764) (111) (18,789)
At 31 December 2023 1R2023F12831H 24,689 455,443 6,404 486,536
256 Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A

RE B HRRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #(ZF2023F12831HIEEE

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 28 RIEFRISIR (&
Deferred income tax liabilities (i) IREFRISH
Fair value
adjustment Fair value Fair value
and  adjustment  adjustment
Concession  revaluation of other non- of  Right-of-use
rights  of properties current assets  investments Assets  Tax losses Total
NERR  HftFERB
EERZ BEAR REAR
it kEft BEERE BEEE  ERAEEE fEHHE L)
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
Vil Ao Efr  EEFn Eetr ¥ Eetr b
At 1 January 2022 R2022F1818 5,260 17,546 11,258 30,347 551,192 (664) 614,939
Charged to consolidated statement of  PEFE2ERERHA
comprehensive income 3,248 49,525 - 54,328 6,593 - 113,694
Exchange differences ERER (506) (2,865) (875) (4,007) (44,864) 51 (53,066)
At 31 December 2022 20225127318 8,002 64,206 10,383 80,668 512,921 (613) 675,567
(Credited)/charged to consolidated A2 ERERHA
statement of comprehensive income (1,695) 29,258 (658) (78,115) (42,280) 613 (92,877)
Exchange differences ERZR (233) (1,714) (329) (2,553) (16,232) - (21,061)
At 31 December 2023 12023126318 6,074 91,750 9,396 - 454,409 - 561,629

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$1,250,880,000. A
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of approximately HK$25,616,000 of such losses
for the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the HK$1,225,264,000 tax losses due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
Except for tax losses of HK$633,727,000 will be
expired in 5 years, such tax losses do not have
expiry date.

At 31 December 2023, there were no significant
unrecognised deferred income tax liabilities for
the tax that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of certain Group's PRC subsidiaries as
the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

£2023F 128318 A& H
XBRAMBEBEBOAUABIE
1,250,880,00075 c & £2023
FRK2022F12831HLEE
E ERZEEBEPNBIE
25,616,000 C R IRIE IR B &
EoHNEATEARER R
My LS M5 1,225,264,0007T
MIBBEERIRIERIEEE [
RIEE BB 633,727,000 #
REFERFPI RIBEE &
AR

FR2023F12831 0 RIBEHA I
ERAAEEZFERBEATZ
FAEFRASI R EBRKRE
RIRERIBEE RAEBRATY
PRI B = 2 #[0] > W BRI BETE
AIFER KK F O o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An e B HRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #E2023F 128318 LEEE

29 DIVIDENDS [1:35)
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BT
Final dividend for the year ended HE2022F12B31HILEEE
31 December 2022 of HAREREAERER
HK5.40 cents (2021: HK5.49 cents)  R&155.408 1
per fully paid share (20214 : 5.49311) 390,465 390,307
No special dividend for the year B E2023F12831H
ended 31 December 2023 IEFEEIREFRIRE
(2022: HK2.74 cents) per fully (20224 : 2.743%AL)
paid share - 194,847
Interim dividend for the year ended  #ZE2023F12831HILEE
31 December 2023 of NHHKREAEREE
HK3.28 cents (2022: HK4.12 cents)  R&143.28 1L
per fully paid share (20224 © 4.12381L) 236,663 292,817
627,128 877,971

In a board resolution dated 28 August 2023, the Board
declared an interim dividend in the total amount of
HK$243 million (equivalent to HK3.28 cents per ordinary
share, based on the number of issued shares on 28
August 2023, i.e 7,403,975,440 ordinary shares) for the
six months ended 30 June 2023 (2022: HK$300 million).

In a board resolution dated 28 March 2024, the Board
has recommended a final dividend in the total amount
of HK$161 million for the year ended 31 December
2023 (2022: HK$400 million) payable to shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company at the close of business on Tuesday, 16 July
2024. Based on the 7,307,655,440 ordinary shares in
issue, such a final dividend would amount to HK2.20
cents per share (2022: HK5.40 cents per ordinary share).
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£2023F8H28AZEE G RGEF &
EETIREE2023F6830H LA
BZHHRBEHBE2 438 (EE
RERZEIZ3. 287l EH202348
B28HZzBRTRMHOHE BEAER
7,403,975,4408%) (20224 : BHE31E
JT) °

E2024F3828H 2 EF g RET &
EEAERESIREEHE2023512831
BIEFEEZREREEHER161ET
(2022%F : BE4EIT) TIR2024F78
160 (BH D) 2 EREAERBELY A
NERERLMARAZERE - FERAAFTBE
BTz E3EAR7,307,655,44008 5 &k
HRERASREER2.2081 (2022
F I ERITERS.408B) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B HRRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #(ZF2023F12831HIEEE

DIVIDENDS (continued)

The final dividend is subject to the shareholders’

approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
The final dividend proposed after 31 December 2023
has not been recognised as a liability as at 31 December

2023.

The dividend distribution excludes approximately HK$16
million (2022: HK$21 million) which are received by the
treasury shares held by the Company for share incentive

plan during the year ended 31 December 2023.

TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

Step acquisition in subsidiary

(a)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
non-controlling interests of certain non-wholly
owned subsidiaries and the Group completed
several rounds of capital injections into those
subsidiaries without changing the equity interests
of the subsidiaries held by the non-controlling
interests and the Group. As a result of the capital
injections, the balance of non-controlling interests
increased by HK$24,408,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
non-controlling interests of certain non-wholly
owned subsidiaries and the Group completed
several rounds of capital injections into those
subsidiaries without changing the equity interests
of the subsidiaries held by the non-controlling
interests and the Group. As a result of the capital
injections, the balance of non-controlling interests
increased by HK$2,677,000.
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IFERERZH
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(@) B E2022F128B31HIEFE
HLeFrEFRBIZIEERRE
mAAEEZRRBRREFRLLGS
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mIFEZE T AR #Em o JEE
RS 18 o 45 AR R E B T I 0B
24,408,0007T °

(b) BE2023F12B31HIEFE>
REFE2ETRAZIFERE
m A AL B 7B R TR R
BT ZEFREIN&EETE M
RENEHANER RIFERE
HRAERET RN m o IFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 31 GRS RERMEE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Cash generated from operations () KEEXBELEZRE
2023 2022
Note HKS$'000 HK$'000
ik BEFT BEFT
Cash flows from operating REXLBMEEZRERE
activities
Profit before income tax Prer il a R 466,451 1,183,438
Adjustments for: MTIBEFLAZ:
Interest income =Y ON 6 (127,073) (62,873)
Interest expenses FEZH 70 105,689 102,356
Dividend income BREBA 6 (328,373) (414,899)
Exchange differences ERELR 7 10,132 24268
Share of results of associates BhBE D ER 31,502 (499)
Share of results of joint ventures BEAENTzEE 31,381 60,820
Gain from changes in fair value of REMERAEBEED 7
investment properties Z W (116,530) (198,100)
Depreciation of property, ME BERREZTE 13(4)
plant and equipment 17,104 12,479
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZINE 13(B) 132,003 162,804
Amortisation of other non-current HithIEmeE EHH
assets 21,884 30,695
Fair value change of financial assets at AR BEFNERZ &5
fair value through profit or loss BEZANEEEE 411,065 (301,975)
Fair value change of financial liabilities ZAABESNEZZ S5
at fair value through profit or loss BEZRNBEED (197) 1,293
Non-cash employee benefits FReEERMNER-
expenses - share based payment B 9,557 15,778
Provision for impairment losses FEMER R BB 18
for trade receivables 11,279 14,600
Loss on disposal of property, REME BERREZEE 134)
plant and equipment 792 -
Gain on disposal of asset held for sale  REBEFEEEZ NG - (16,699)

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B HRRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #(ZF2023F12831HIEEE

31 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

31 REREREKRME E

(a) Cash generated from operations () KEEBELZRE B
(continued)
2023 2022
Note HKS$'000 HK$'000
Mzt BEFT BEFT
Operating cash flows before EELEHT LY
movements in working capital REME 676,666 613,486
Trade receivables FEWFIE 23,190 (246,576)
Contract assets in respect of service REREBETCETHEHN
concession arrangements BHEE (48,706) (124,594)
Prepayments, deposits and BATE. FehEM
other receivables el I8 (12,246) (87,321)
Trade payables P FRIR 151,825 (10,027)
Amounts due from related companies & ¥ BBt AT 2 B 12,104 18,742
Amounts due from a joint venture B —fAEREZHE 29,162 (26,805)
Other payables, provision, accrued HAnfEsIE. B,
liabilities and contract liabilities EtaENENER 12,807 54,666
Financial assets at FVPL BRAEEHNER
ZEMEE (296,139) -
Financial liabilities at FVPL BARBEFNBGZ
TREaRE - 87,093
Other securities HithiE % (214,422) (107,303)
Cash generated from operations REXBMELZRE 334,241 171,361
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31 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

31 REHRERERME @)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) mEISHZEEHIR
financing activities
This section sets out an analysis of liabilities KEDMRPMENEFERE
arising from financing activities and the EHEACEEREEREDF
movements in liabilities arising from financing o
activities for each of the years presented.
Bond Lease

payable Borrowings liabilities Total

FEfI % EE HEEE et

HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000

BT BT BEFa  BEFa
At 1 January 2022 1202251818 - 752,642 1,589,633 2,342,275
Financing cash flows HERERE = 301,300 (167,853) 133,447
Acquisition - leases WHE-HE - - 174,136 174,136
Interest expenses FEER = 33,795 68,561 102,356
Exchange differences BRER - (40,344)  (115,494)  (155,838)
At 31 December 2022 182022%12831H - 1,047,393 1,548,983 2,596,376
At 1 January 2023 12023%181H - 1,047,393 1,548,983 2,596,376
Financing cash flows MERTNE 180,778  (462,851)  (141,038)  (423,111)
Acquisition - leases WE-HE S = 14,645 14,645
Early termination - lease IRATRIE-THE = = (44,037) (44,037)
Interest expenses MEER 3,008 38,744 63,937 105,689
Exchange differences EREL = (13,875) (49,375) (63,250)
At 31 December 2023 120235128310 183,786 609,411 1,393,115 2,186,312
Please refer to the Note 3.3(c) for the movement BAnBEFAEGZEME
of financial liability at FVPL. BEFHBELF2RMEE3.3(0)°

() Major non-cash transactions (0 FEEREXRS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
acquisition of right-of-use assets amounting to
HK$14,645,000 (2022: HK$174,136,000) (Note
13(B)).
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #(ZF2023F12831HIEEE

COMMITMENTS
Non-cancellable operating leases

The investment properties are leased to tenants under
operating leases with rentals payable monthly. For details
of the leasing arrangements, refer to Note 13(B).

The Group leases various office premises and car parking
assets under non-cancellable operating leases expiring
within 1 to 20 years. The leases have varying terms,
escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the
terms of the leases are renegotiated.

From 1 January 2019, the Group has recognised right-
of-use assets for these leases, except for short-term and
low-value leases, see Note 37.22 and Note 13(B) for
further information.

No minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases of investment properties not recognised
in the financial statements as at 31 December 2023 and
2022.
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RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 33 FRAMKALKREE
The Company’s substantial shareholder with significant ARBIZ2BEEERENTEREAE
influence is Shougang Holding, which is a wholly-owned WZER (DERERERAE (EREH
subsidiary of Shougang Group Co., Ltd., a state-owned EEEREEEZESTEREEZE
enterprise under the direct supervision of the Beijing BXE)HNEZENBRA)  RAEH
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration ShEREBRBERATDKREBREA (R
Commission. Shougang Group Co., Ltd., together with its BEImRAER) UTHES TEHE
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) other than the B At AEEBZTERERZEK
Group, will hereinafter be referred to as the “Shougang FE AEBHGHERETZIRS
Group". Accordingly, the Group is significantly influenced ogiad:at =S (1
by Shougang Group. The transactions and those balances
with Shougang Group are disclosed below:
(a) Transactions with related parties (a) FABEALIRE
Year ended 31 December
HE12A31ALEE
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
BIEFT BIEF T
Shougang Group EEIESE
- Management fee expenses (Note (i) —ERERS W) 2,990 2,990
— Other income by the Group (Note (i) —REBHEMUN H20) 322 2,035
~ Purchases by the Group —KEERE
(Note (1) and (if)) (H122() and (i) 12,152 6,322
- Rental expenses (Note (i) — & W) 4,676 5,069
- Rental income (Note (i) —HBUN H30) 132 132
- Services provided by the Group —REERMEZRE
(Note (i) and (i) (B1EE() and (iii) 563,243 748,563
Associate of the Group FEEZHERT
- Other income by the Group (Note (i) —REBEMKN (#750) - 1,145
Notes: izt
0) The terms of the transactions are mutually agreed (i) R Z BTy A& HEH
between the Group and the counter parties. FHEEHE-
(ii) Shougang Group provides materials, leasing and (ii) EiMEmMEAERREYE
management services to the Group. THERERRT -
(iii) The Group provides fund management services to (iii) rEBHOERERR HHE

its Shougang Group and/or its associates.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A H
Ty = [

A 758k R M 5E

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #(ZF2023F12831HIEEE

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued) 33 FBABtALTIRE (&
Balances with Shougang Group (b) HEHREEEZER
Details of balances with the Group's related EREANERRE AR 2R
companies are set out in Note 20 to the E%Hﬂﬁff\,ﬁ?éﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁzoo
consolidated financial statements.
Compensation of key management (0 FEBEEBASZEHM
personnel
The remuneration of key management personnel, RERAREIRBRNITESH
which represents the executive directors of the FEEEBEABZFMNOT
Company during the year was as follows:
Year ended 31 December
HE12A31MALEE
2023 2022
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
g3 AEFT BT
Short-term employee benefits fEHIERE=EF) 9,646 10,098
Post-employment benefits RIRAEF] 54 44
36 9,700 10,142
The remuneration of key management personnel FTEEEBEAEZMNEHRESTE
is determined by the Remuneration Committee BTrziNEEagEE 2%
of the Board of Directors having regard to the BB BRI 2 T IHR
market practice, competitive market position and MRER A LRI
individual performance.
Transactions with other PRC (d HBHEMPEHAFHERESR
government-related entities X5
The Group has entered into various bank EETHEBSEBBREUR
transactions, including deposits placements, NHEHZLHENEREPHAELBR

borrowings and other general banking facilities,
with certain banks and financial institutions and
use of public utilities which are state-controlled
entities in its ordinary course of business. In view
of the nature of those banking transactions, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that
separate disclosure would not be meaningful.

B 2R 42 ) B RS HY SR 17 A0 < B
BEETZERBRTRS 81F
MoEEREM—RIRITH
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ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY

On 28 September 2022, E Park entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with Guangzhou Shouzhong
Ltd.*
Shenzhen Wanwu Chengchang Consultancy Service

Wanwu Carpark Management Co., and
Ltd* (together, “the Sellers”), pursuant to which
the Group conditionally agreed to purchase, and
the Sellers conditionally agreed to sell, 30% of the
equity interests of Foshan Shouzhong Vanke Gongying
Enterprise Management Limited Partnership* (“Foshan
Shouzhong Vanke") #ILEFRYHEFREEERE
BB ¥ (BEAE) a then joint venture which the
Group held 70% equity interests before this acquisition,
at a consideration of RMB22,518,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$26,198,000). Upon the date of
completion of acquisition, the Foshan Shouzhong Vanke
became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group and
reclassified the interest in Foshan Shouzhong Vanke from
interest in a joint venture to investment in a subsidiary.
The major asset of Foshan Shouzhong Vanke is an
investment property. Accordingly, the transaction have
been accounted for as an acquisition of assets.

For identification purpose only

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B HRRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #(ZF2023F12831HIEEE

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY (continued) 34 WEEMIB AT (&

HK$'000
BT
Consideration in cash e HE 26,198
Interests in joint venture disposed of BETERE 61,091
Total consideration ST HE 87,289
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets AIMREEREBEZ
acquired and liabilities assumed WL
Property, plant and equipment LEN N 4
Investment property KREME 81,813
Trade receivables FE W BR FX 6,799
Other receivables Hth e A 48
Bank balances and cash RITEEGR MRS 4,072
Trade payables FE(TBR X (4,719)
Other payables HAtE( ZIE (728)
Total identifiable net assets AR PFEESE 87,289
Net cash outflows arising from acquisition WENBA B EEN
of subsidiary HWEFRH
Cash paid REZM (26,198)
Bank balances and cash acquired RITEREEFIIRE 4,072
Net cash outflow BE& R FEE (22,126)

HERZRAMRAT 2023FFR 267



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
An e B HRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #E2023F 128318 LEEE

35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 35 ZAARZHBRRIRR#EEEH
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December

128318
2023 2022
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Mzt BT BT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZEE 284,924 284,924
Prepayments and deposits A RIBRIZE 40,924 28,044
Investments — non-current BE-IFRH 133,803 559,505
459,651 872,473
Current assets MEEE
Prepayments, deposits and other  FEFFUIE. &K
receivables HEW IR 138,529 64,819
Amounts due from subsidiaries BT B RS ZRIE 12,258,345 11,919,732
Investments — current BE-RH 175,312 157,833
Time deposits with maturity over ZR=EHMNEI#H=
three months EBRTF R 1,751,346 150,653
Bank balances and cash RITHERNIRE 532,331 2,082,186
14,855,863 14,375,223
Total assets BEEMRE 15,315,514 15,247,696
Liabilities af&
Current liabilities mEaE
Borrowings — current BER—RE 105,600 553,800
Other payables and accrued HMENRIEREST8E
liabilities 11,953 11,227
117,553 565,027
Total liabilities BERE 117,553 565 027
Capital and reserves B 25 Xz ki
Share capital R 22 12,994,847 12,546,847
Reserves @ 2,203,114 2,135,822
15,197,961 14,682,669
Total liabilities and equity EEhkaEAE 15,315,514 15,247,696
The statement of financial position of the Company was KABZHHERREKRENR20245F38
approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2024 28HEEZEE=gE TR THEENR
y
and were signed on its behalf by: REE |
Zhao Tianyang Xu Liang
X ®mE
Director Director
EFE EZE
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

4 A
177 g |

35 ARBZMBRRARKRFEEES

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (4,
(continued)
Note: Wizt
Shares
held under
share Security
incentive investment Other Retained
plan reserve reserve earnings Total
R R =t 2
TRAEZRG E5REHE HitifE REEF A
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000
BEFT BEFT BT BEFT EBFT
Balance at 1 January 2022 #2022 1 A1H 2 &8 (298,433) (14,975) 548,198 2,943,648 3,178,438
Loss for the year FEBR - = = (133,007) (133,007)
Fair value changes on financial BAABEHAEMEE
asset at FVOC| WHzeMEEZ
ARBELY - (27,530) - - (27,530)
Total comprehensive losses SHEHEGBEEE - (27,530 - (133,007) (160,537)
Share repurchase B 19 [l 88 - - - (19,886) (19,886)
Recognition of equity-settled HER R RS E MRS
share-based payments Y HEH = = 15,778 = 15,778
Dividends BE - - - (877,971) (877,971)
Balance at 31 December 2022 R2022%12A310 2 88 (298,433) (42,505) 563,976 1,912,784 2,135,822
Balance at 1 January 2023 #2023 1818 2 &8k (298,433) (42,505) 563,976 1,912,784 2,135,822
Profit for the year FEET - - - 1,077,171 1,077,171
Fair value changes on financial BRAABEHANEMEE
asset at FVOCI WGz EMEEZ
AREEEY - (13,623) - - (13,623)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 27 (§518) /#F4E%E - (13,623) - 1,077,171 1,063,548
Share repurchase B 1 [l B8 - - (62,386) (316,299) (378,685)
Recognition of equity-settled BRUEREENRD
share-based payments ZER - - 9,557 - 9,557
Dividends 3] = - - (627,128) (627,128)
Balance at 31 December 2023 2023128318 2838 (298,433) (56,128) 511,147 2,046,528 2,203,114
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36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 36
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

(A)

Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the

fourteen (2022: twelve) directors were as follows:

EEENKRAIE (BEBELEME
f5155622E 5538315 ~ £622GEA
7 FANESEFNERIEE) RE

RERELHRAERKE)

(A) EEM=

ENSHEN % (20224 :
TITR)EFRAZMENT

Contributions
Share to retirement
Fees Salaries options  benefit scheme Total 2023
RIER
fig hg 13 IR #2023
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
Vi s ETr Vil do E¥Tr Vil do
2023 2023
Executive directors of FAAYTES
the Company
ZHAO Tianyang PN - - 715 - 715
XU Liang #e - 3,360 510 18 3,888
LI Wei (Note (b)) F2 (M3D)) - 1,698 919 18 2,635
Zhang Meng (Note (b)) & (5E0) - 1,729 715 18 2,462
Non-executive directors of FAFERTES
the Company
WU Lishun (Note (c)) AR - - - - -
PENG Jinai (Note (d)) #&8 () 211 - - - M
LU Jingwei (] 425 - - - 425
HO Gilbert Chi Hang GEE 395 - - - 395
LIHao By 562 - - - 562
Independent non-executive ~ AAFBUERFES
directors of the Company
WANG Xin Iz 502 - - - 502
CHOI Fan Keung Vic RER 464 - - - 464
DENG Yougao #58 430 - - - 430
ZHANG Quanling RRE 478 - - - 478
Zhuge Wenjing HEXE 386 - - - 386
Total emoluments &2 3,853 6,787 2,859 54 13,553
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #(ZF2023F12831HIEEE

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

36 EFEmRAIEAGE (EEFAQTE
il 55622E 553831%  £622GELR
7 BANEZENERIEE) R
REZALHHRAUNEREE)) @)

(continued)
(A) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (A) EEME &
Contributions
to retirement
Share benefit
Fees Salaries options scheme Total 2022
BARER
ik ik B st B £572022
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
BT BT BT BT Vil
2022 2022
Executive directors of FRARTES
the Company
ZHAO Tianyang PN - - 769 = 769
XU Liang RE S 1,355 549 8 1,912
LI Wei (Note (b)) 212 (& (b)) - 3,001 988 18 4,007
Zhang Meng (Note (b)) R (D) - 2,667 769 18 3,454
Non-executive directors of AAFFHITEE
the Company
LIU Jingwei A=k 377 - - - 377
HO Gilbert Chi Hang e 362 - - = 362
Ll Hao i 515 - - - 515
Independent Non-executive ZARBIFHITES
directors of the Company
WANG Xin Iz 454 = = = 454
CHOI Fan Keung Vic 2ER 446 - - - 446
DENG Yougao BES 388 - - - 388
ZHANG Quanling RRE 451 - - - 451
Zhuge Wenjing #ENE 362 - = = 362
Total emoluments ke 3,355 7,023 3,075 44 13,497
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BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

(continued)

(A)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Notes:

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company
and the Group. The non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were mainly for
their services as directors of the Company or
its subsidiaries. The independent non-executive
directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly
for their services as directors of the Company.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the directors or the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office during the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Mr. Li Wei and Ms. Zhang Meng retired as Executive
Directors with effect from the conclusion of the
annual general meeting held on 25 May 2023 (the
“2023 AGM").

Mr. Wu Lishun was appointed as a Non-executive
Director with effect from 5 December 2023.

Mr. Peng Jihai was appointed as a Non-executive
Director with effect from the conclusion of the
2023 AGM.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B HRRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #(ZF2023F12831HIEEE

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)
(continued)

(B) Directors’ retirement benefits and
termination benefits

During the year ended 31 December 2023, no
emoluments, retirement benefits, payments or
benefits in respect of termination of Directors’
services were paid or made, directly or indirectly,
to the Directors; nor are any payable (2022: Nil).

(C) Consideration provided to third parties
for making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2023, no
consideration was provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services (2022: Nil).

(D) Information about loans, quasi-loans and

other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and

connected entities with such directors

As at 31 December 2023, there are no loans,
quasi-loans or other dealings in favour of the
Directors, their controlled bodies corporate and

connected entities (2022: Nil).

(E) Directors’ material interests in

transactions, arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 33 and Note 36, no
significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Group was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year ended 31 December 2023 or at any

time during the year (2022: Nil).
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SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL POLICIES

This note provides a list of other accounting policies

adopted in the preparation of these consolidated

financial statements. These policies have been

consistently applied to all the years presented, unless

otherwise stated. The financial statements are for the
Group consisting of Shoucheng Holdings Limited and its

subsidiaries.

37.1 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

(a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls
an entity where the Group is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is
used to account for business combinations
by the Group.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B HRRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #(ZF2023F12831HIEEE

37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL POLICIES (continued)

37.1 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Intercompany transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results
and equity of subsidiaries are shown
separately in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of financial
position respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not
control or joint control. This is generally
the case where the Group holds between
20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting,
after initially being recognised at cost.
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SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL POLICIES (continued)

37.1 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

(c)

(d)

Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11
investments in joint arrangements are

“Joint Arrangements”

classified as either joint operations or joint
ventures. The classification depends on the
contractual rights and obligations of each
investor, rather than the legal structure of
the joint arrangement. The Company has
joint ventures. Interests in joint ventures
are accounted for using the equity method
(see (d) below), after initially being
recognised at cost in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Equity accounting

Under the equity method of accounting,
the investments are initially recognised at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’ s share of the post-acquisition
profits or losses of the investee in
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, and the Group's share of
movements in other comprehensive income
of the investee in other comprehensive
income. Dividends received or receivable
from associates or joint ventures are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying
amount of the investment.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B HRRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #(ZF2023F12831HIEEE

37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL POLICIES (continued)

37.1 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

(d)

Equity accounting (continued)

When the Group's share of losses in an
equity — accounted investment equals or
exceeds its interest in the entity, including
any other unsecured long term receivables,
the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations
or made payments on behalf of the other
entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its associates and joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of equity accounted
investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments are tested for impairment
accordance with the policy described in
Note 37.9(d).
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SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL POLICIES (continued)

37.1 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

37.2

(e)

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result
in a loss of control as transactions with
equity owners of the Group. A change
in ownership interest results in an
adjustment between the carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling
interests to reflect their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount of the adjustment to non-
controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a separate
reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to

account for all business combinations, regardless

of whether equity instruments or other assets are

acquired. The consideration transferred for the

acquisitions of subsidiaries comprises the:

fair values of the assets transferred;

liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquired business;

equity interests issued by the Group;
fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration

arrangement; and

fair value of any pre-existing equity interest
in the subsidiary.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B HRRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #(ZF2023F12831HIEEE

37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 37 HMEBESEAIHBREE &2
MATERIAL POLICIES (continued)

37.2 Business combinations (continued)

372 ¥BA6 @)

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest's proportionate
share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable
assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The excess of the:

. consideration transferred;

o amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity; and

. acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquired entity.

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts
are less than the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.
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SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL POLICIES (continued)

37.2 Business combinations (continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash
consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in
the future are discounted to their present value as
at the date of exchange. The discount rate used
is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being
the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under
comparable terms and conditions. Contingent
consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer's previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from
such remeasurement are recognised in profit or
loss.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B HRRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #(ZF2023F12831HIEEE

SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY

MATERIAL POLICIES (continued)

37.3

37.4

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee's net assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision maker.

Management has determined the operating
segments based on the reports reviewed by the
chief operating decision makers that are used to
make strategic decisions and resources allocation.
No operating segments identified by the chief
operating decision makers have been aggregated
in arriving at the reportable segments of the
Group.
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SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL POLICIES (continued)

37.5 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’'s entities are
measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar, which is Company’s functional and

presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and
from the translation of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are
generally recognised in profit or loss. They
are deferred in equity if they relate to
qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying
net investment hedges or are attributable
to part of the net investment in a foreign
operation.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B HRRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #(ZF2023F12831HIEEE

37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL POLICIES (continued)

37.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances (continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses that
relate to borrowings are presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, within finance costs. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on a net basis
within other gains, net.

Non-monetary items that are measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported
as part of the fair value gain or loss. For
example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as
equities held at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in profit or loss
as part of the fair value gain or loss and
translation differences on non-monetary
assets such as equities classified as fair
value through other comprehensive income
are recognised in other comprehensive
income of consolidated statements of
comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL POLICIES (continued)

37.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into
the presentation currency as follows:

assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position

income and expenses for each
statement of comprehensive income
are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated
at the dates of the transactions);
and

all resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other

comprehensive income.

284 Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B HRRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #(ZF2023F12831HIEEE

37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL POLICIES (continued)

37.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

Group companies (continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of any net
investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other financial instruments
designated as hedges of such investments,
are recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is sold
or any borrowings forming part of the
net investment are repaid, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to
profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on
sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the
closing rate.
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SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL POLICIES (continued)

37.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(d)

Disposal of foreign operation and
partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation
(that is, a disposal of the Group’s entire
interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the currency translation
differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that
does not result in the Group losing
control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation, the proportionate
share of accumulated currency translation
differences are re-attributed to non
— controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group’s ownership interest in associates
or joint ventures that do not result in
the Group losing significant influence or
joint control), the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange differences is
reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B HRRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #(ZF2023F12831HIEEE

37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 37 HMEBESEAIHBREE &2
MATERIAL POLICIES (continued)

37.6 Property, plant and equipment 376 ME -BERRHE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items. Cost may also
include transfers from equity of any gains or
losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign
currency purchases of property, plant and
equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognised when replaced.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
profit or loss during the reporting period in which
they are incurred.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing proceeds with carrying amount.
These are included in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL POLICIES (continued)

37.7 Intangible assets

(a)

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in Note
15. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries
is included in “other non-current assets”
in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Goodwill on acquisition of
associates or joint ventures is included in
the cost of the investment in associates or
joint ventures respectively. Goodwill is not
amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it
might be impaired and is carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. Gains
and losses on the disposal of an entity
include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units for the purpose of impairment
testing. The allocation is made to those
cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to
benefit from the business combination
in which the goodwill arose. The units or
groups of units are identified at the lowest
level at which goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes, being the
operating segments.
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37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL POLICIES (continued)

37.7 Intangible assets (continued)

(b)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

The Group recognises an intangible
asset arising from a service concession
arrangement when it has a right to
charge for usage of the concession
infrastructure. An intangible asset received
as consideration for providing construction
services in a service concession
arrangement are measured at fair value
upon initial recognition by reference to
the fair value of the services provided.
Subsequent to initial recognition the
intangible asset is measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses.

Separately acquired intangible assets are
shown at historical cost. Intangible assets
acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or
indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
useful lives are subsequently carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. The amortisation
period and amortisation method for an
intangibles asset with finite useful life are
assessed at every period end.
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SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL POLICIES (continued)

37.7 Intangible assets (continued)

(b)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Intangible assets with indefinite lives are
tested for impairment annually either
individually or at the cash generating
unit level. Such intangible assets are not
amortised. The useful life of an intangible
asset with an indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the
indefinite life assessment continues to
be supportable, if not, the change in the
useful life assessment from indefinite to
finite is accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Costs associated with maintaining software
programmes are recognised as an expense
as incurred. Development costs that are
directly attributable to the design and
testing of identifiable and unique software
products controlled by the group are
recognised as intangible assets where the
following criteria are met:

° it is technically feasible to complete
the software so that it will be
available for use;

o management intends to complete
the software and use or sell it;

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

37

HMBTEEXNGSHBRBE (&

377 EBEEE @)

(b)

BEEE (BEHKI) B

FHITERENETLE
ESFERANRREE
FEMNETHEAS B
METLEETFRIE -5
FHERITERENE
WNEENREREHET
W5y DURERE SF AL FE IR
ENFEESEERSE
S FFo B[R ERAFHT
GHHTERENSER
ZBRRBRERBERE
YN

BLAEE R RRA B AL A
HERERBEIESER T
ERRBRAEEEH
Y ] 8 B B 84S B B
BY 48 B8 &= 5t AR Bl 2 B
RS 0 TEim e TR
RERERISBLEE !

. 5 AR DU 6
BaEXRfft L2H
789 5

. EIEE R 5 T A

Z AL S
HEE;
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RE B HRRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #(ZF2023F12831HIEEE

37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL POLICIES (continued)

37.7 Intangible assets (continued)

(b)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

(continued)

° there is an ability to use or sell the
software;

. it can be demonstrated how the

software will generate probable
future economic benefits;

° adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the
software are available; and

° the expenditure attributable to the
software during its development can
be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are
capitalised as part of the software include
employee costs and an appropriate portion
of relevant overheads.

Capitalised development costs are recorded
as intangible assets and amortised from
the point at which the asset is ready for
use.

These intangible assets are included
in the
consolidated statement of financial

in “other non-current assets”

position.
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SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL POLICIES (continued)

37.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have
an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired. Other assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows which
are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of
each reporting period.
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37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 37 HMEBESEAIHBREE &2

MATERIAL POLICIES (continued)

37.9 Financial assets

379 &WMEE

(a) Classification @ 748
The Group classifies its financial assets in AEEREEREED
the following measurement categories: H|ATIFESER

o those to be measured subsequently
at fair value (either through other
comprehensive income (“OCI”) or
through profit or loss); and

. those to be measured at amortised
cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains
and losses will either be recorded in profit
or loss or OCI. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group has
made an irrevocable election at the time of
initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments
when and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes.
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SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL POLICIES (continued)

37.9 Financial assets (continued)

(b)

(c)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on trade-
date,
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

the date on which the Group

Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures
a financial asset at its fair value plus,
in the case of a financial asset not at
FVPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are

expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives
are considered in their entirety when
determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.
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RE B HRRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #(ZF2023F12831HIEEE

37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL POLICIES (continued)

37.9 Financial assets (continued)

(c)

Measurement (continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group's
business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
There are three measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt
instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are
held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets
is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised
directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains, net
together with foreign exchange
gains and losses. Impairment losses
are presented as separate line item
in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL POLICIES (continued)

37.9 Financial assets (continued)

(c)

Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI.
carrying amount are taken through

Movements in the

OCl, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest
income and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised
in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in other gains, net.
Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in other
gains, net and impairment expenses
are presented as separate line item
in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 37 HMBEEALHBERE &
MATERIAL POLICIES (continued)
37.9 Financial assets (continued) 379 EREE @)
(c) Measurement (continued) (©) FrE &

Debt instruments (continued)

o FVPL: Assets that do not meet the
criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI
are measured at FVPL. A gain or
loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL
is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net within other gains,
net in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all
equity investments at fair value. Where
the Group’s management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on
equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value
gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue
to be recognised in profit or loss as other
income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.
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SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL POLICIES (continued)

37.9 Financial assets (continued)

(c)

(d)

Measurement (continued)

Changes in the fair value of financial assets
at FVPL are recognised in revenue or other
gains, net in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income depending on
the principal activities of the group entities
holding such financial assets. Impairment
losses (and reversal of impairment losses)
on equity investments measured at FVOCI
are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking
basis the expected credit losses associated
with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost, FVPL and FVOCI. The
impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies
the simplified approach permitted by
HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime
losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables, see Note
3.1(b)(ii) for further details.
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37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 37 HMEBESEAIHBREE &2

MATERIAL POLICIES (continued)

37.10 Offsetting financial instruments

37.10 IKSHERMT A

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position where the Group
currently has a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts, and there is an intention
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to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and MERBEHRE
settle the liability simultaneously.
37.11 Derivatives 37.11 T4 IR

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at
the end of each reporting period. The accounting
for subsequent changes in fair value depends on
whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item
being hedged.

During the year, none of the derivative
instruments has qualified for hedge accounting.
Changes in the fair value of any derivative
instrument that does not qualify for hedge
accounting are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.
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SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL POLICIES (continued)

37.12 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the
consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits
held at call with financial institutions, other short
— term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

37.13 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the
Company’s equity instruments, for example
as the result of a share buy-back or a share-
based payment plan, the consideration paid,
including any directly attributable incremental
costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from
equity attributable to the owners of the Group
as treasury shares until the shares are cancelled
or reissued. Where such ordinary shares are
subsequently reissued, any consideration received,
net of any directly attributable incremental
transaction costs and the related income tax
effects, is included in equity attributable to the
owners of the Company.
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37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 37 HMEBESEAIHBREE &2
MATERIAL POLICIES (continued)
37.14 Borrowings 37.14 (B

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of
the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the
fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down,
the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated
statement of financial position when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of a financial liability that has
been extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.

Where the terms of a financial liability are
renegotiated and the entity issues equity
instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or part
of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is
measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability and the fair value
of the equity instruments issued.
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YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #ZE2023F12831HILEE

SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL POLICIES (continued)

37.14 Borrowings (continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.

37.15Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

37.16 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period
is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate
for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B HRRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #(ZF2023F12831HIEEE

37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 37 HMEBESEAIHBREE &2
MATERIAL POLICIES (continued)

37.16 Current and deferred income tax 37.16 SHABIRIEFRISI (&)

(continued)
Current income tax

The current income tax expense is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries
and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation and considers whether
it is probable that a taxation authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment. The Group measures
its tax balances either based on the most likely
amount or the expected value, depending on
which method provides a better prediction of the
resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred income
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise
from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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37

SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL POLICIES (continued)

37.16 Current and deferred income tax

(continued)
Deferred income tax (continued)

The deferred income tax liability in relation to
investment properties that is measured at fair
value is determined assuming the property will be
recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
if it is probable that future taxable amounts will
be available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between
the carrying amount and tax bases of investments
in foreign operations where the Company is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current income tax assets and liabilities
and where the deferred tax balances relate to
the same taxation authority. Current income tax
assets and tax liabilities are offset where the
entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B HRRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #(ZF2023F12831HIEEE

37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY

MATERIAL POLICIES (continued)

37.16 Current and deferred income tax

37 HthBETEAEHABREE (&

37.16 EMARIEIEFRSIR (@)

(continued)
Deferred income tax (continued)

Current and deferred income tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

37.17 Employee benefits

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “Pension Scheme"”) set up pursuant
to the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the Pension Scheme. The assets
of the Pension Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently
administrated fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed to the Pension Scheme, except for the
Group's employer voluntary contributions, which
are refunded to the Group when the employee
leaves employment prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, in accordance with the rules of the
Pension Scheme.
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SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL POLICIES (continued)

37.17 Employee benefits (continued)

Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as an employee
benefit expense when they are due and are
reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting
fully in the contributions. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent that a
cash refund or a reduction in the future payments
is available.

In addition to the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for the Group's employees in Hong Kong,
the Group is required to contribute to central
pension schemes for certain Group's employees
in the PRC based on applicable rates of monthly
salary in accordance with government regulations.
The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the
specific contributions.

37.18 Share-based payments

Share-based compensation benefits are provided
to employees via the share incentive plan.
Information relating to the plan is set out in Note
23.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B HRRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #(ZF2023F12831HIEEE

37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 37 HMEBESEAIHBREE &2
MATERIAL POLICIES (continued)

37.18 Share-based payments (continued) 37.18 UM AERBZ (4 (&)

The fair value of employee options granted
under the Company’s share incentive plan is
recognised as an employee benefits expense
with a corresponding increase in equity. The
total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted:

o Including any market performance
conditions (e.g. the entity’s share price);

o Excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance vesting
conditions (e.g. profitability, sales growth
targets and remaining an employee of the
entity over a specified time period); and

o including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (e.g. the requirement for
employees to save or hold shares for a
specific period of time).

The total expense is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
At the end of each period, the entity revises
its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest based on the non-market vesting
and service conditions. It recognises the impact of
the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit
or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to share
options under equity.
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SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL POLICIES (continued)

37.18 Share-based payments (continued)

The share incentive plan is administered by a
trustee, which is consolidated in accordance with
the principles in Note 37.1. Under the shares
incentive plan, a trustee administers and holds
the Company’s shares before they are vested
and transferred to the scheme’s participants.
The trustee purchases the Company’s shares
being awarded from the open market with
funds provided by the Company. When share
options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to share capital. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in other reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.

37.19 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties
and make good obligations are recognised when
the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation and the amount can be
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations
as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may
be small.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B HRRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #(ZF2023F12831HIEEE

37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL POLICIES (continued)

37.19 Provisions (continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of

management’s best estimate of the expenditure

required to settle the present obligation at the

end of the reporting period. The discount rate

used to determine the present value is a pre-tax

rate that reflects current market assessments of

the time value of money and the risks specific

to the liability. The increase in the provision due

to the passage of time is recognised as interest

expense.

37.20 Earnings per share

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by
dividing the profit attributable to owners
of the Company, excluding any costs
of servicing equity other than ordinary
shares by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial year, adjusted for bonus elements
in ordinary shares issued during the year
and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the
figures used in the determination of basic
earnings per share to take into account
the after income tax effect of interest
and other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential ordinary shares, and the
weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 37 HMEBESEAITHBEREE &2
MATERIAL POLICIES (continued)
37.21Dividend income 37.21 BEWA

Dividends are received from financial assets
measured at FVPL and at FVOCI. Dividends are
recognised as other income in profit or loss when
the right to receive payment is established. This
applies even if they are paid out of pre-acquisition
profits, unless the dividend clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of an investment.
In this case, the dividend is recognised in OCI if
it relates to an investment measured at FVOCI.
However, the investment may need to be tested
for impairment as a consequence.

37.22 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis. Lease
liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable;

o variable lease payment that are based on

an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at the commencement
date;
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #(ZF2023F12831HIEEE

37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 37 HthBEEAGHBERREE (&
MATERIAL POLICIES (continued)
37.22 Leases (continued) 37.22 A8 @)

. amounts expected to be payable by the . FgpEEERTLAEHE
Group under residual value guarantees; TEHARE T FRIE ;

. the exercise price of a purchase option if . BEEE#ENTEE (HA
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise EECERTITHEZE
that option; and B &

. payments of penalties for terminating the . TR IETRENSR (E
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group MEKR R AERTT
exercising that option. fEREFAZIEFE) o

Lease payments to be made under reasonably RECSEREEREERERT

certain extension options are also included in the EHNHEENRTAABES

measurement of the liability. Eo

Lease payments are allocated between principal HENAREAERBIEREZ

and finance cost. The finance cost is charged BEH DB - ME AR AN

to profit or loss over the lease period so as to BiEaZH BUSZHBENEG

produce a constant periodic rate of interest on BERFARVHAR A E— o

the remaining balance of the liability for each

period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost FREBERMAFSE 8FEMU

comprising the following: T&IE:

. the amount of the initial measurement of . HMEEBENUBTES
lease liability; % ;

. any lease payments made at or before . B H B s 2 AP
the commencement date less any lease BRI E T 7 /S UR
incentives received; EWEREEES;

. any initial direct costs; and . ERPIEEERAE ; &

. restoration costs. . BB o
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SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL POLICIES (continued)

37.23 Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and
no longer at the discretion of the entity, on or
before the end of the reporting period but not
distributed at the end of the reporting period.

37.24 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised
at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the
group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to income are
deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over
the period necessary to match them with the
costs that they are intended to compensate.

37.25Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL
is included in the net fair value gains on these
assets, see Note 7.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised
cost calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in profit or loss as part of
other income.

Interest income is presented as other income
where it is earned from financial assets that are
held for cash management purposes, see Note 6.

Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset except for financial
assets that subsequently become credit impaired.
For credit-impaired financial assets the effective
interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).
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Five-year Financial Summary

gb
L FMGRE
RESULTS E
Year ended 31 December
HEN2AMBLEE
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT ABFT
Revenue PN 396,091 705,854 1,195,031 1,599,809 883,478
Profit/(loss) for the year from BEREEREE
continuing operations wH/ (B8 441,161 635,470 (1,113,526) 914,347 459,545
Profit for the year from BARIEEEER
discontinued operations FE&EF 904 = = = -
Profit/(loss) for the year FE&RF/ (BB 442,065 635,470 (1,113,526) 914,347 459,545
Attributable to: DU AL
Owners of the Company KATEEA 443,003 658,613 (1,095,327) 922,010 403,565
Non-controlling interests FERER (938) (23,143) (18,199) (7,663) 55,980
442,065 635,470 (1,113,526) 914,347 459,545
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEHEAR
At 31 December
®128318
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS'000
BT BEFT BEFT BEFT EYFT
Total assets EEBRE 10,997,024 14,125,632 13,382,242 13,656,191 13,522,517
Total liabilities BEHRE (1,174,400)  (2,206,334)  (3,153,835)  (3,632,132)  (3,481,782)
9,822,624 11,919,298 10,228,407 10,024,059 10,040,735
Equity attributable to owners AATEEA
of the Company FEfh i 9,684,305 11,772,290 10,140,637 9,927,589 9,923,352
Non-controlling interests FEkER 138,319 147,008 87,770 96,470 117,383
9,822,624 11,919,298 10,228,407 10,024,059 10,040,735
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Summary of Investment Properties

RENERE
Group
Use interest Category of the lease
C3UESE S
Property M =2k 2t AR
Underground, FE Operation of 100% Self-owned property
136 Lugu Road, =™ car parking lot BEER
Shijingshan Zone, a=l& EEIGKE
Beijing, BAER1365E
China Ul
No. 8, FE Operation of car 100% Self-owned property
Caihefang Road, b= parking lot BAERE
Haidian District, BRE FHIGKE
Beijing, TR LR B 85%
China
L1-L3 Floor, FE Operation of 100% Self-owned property
222 Jirui Five Road, PIPINE Y car parking lot BAERE
Chengdu High-tech Zone, Y &R T FHIGKE
Sichuan Province, ISE N
China = I A BR2225%
-3/
No. 422-1, A Operation of 100% Self-owned property
Panxi Road, BEE™ car parking lot BREER
Jiangbei District, pin A FHIGKE
Chongging, R ERA2257 T 155
China
No. 37-1, A Operation of car 100% Self-owned property
Hongjin Road, BEE™ parking lot BEER
Yubei District, pIpin FHIGKE
Chonggqing, AL BR375R T 1 5%
China
No.3 and No.16, A Operation of car 100% Self-owned property
Time Square Walk, HE parking lot BRERE
Yuzhong District, A& EEHIGKE

Chongging,
China

B AR A735% K 1658
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Summary of Investment Properties

REVERE

Group
Use interest Category of the lease
&EEEA
Property ME R& 2t RSB
No. 11-43 and FR Operation of car 100% Self-owned property
No. 11-44, BE parking lot BAER
Yubei District, Il FHIGKE
Chongging, A ER B 1 15%
China Ft4355% ~ Fi445%
No.1-14, R Operation of car 100% Self-owned property
Fortune Avene, BB parking lot BHEEWE
Yubei District, Il FHIGKE
Chongging, M E ARE15RMT145%
China
No. 170, R Operation of car 100% Self-owned property
Keyuansi Road, BB parking lot BHAEEWE
Jiulongpo District, NEERKE EEIGKE
Chongging, I EMES1705%
China
No. 1, FE Operation of 100% Self-owned property
Foping 3rd Road, ERE car parking lot BEER
Guicheng Street, BT FHIGKE
Nanhai District, [E2pis1
Foshan City, A
Guangdong Province, I =R 158
China
Vanke Shanghui Building, [ Operation of 100% Self-owned property
No. 18 Guilan South Road, EHE#& car parking lot BEER
Guicheng Street, A FEBKE
Nanhai District, R
Foshan City, B 51 85%
Guangdong Province, BRHEXE

China
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Summary of Investment Properties

BRNEEE
Group
Use interest Category of the lease
&EEESR
Property M =2k 2t AR
Blocks B23 and B24, A Operation of car 100% Self-owned property
Financial Zone C BERE parking lot BEER
Guicheng Street, #pLL EEIGKE
Nanhai District, [EZR=]E
Foshan City, T
Guangdong Province, ERICE
China B23+B24f7&@
1 residential unit A Residential 100% Long-term lease
Pearl City Mansion, 58 T=E REAFEA
Nos. 22-36 Paterson Street,  f$% &
Causeway Bay, BEME22-365%
Hong Kong MEEEE
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